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This is an English translation of the Italian original “Bilanci 2011" and has been prepared solely for the convenience of the reader. The ltalian version
takes precedence and will be made available to interested readers upon request to Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A.

This document contains certain forward-looking statement, projections, objectives, estimates and forecasts reflecting the Intesa Sanpaolo
management’s current views with respect to certain future events. Forward-looking statements, projections, objectives, estimates and forecasts are
generally identifiable by the use of the words “may,” “will,” “should,” “plan,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “believe,” “intend,” “project,” “goal”
or “target” or the negative of these words or other variations on these words or comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements include,
but are not limited to, all statements other than statements of historical facts, including, without limitation, those regarding Intesa Sanpaolo’s future
financial position and results of operations, strategy, plans, objectives, goals and targets and future developments in the markets where Intesa Sanpaolo
participates or is seeking to participate.

Due to such uncertainties and risks, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements as a prediction of actual
results. The Intesa Sanpaolo Group's ability to achieve its projected objectives or results is dependent on many factors which are outside management’s
control. Actual results may differ materially from (and be more negative than) those projected or implied in the forward-looking statements. Such
forward-looking information involves risks and uncertainties that could significantly affect expected results and is based on certain key assumptions.

All forward-looking statements included herein are based on information available to Intesa Sanpaolo as of the date hereof. Intesa Sanpaolo undertakes
no obligation to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as
may be required by applicable law. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to Intesa Sanpaolo or persons acting on its
behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by these cautionary statements.
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The Intesa Sanpaolo Group: presence in Italy
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Letter from the Chairmen

Distinguished Shareholders,

2011 saw a slowdown in global economic growth, especially in advanced industrial
countries. Europe was the epicentre of severe turbulence on financial markets, where public debt
sustainability issues, exacerbated by weak growth, resulted in a higher cost of public debt financing.
This weighed on European banks which were forced to bear higher funding costs, also due in part to
a sharp decline in financial investment by international institutional players.

In the case of Italy, the uncertain domestic situation and insufficient economic growth added
to difficulties at international level. The gradual deterioration of the country’s creditworthiness
required significant corrections to the public accounts. By year-end, the Italian economy had
entered recession.

Markets severely penalised banks, as a consequence in particular of concerns relating to
possible restrictive effects on the supply of credit, deriving from the strengthening of the capital base
required by the European supervisory authority, with a minimum core tier 1 ratio of 9% under stress.
The risk of a liquidity crisis in the euro area was averted by the ECB’s decision to implement
three-year refinancing operations (LTROs) aimed at supporting the credit market.

In an economic context characterised by severe uncertainty, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has
succeeded in raising its capital ratios to levels above those of many of its competitors. This was
thanks to a timely capital increase that has put the Bank in a position of strength to face a future
that, although still uncertain, also presents a wealth of opportunities. As a result, the Group has
already complied with the new requirements imposed by the Basel 3 rules both in terms of capital
and Net Stable Funding Ratio, showing a solidity that was also confirmed by the analysis of
European banks’ capital adequacy conducted by the EBA at year-end.

The stronger capital base has made it possible to limit the risk of a reduction in overall
lending and deposit collecting business. In 2011, Intesa Sanpaolo remained committed to supporting
the economy by providing credit to households, businesses and their development projects.

During a phase which saw European banks facing higher costs and a deficiency of funding,
the Group continued to pursue conservative liquidity management. Direct deposits remained strong,
owing primarily to the contribution of the retail component. In the first few months of 2012,
as tensions on international markets subsided, our Bank was one of the first to resume recourse to
the wholesale funding market.




Considering this difficult operating context, the 2011 financial statements have been
prepared taking an extremely conservative approach to measuring assets. This entailed a significant
decrease (approximately 10 billion euro, 54% of the total amount) in the value of the goodwill that
had primarily resulted from the merger of Banca Intesa and Sanpaolo IMI. However, the goodwill
impairment has no effect on liquidity and capital ratios.

Excluding the goodwill impairment, the Group’s operations generated a positive result of
approximately two billion euro, despite the extremely conservative approach taken to measuring the
loan portfolio. During the difficult market context seen in the reporting year, the operating margin
increased by 5.9% compared to 2010, as a result of:

— an increase in operating income, with an improvement in net interest income following two
consecutive years of contraction;

— areduction in operating costs for the fifth consecutive year; and

— high and improving efficiency, witnessed by the cost/income ratio, which fell to 54.4%.

The reporting year also witnessed a key change in our Bank's top management.
To Corrado Passera, who succeeded in leading the Bank with authority through a period of
exceptional transformations while guaranteeing financial stability and continuity of results, we would
like to extend our renewed gratitude for his commitment over many years and our sincere best
wishes for the new role he has taken on in the interests of the country. Enrico Cucchiani, who has
been the Bank’s Managing Director and CEO since December 2011, enjoys our full confidence, in
the conviction that he will succeed in exploiting our Bank'’s strengths and pursuing the key targets of
solidity and growth.

Despite the period of extraordinary difficulty experienced by Italy’s banking system, it is
proposed that the ordinary shareholders’ meeting approve the distribution to shareholders of
822 million euro (five euro cents per ordinary share and savings share) by drawing on the
extraordinary reserve. We trust that the shareholders will appreciate this decision, taken in a
situation that requires the utmost attention and constant efforts to achieve the target of the
sustainable profitability which has always been our Group’s key priority.

Giovanni Bazoli Andrea Beltratti
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Introduction

As set forth by Legislative Decree 38 of 28 February 2005, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s Consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in compliance with the accounting principles issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and
the related interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), endorsed by the European
Commission as provided for by Community Regulation 1606 of 19 July 2002.

The Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2011 have been prepared based on the “Instructions for the
preparation of the separate and consolidated financial statements of banks and financial companies, which are parent companies
of banking groups” issued by the Bank of Italy, in the exercise of powers set forth by Art. 9 of Legislative Decree 38/2005, with
Regulation of 22 December 2005, which issued Circular 262/05, and with the subsequent update of 18 November 2009.

These Instructions set out compulsory financial statement forms as well as the contents of the Notes to the financial statements.
The Consolidated financial statements are made up of the Balance sheet, the Income statement, the Statement of comprehensive
income, the Changes in shareholders’ equity, the Statement of cash flows and the Notes to the financial statements; the
Report on operations, on the economic results achieved and on the Group’s balance sheet and financial position has also
been included.

In order to the comments on the results for the year, the Report on operations also presents and illustrates reclassified income
statement and balance sheet schedules. The reconciliation with the financial statements as required by Consob in its
communication 6064293 of 28 July 2006 is included in the Attachments. The Report on operations contains financial information
taken from or attributable to the Consolidated financial statements, as well as other information — for example, figures on
quarterly trends, and other alternative performance measures — not taken from or directly attributable to the
Consolidated financial statements.

Information on corporate governance and ownership structures required by Art. 123 bis of the Consolidated Law on Finance is set
forth, as permitted, in a separate report, approved by the Management Board and published together with these financial
statements. This report also contains the information on remuneration as provided for by article 123 ter of the Consolidated Law
on Finance — report on remuneration. The report can be viewed in the Governance section of the Intesa Sanpaolo internet site, at
www.group.intesasanpaolo.com. This same section of the site provides the disclosure required by Basel 2 Pillar 3, as well as press
releases published during the year and other financial documentation.
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Income statement figures and alternative
performance measures

Consolidated income statement figures (millions of euro) Changes
amount %
Net interest income 9,780 80 0.8
9,700
Net fee and commission income 5.466 -186 -3.3
5,652
Profits (losses) on trading 920 460
460
Income from insurance business I 540 -4 -17.4
B 654
Operating income 16,785 256 1.5
16,529
. -9,137
Operating margin I 7648 423 5.9
[ 7,225
Net adjustments to loans -4.243 I 1,073 3338
3,170
Income after tax from discontinued operations ‘I ‘694 -694
. 2,705
Net income (loss) 8,190 —_ -10,895
Quarterly development of main consolidated income statement figures (millions of euro)
Operating income Operating costs Operating margin Net income (loss)
4,265 16,785
3,800 . 9,137 7,648
4,515 . 5235 2,366 899
1,565
2,294 L 2,221 [
2,242 = . 1,963 | 661 741 527 10119
[ -0, -8,190
1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q FY 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q FY 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q FY 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q FY

Main income statement figures by business area (millions of euro)

Operating income Operating costs

9,654
9,929

5,733
5,903

Banca dei Territori
Corporate and
Invest. Banking
International

Subsidiary Banks

Eurizon Capital

Banca Fideuram

Operating margin Net income (loss)

3,021 Banca dei Territori -6,412
4,026
Corporate and
Invest. Banking 1,552

International
Subsidiary Banks

Eurizon Capital

Banca Fideuram

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.

2011
2010



Balance sheet figures and alternative

performance measures

Consolidated balance sheet figures (millions of euro) Changes
amount %
Financial assets 165,614 -7,574 -4.4
173,188
of which: Insurance Companies 73,926 -1,645 2.2
75,571
376,744 ) )
Loans to customers = 378,827 2,083 0.5
639,221
Total assets 657,025 -17,804 2.7
. _ . , 359,991
Direct deposits from banking business 402202 -42,211  -10.5
Direct deposits from insurance business and technical reserves = ;_2132)5; -2,186 -2.9
) ) 405,727
Indirect deposits: 427,067 -21,340 -5.0
) 221,889
of which: Assets under management 233,929 -12,040 -5.1
Shareholders' equity = 47,040 -6,493 -12.1
53,533
Main balance sheet figures by business area (millions of euro)
Loans to customers Direct deposits from banking business
186,414 Banca dei Territori 200,574
183,240 201,449
150,701 Corporate and
151,287 Invest.Banking 102,783
International
Subsidiary Banks
Eurizon Capital
Banca Fideuram
Operating structure 2011 2010 Changes
amount
Number of employees 100,118 101,837 -1,719
Italy 69,162 70,460 -1,298
Abroad 30,956 31,377 -421
Number of financial advisors 4,850 4,349 501
Number of branches © 7,246 7,458 212
Italy 5,581 5,696 -115
Abroad 1,665 1,762 -97

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.

(a)

Including Retail Branches, Private Banking Branches, SME Branches and Corporate Branches.

2017 | —
2010




Other alternative performance measures

Consolidated profitability ratios (%)

Cost / Income 54.4
56.3
Net income / Average shareholders' equity (ROE) n'm's ]
Economic Value Added (EVA) adjusted © 243
(millions of euro) 648

Profitability ratios by business area (%)

Cost / Income

59.4
595

Banca dei Territori

Corporate and
Invest. Banking

International
Subsidiary Banks

Eurizon Capital
113.2

Banca Fideuram

Economic Value Added (EVA)
adjusted (b)
(millions of euro)

Banca dei Territori

Corporate and
Invest. Banking

International
Subsidiary Banks

Eurizon Capital

Banca Fideuram




Consolidated risk ratios (%)

I

Net doubtful loans / Loans to customers o

Cumulated adjustments on doubtful loans / 64.0

Gross doubtful loans to customers 64.2
(d)

Consolidated capital ratios (%)

Tier 1 capital © net of ineligible instruments / I o
Risk-weighted assets (Core Tier 1) e 79

I S
I o4

Tier 1 capital ©/ Risk-weighted assets

14.3
13.2

|

Total capita 'y Risk-weighted assets

. . I 25205
Risk-weighted assets (millions of euro) D 332,158

Earnings per share (euro)

) , , © -0.56
Basic earnings per share (basic EPS)

Diluted earnings per share (diluted EPS) 056 .

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.

a . . .

@ Ratio between net income and average of share capital, share premium reserve, reserves and valuation reserves.
© The indicator represents the economic value generated in the period in favour of shareholders, since it is the portion of net income for the period which remains after having
remunerated shareholders' equity via the cost of capital. The latter represents the opportunity cost and is determined using the Capital Asset Pricing Model.

Net of merger and restructuring-related charges, effect of purchase price allocation, as per IFRS 3, and of goodwill impairment.

.
@ Ratio between Net income and Allocated capital.

d . . . .

@ Ratios are determined using the methodology set out in the Basel 2 Capital Accord.
e
© Paid-in share capital, share premium reserve and reserves and retained earnings minus treasury shares, goodwill, intangible assets and after the application of prudential filters set out by
supervisory regulations.

¢ )T\er 1 capital plus eligible subordinated liabilities, valuation reserves, with the application of "prudential filters", net of equity investments as set out by supervisory regulations.

@ Net income (loss) attributable to holders of ordinary shares compared to the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares.

h ) .
{ )The dilutive effect is calculated with reference to the programmed issues of new ordinary shares.




Stakeholder map

Institutional investors Number of ordinary shares (thousands) 15,501,282 11,849,332

Small investors Share price at period-end - ordinary share (euro) 1.289 2.042

Foundations

Market Average share price for the period - ordinary share (euro) 1.658 2.479
Average market capitalisation (million) 27,006 31,209
Shareholders' equity (million) 47,040 53,533
Book value per share (euro) 2.863 4.190

Long-term rating

Moody's A2 (%) Aa2
Standard & Poor's BBB+ A+
Fitch A- AA-

(*) Rating under review for possible downgrade

Figures for 2010 not restated. Book value per share does not consider treasury shares.

Number of customers (million) 19.0 19.8
Households ) o
SMEs Retail customers by average account seniority (years) 8.9 93
Corporates

Consumer Associations
Public Authorities and Public Administration

Figures for 2010 not restated.

Apprentices Employees by gender: men (%) 46.3% 46.5%
Clerical staff Employees by gender: women (%) 53.7% 53.5%
Middle and junior managers Employees with university degree (%) 41.4% 39.3%

Senior managers

9 _1 89 _0 99
Trade unions Turnover rate (%) 1.8% 0.9%

Training days per employee 10.1 9.4

Figures for 2010 not restated.




COMMUNITY

Stakeholder associations

Non-profit organisations

National and international public institutions
Territory

Media

Donations (million) 19.9 22.1
Sponsorships (million) 39.1 38.5

Figures for 2010 not restated.

ENVIRONMENT

Environmental Associations
Future Generations

CO2 emissions per employee (Kg) 1,055 1,095
Electricity consumption per employee (KWh) 5,797 5,975
Paper consumption per employee (Kg) 92 101

Figures for 2010 not restated.

SUPPLIERS

Trading partners
Large-scale suppliers
Small suppliers

2011 2010
IT services 24.7% 26.0%
Real estate management 25.9% 25.4%
Purchase of goods and services 21.9% 19.9%
Professional and legal expenses 16.2% 17.5%
Advertising and promotional expenses 5.7% 5.6%
Other expenses 5.6% 5.6%

Figures for 2010 not restated.







Executive summary

Intesa Sanpaolo in 2011

Economic trends in 2011

The economic context in 2011 was heavily affected by the sovereign debt crisis in the Eurozone. After hitting Greece, Ireland and
Portugal, the crisis worsened in the summer, especially in the last part of the year, with a huge leap in risk premiums on the debt
of Italy, Spain and, though to a lesser extent, Belgium and France. The ten-year spread between Italian and German bonds, which
fluctuated between 100 and 200 basis points in the first few months of 2011, reached a peak of 555 basis points in November.
The European authorities’ response was late and inadequate, with the exception of the measures of the European Central Bank.
The two auctions of 3-year funding made by the ECB in December and at the end of February 2012 were a very effective move to
stabilise the-system In terms of official rates, the main refinancing rate was increased to 1.50% between April and July. However,
from October, the sudden worsening of the economic situation and the deepening financial crisis induced the ECB to cut the
benchmark rate twice, bringing it down to 1%. As a result, during the year, interest rates showed conflicting performance: up to
July, Euribor rates rose, but subsequently, they showed a declining trend.

The Eurozone's economy continued to grow until the third quarter, though recording a progressive slowdown. The average
annual change was estimated to be 1.4%, lower than that of 2010. However, this aggregate hides significant geographical
differences: Italy is among the countries whose economic performance has taken the brunt of the crisis, with the economy
declining again in the second half of the year, and a preliminary estimate of GDP growth of 0.4%.

In this scenario, even emerging countries slowed compared to 2010, while maintaining growth rates higher than that of advanced
economies. Due to the strong trade and financial links with advanced European economies, CEE and in particular SEE countries
were affected by the slowdowns of their Western partners. In most of these countries, GDP growth is estimated to range between
1% and 3%, with Poland and the Slovak Republic standing above the range and Croatia and Slovenia below it. In North African
countries the political upheavals had a heavy impact on productive activities (specifically, on extraction activities) and on financial
flows from abroad (tourism, remittances and foreign direct investments). The most recent estimates indicate a drop in Egypt's GDP
(around 1%,).

Bank rates followed an upward trend, first due to the hikes in money rates and the official ECB rates and, subsequently, reflecting
the increase in risk premium on Italian government securities. From summer, the sovereign debt crisis severely affected banks'
access to the wholesale liquidity and medium-/long-term securities markets. The resulting increase in the marginal cost of funding
induced the revision of interest rates on loans made during the year.

2011 began with a considerable recovery in loans to businesses, driven by the demand, lasting until November, for short-term
loans to fund working capital which, then declined suddenly in December. In the second half of the year there was a parallel
slowdown in the disbursement of medium-/long-term loans. Overall, loans to households and businesses grew at a good rate,
5.4% on year's average, indicating that, at least up to October, the tensions regarding sovereign debt and bank funding
conditions had limited impacts on lending to the economy. Nonetheless, at the end of the year, the trend in loans to the private
sector slowed down sharply. The recommendation to recapitalise which occurred during the most critical phase of the sovereign
debt crisis and the Italian economy's return to recession might have affected the credit offer. The measures adopted by the ECB in
December to boost bank lending and liquidity have warded off a stronger credit crunch.

2011 was a complex year for Italian banks’ funding, due to the impact of the cost of funding caused by the increase in the risk
premium on sovereign debt and due to the lower availability of funds on the wholesale market. Once again, Italian banks dealt
with the sharp imbalances in the market using retail customer deposits. Nonetheless, funding recorded a gradual slowdown
during the year, especially in the area of demand accounts, whilst bonds issue reported a recovery, along with the successful
placing of time deposit, which rose sharply in the last quarter.

The results for 2011

The 2011 annual report should be examined bearing in mind the numerous elements which negatively affected the performance
for the period.

As previously mentioned, the sovereign debt crisis in the Eurozone caused sharp tensions on the financial markets and a
slowdown in the economic cycle, which transformed into a recession in Italy, especially in the last quarter.

Taking into account the difficulties of Italy and other countries where the Group operates, the improvement in the operating
margin should be judged as positive, benefiting from the growth in revenues, also due to non-recurring income which doubled
profits on trading and, though to a lesser extent, the positive trend in money management, which were offset by a downturn in
fee and commission income and lower income from insurance business.

In addition to the trends outlined above, the operating margin also benefited from the effects of constant cost control, as both
personnel and administrative costs decreased.

Conversely, income before tax from continuing operations was harshly penalised by the deterioration in credit quality, with a
significant increase in doubtful loans. This resulted in a greater need for net adjustments to loans, caused by the deterioration in
the real economy which hit Italy in the last part of the year, and the significant impairment of financial assets due to the Greek
debt crisis.
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Net result was also influenced by significant non-recurring income components. The benefit of over 2 billion euro deriving from
the effects of tax realignment of goodwill recorded in the consolidated financial statements, permitted by Law Decree 98/2011
(Law no. 111 of 15 July 2011) was counterbalanced by the charges relating to exit incentives and, especially, the impairment of
some intangible assets on the balance sheet, which resulted in a significant net loss.

Operating income Coming to the items of operating income, the income statement for
(millions of euro) 2011 showed net interest income of 9,780 million euro, up 0.8% on the
previous year. As previously mentioned, in the second half of the year,
2011 2010 interbank market rates showed signs of recovery, with positive effects in
terms of spreads.
Fy I 16,785 | FY 16,529
As a result, on one hand, of growth in the commissions deriving from
4Q NN 4,265 4Q 4,196 retail banking activities (+1.1%) and, on the other hand, of a more
3Q NN 3,300 3Q 4,071 marked decrease in fees and commissions on management and dealing
R ——— 20 401 of financial. inlstrulments (-7.6%), the.sgrvices segment glenelrated net fge
and commission income of 5,466 million euro, a contribution which, in
1Q I 4,205 Q 4241 aggregate terms, was down (-3.3%) compared to the previous year.
Operating margin Profits on trading amounted to 920 million euro, a significant increase
(millions of euro) compared to the 460 million euro of 2010. With the continuing negative
effects of market volatility in place, this is attributable to non-recurring
201 2010 components such as the capital gains on the sale of the remaining 25%
o s o s Qf Findomestic (154 miIIAion euro),. 4% of Frada (272 miIIlioln guro) a_nd the
. ' interest held in Banco di Patagonia (56 million euro). This is in addition to
profits of 180 million euro relating to the derecognition of own debt
4Q I 1,899 4Q 1698 instruments acquired on the market, while non-recurring charges posted
3Q NN 1,565 3Q 1,814 to this caption amounted to 116 million euro.
20 I 2221 2Q 1,722 . . . .
Income from insurance business, which aggregates specific costs and
10 I 1,963 Q 1,991 revenues of the Group companies operating in the life and non-life

segments, amounted to 540 million euro, down by 114 million euro
compared to the previous year — which had also benefited from the sale
of securities with gains — mainly attributable to the investment results, penalised by the negative market scenario.

As a result of the trends described, operating income amounted to 16,785 million euro, up by 1.5% compared to 2010.

The Group continues to monitor operating costs carefully and to implement on-going structural cost-containment measures.
Thanks to this policy, the amount of operating costs, 9,137 million euro, decreased (-1.8%) on the previous year. Specifically, both
personnel expenses (-2%) and administrative expenses (-3%) decreased, while adjustments showed slight growth (+6%).

Thus, the operating margin totalled 7,648 million euro, up by 5.9%.

Provisions for risks, adjustments and impairment losses (5,530 million euro) were up by approximately 52% overall compared to
the previous year, due to greater net adjustments to loans (4,243 million euro, up 1,073 million euro compared to the previous
year), attributable to - especially in the last part of the year — the effects of the generalised deterioration in credit quality, but also
to the financial difficulties encountered by some important borrowers and some contingent factors of which mention will be
made below. With regard to performing loans, "collective" adjustments increased significantly, with coverage ratio up from 0.7 %
to 0.8%, as a result of the deterioration of the economic situation, especially in the last part of the year. Moreover, the recent
agreements between the Greek government and private investors to restructure the country's debt resulted in impairment losses
of 939 million euro.

Profits and losses on investments held to maturity and on other investments include the capital gain made on the assets sold to
Crédit Agricole (123 million euro), which was wholly offset by the impairment on the equity investment in Telco (251 million euro
recorded under this caption).

Income before tax from continuing operations, penalised by these trends, thus amounted to 2,019 million euro, down by almost
48% compared to 2010.

Net income (loss) As previously indicated, net result for 2011 was influenced by significant

(millions of euro) non-recurring income components.
Taxes showed a credit of 910 million euro, compared to a charge of
2011 2010 1,372 million euro in 2010. This is attributable to the exercise of the
option, described in further detail below, to realign the tax values of the
P 8190 Y 2705 intangible assets recorded in the consolidated financial statements which
reflect the higher values of controlling interests (deriving from
4Q 10119 14Q B505 extraordinary transactions. This caption also records a charge of 158
3Q 527 3Q 1510 million euro for the settlement of tax dispute relating to the so-called
20 a 20 W 1.002 misuse of a right (147 million euro net of the deductibility of the related

interest expense). The net result for the period was also affected by
Q 661 1Q 688 charges for integration and exit incentives of 552 million euro, net of
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related taxes, most of which (506 million euro) is to be attributed to personnel expenses related to the staff downsizing as a result
of the agreement signed with the trade unions in July. Purchase price amortisation was also recorded for 321 million euro.

The impairment of goodwill deserves specific attention.

Prior to 2011 financial statements, Intesa Sanpaolo had intangible assets with an indefinite useful life amounting to 21.6 billion
euro: 19.2 billion euro recorded as “goodwill" and 2.4 billion euro under the “brand name”.

A portion of the goodwill (5.5 billion euro) was paid in cash at the time of purchase of the equity assets. Most of the goodwill
(13.5 billion euro) derives from merger transactions which were accounted for in compliance with IFRS 3
“Business Combinations”, implying the recognition of equity reserves.

As illustrated in detail hereinafter, as a result of the deterioration of the economic situation and the financial markets and, above
all, the changed profit forecasts for banks and, thus, also for Intesa Sanpaolo, it was necessary to record significant impairment of
the carrying value of goodwill.

Consequently, impairment totalling 10,233 million euro, net of tax effects, was recognised in the 2011 income statement.

Therefore, the consolidated income statement for 2011 closed with a loss of 8,190 million euro, compared to income of 2,705
million euro in the previous year.

The comparison of the results of the fourth quarter with the previous quarter shows, as illustrated by the above charts, an increase
in operating income (+12.2% to 4,265 million euro), due to the greater contribution of trading and income from insurance
business, along with a moderate increase in interest income and fee and commission income. The quarterly performance of the
operating margin was even more positive (+21.3% to 1,899 million euro), while net result for the fourth quarter was penalised by
the significant amount of net adjustments to loans, as a result of the generalised deterioration in credit quality and the crisis of
several important debtors and, above all, the impairment of goodwvill.

The performance of the balance sheet aggregates confirms the Group's sound financial position.

LGENS 0 @B ETESE Loans to customers amounted to around 377 billion euro, and remained
(millions of euro) substantially stable (-0.5%) compared to the end of the previous year,

despite the drop at the end of the year. The significant increase in current

2011 2010 accounts (over 3 billion euro) was fully absorbed by the sharp decrease in

repurchase agreements (-5.4 billion euro). Net of this component, which
is generally financial, and whose decrease is connected with the closing
of several very large transactions, loans to customers would show an
30911 I 351,192 | 300,10 WENNNNNNNN 378,157 increase of approximately 1%. Also excluding the growth in non-
306.11 I 374,979 | 30.6.10 NN 374,901 performing loans, though significant (+1.5 billion euro) to be interpreted

in relation to the crisis in the real economy, loans to customers would
30311 N, 377,252 | 30,310 .. 370968 maintain a positive trend (+0.5%). The amount of disbursements in 2011
to households, including the small business and non-profit segments
(14.8 billion euro) and those to businesses in the Banca dei Territori area
(almost 10 billion euro), as well as medium-/long-term disbursements to
the Mid Corporate and Large Corporate Italy segments (15.4 billion euro) testify to the Group's constant commitment to
supporting households and businesses in the difficult context which characterised the financial year.

Fy I 376,744 Fy [ 378,827

Direct deposits from banking business The decrease in direct deposits from customers in the banking business
(millions of euro) recorded at the end of the year (-10.5% to 360 billion euro) is mainly

due a strategy of optimising the cost of funding by rerouting the sources

2011 2010 of funding, which resulted in a sharp drop in short-term funding from

institutional  customers, in favour of amounts due to banks
(approximately +48% to 79 billion euro) through refinancing with the
European Central Bank. The performance of the aggregate was also
309.11 I 372,027 309.10 [ 409824 influenced by the significant decrease in repurchase agreements,
306.11 N 392226 | 30.6.10 W 414,070 following the expiry of transactions with institutional counterparties. In
30311 I 95276 | 30510 NS 106757 terms ofl contract types, the drop in thg demand component s.hould be
viewed in relation to both the reduction in wholesale funding from
institutional counterparties and a partial repositioning of retail customers
to investment products with greater returns, particularly bonds.

Fy I 359,991 Fy I 402,202

Direct deposits from insurance business and technical reserves  1here was a smaller decrease in direct deposits from insurance business,

(millions of euro) which also include technical reserves (-2.9% to 73 billion euro).

The overall performance was caused by the reduction in the value of

2011 2010 financial liabilities measured at fair value in the insurance segment,

» a11e o 5 305 especially of index-linked products. This downturn was partly offset by

I 7, ' the increase in technical reserves, which represent the amount due to
customers subscribing traditional policies.

30911 I 75,399 | 30.9.10 NN 74,418 Intesa Sanpaolo Vita (the company created from the merger of the

30.6.11 I 77,245 | 30.6.10 NN 73,488 insurance companies Intesa Sanpaolo Vita — formerly Intesa Vita,

EurizonVita, Sud Polo Vita and Centrovita Assicurazioni) and Fideuram
Vita, in 2011 generated new business, including pension products, for
11.8 billion euro.

303.11 I 76,704 | 30.3.10 N 73,577

Indirect deposits came to 406 billion euro, dropping (-5%) compared to
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the end of 2010, both for assets under management (222 billion euro, -5.1%) and for assets under administration (184 billion
euro, -4.8%).
The negative trends shown were affected by the decrease of fair value of assets in the portfolio. Stocks were impacted by the
heavy slump in stock market prices whereas bonds were penalised by the sovereign debt crisis in peripheral countries in
the Eurozone.

Results of the business units

The breakdown of the contribution of operating income in 2011 according to the Group's five business units shows the greatest
contribution from retail banking activities in Italy (approximately 57% of operating income), though in the presence of a
significant contribution from corporate and investment banking activities (approximately 23%) and international retail
banking activities (14%).

Operating income:
Breakdown by business area

International Subsidiary Banks 14.0%
\ Eurizon Capital 1.6%
" Banca Fideuram 4.5%

Corporate and
Investment Banking 23.2%

Of which Capital Market
and Investment Banking 4.9%

Q]

[ Banca dei Territori 56.7 %

(M Excluding Corporate Centre

In 2011, Banca dei Territori — which oversees the traditional lending and deposit
Banca dei Territori collecting activities in Italy and related financial services — reported operating income
of 9,654 million euro, down 2.8% compared to the previous year.

Operating income In details, on top of a decrease in net interest income (-1%), essentially due to the
=9,654 trend of spreads, Banca dei Territori suffered a lower contribution of net fee and
9929 commission income (-4%) that can be ascribed to the negative performance of the

Operating margin markets and the decrease of up-front commissions due to the decision to privilege the
3,921 placement of own bond issues in 2011.
4,026 The decrease in income from insurance business (approximately -15%), primarily
Net income (loss) attributable to the reduction in net investment result, was only partly offset by the
6,412 _' s higher profits on trading (approximately +18%). After recording decreasing operating
costs (-2.9%), the operating margin came to 3,921 million euro, down 2.6% on 2010.
011 [ 2010 Net income before tax from continuing operations (-20.5% to 1,408 million euro) was

penalised by greater net adjustments to loans, due to the previously mentioned
generalised deterioration in credit quality, and net impairment losses on other assets, due to the impairment of Greek bonds held
by insurance companies. Net result came to 6,412 million euro. This result, in addition to goodwill impairment, which amounted
to 6,390 million euro, was also affected by charges for integration and exit incentives of 456 million euro and economic effects of
purchase price allocation of 210 million euro.

The balance sheet figures at the end of December 2011 showed an increase in loans to customers (+1.7% to 186 billion euro)
and substantially stable direct deposits from banking business (-0.4% to 201 billion euro).

The Corporate and Investment Banking Division — which deals with corporate
banking, investment banking and public finance in Italy and abroad - achieved
operating income of 3,928 million euro, up (+2.2%) on 2010, due to the positive

Operating income trends in net interest income (+2.9%), mainly related to greater average volumes, and
3,928 in net fee and commission income. Conversely, profits on trading declined (-2.6%)
3,842 compared to 2010. While recording substantially stable operating charges which
Operating margin confirmed the careful cost control process, the division increased by 2.9% its
2,960 operating margin.
2,877 Income before tax from continuing operations reported a sharp decrease (-58.7%),
Net income (loss) due to greater net adjustments to loans, mainly regarding restructured loans, and to
*11797-_ the impairment of Greek bonds, financial assets and equity investments. Also for the
1,552 Corporate and Investment Banking Division net result was penalised by considerable
E2011 2010 goodwill impairment (2,318 million euro), amounting to -1,797 million euro.

As for balance sheet figures, loans to customers remained substantially stable (-0.4%
to 151 billion euro), whilst deposits fell (approximately -15% to 88 billion euro), mainly attributable to a reduction in
securities transactions.
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International Subsidiary Banks

Operating income

2,383
2,302

Operating margin

1,212
1,133

Net income (loss)

-763
378

2011 2010

In 2011 operating income of the Division — which oversees the Group's commercial
operations on international markets through subsidiary and investee banks — was up
3.5% compared to the previous year, coming to 2,383 million euro, to be attributed
to the positive trend in net interest income, up 4.3%.

Operating costs, amounting to 1,171 million euro, were stable (+0.2%) compared to
2010, allowing the operating margin to reach 1,212 million euro, an improvement of
7%. Conversely, income before tax from continuing operations, amounting to 493
million euro, showed a decrease of 7.3%, due to greater net adjustments to loans,
which increased from 589 million euro to 693 million euro, mainly attributable to the
losses on forex mortgages in Hungary, as a result of local legislative measures which
burdened the banking system with part of the foreign exchange risk. The Division
closed 2011 with a net loss of -763 million euro, resulting from the significant
goodwill impairment (total of 1,152 million euro).

Balance sheet aggregates show stable loans to customers (31 billion euro) and

increasing direct deposits from banking business (+1.4%), especially due to the development of securities transactions.

Eurizon Capital

Operating income

266
288

Operating margin

146
156

Net income (loss)

-297
77

2011 [ 2010

Banca Fideuram

Operating income

771
757

|

Operating margin

424
395

Net income (loss)
89
133

2011 [ 2010

The asset management segment was affected by the difficult operating context.
For Eurizon Capital, operating income, amounting to 266 million euro, recorded a
decrease of 7.6% on the previous year, especially due to the lower contribution from
net fee and commission income (-6.9%). Operating costs reported a significant
decrease (-9.1%). As a result of the above revenue and cost trends, the operating
margin came to 146 million euro, down 6.4% on 2010. The net loss of 297 million
euro is attributable to high levels of goodwill impairment (373 million euro).

Overall, total assets managed by Eurizon Capital as at the end of 2011 came to 130.5
billion euro, down 4.3% on 2010, mainly due to the poor performance of the
financial markets, which significantly eroded the value of assets under management.
Net outflows amounted to 1.8 billion euro.

For Banca Fideuram - specialising in the creation, management and distribution of
financial products and services to customers with medium to high savings potential —
the operating margin came to 424 million euro, up 7.3% on the previous year,
attributable to both the increase of operating income (+1.8%) and the fall in
operating costs (-4.1%). The revenue performance was essentially attributable to net
interest income (+13.7%) and net fee and commission income (+2.4%). Among other
components, profits on trading, which showed a positive trend, also benefiting from
capital gains on bonds, as well as other operating income. These positive trends were
partly offset by the lower contribution of insurance business (-42.1%). Income before
tax from continuing operations was penalised by the impairment of Greek
government securities (134 million euro), whose negative effect was partly offset by
the lower need for provisions for risks and charges. The income statement, which was
not affected by goodwill impairment, closed with income of 89 million euro
(133 million euro in 2010).

Assets under management of the Banca Fideuram Group were down just slightly (-0.9% to 71 billion euro, of which 52 billion
euro in assets under management and 19 billion euro in assets under administration), also as a result of the positive trend in

net inflows.

Highlights

Highlights in the year

In June 2010 Intesa Sanpaolo and Crédit Agricole established the terms and conditions for Intesa Sanpaolo’s sale to the
Crédit Agricole Group of the entire stake held through the subsidiary Banca CR Firenze in Cassa di Risparmio della Spezia (80% of
the capital), and 96 branches of the Group.

The sale of the Cassa di Risparmio della Spezia was finalised at the start of January. An initial tranche of the branches was
transferred in the last few days of March: 11 branches of Banca CR Firenze were contributed to Cassa di Risparmio di Parma e
Piacenza. An additional 85 branches (belonging to Intesa Sanpaolo and Cassa di Risparmio del Veneto) were then transferred in
May. The entire transaction had a positive effect on the consolidated income statement for 2011 of 122 million euro (net of
accessory charges, minority interests and the tax effect).

In February 2011, Intesa Sanpaolo acquired the majority of shares in Banco Emiliano Romagnolo, a single-branch bank based in
Bologna, under extraordinary administration. The complex transaction entailed the reduction of the bank's share capital by an
amount equal to the losses incurred, and a concurrent 26 million euro share capital increase, (including share premium of
approximately 14 million euro) 52% of which was reserved for Intesa Sanpaolo.
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The remaining portion of the capital increase, pertaining to the other shareholders, was subscribed for and paid in advance by
Intesa Sanpaolo under a termination clause in the event the purchase option was exercised by the other shareholders. Following
the conclusion of the option period, the stake held by Intesa Sanpaolo came to more than 99%.

At the end of July 2011, the company’s Shareholders’ Meeting was held, and resolved to end the extraordinary administration
period and appointed the corporate governance bodies. At the end of February 2012, the Supervisory Authority formally approved
the financial statements for the extraordinary administration period.

As at 31 December 2011, Banco Emiliano Romagnolo reported customer deposits of 89 million euro and loans to customers of
105 million euro.

On 1 June 2011, after all the precedent conditions set out in the contract were met and after obtaining the required
authorisations, Banca Fideuram finalized the acquisition of 100% of the shares of Banca Sara. In the fourth quarter, the full spin-
off of Banca Sara into Banca Fideuram and Sanpaolo Invest SIM was finalised. Banca Fideuram was assigned the banking business
unit, while Sanpaolo Invest SIM was assigned the financial advisors business units. The intragroup transaction was accounted for
according to the continuing values method.

At the end of June, Intesa Sanpaolo finalised the sale of its remaining 25% equity investment in Findomestic, which it held via its
subsidiary Banca CR Firenze, to the BNP Paribas Group. The sale generated a positive impact on the consolidated income
statement of 154 million euro (128 million euro in terms of income for the year, net of minority interests and the tax effect).

As part of the public offering connected with the listing of Prada on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Intesa Sanpaolo sold
approximately 4% in the company's capital. After the disposal, Intesa Sanpaolo still holds an equity investment amounting to 1%.
The sale generated a positive impact on the 2011 consolidated income statement of approximately 272 million euro.

At the end of June it was also finalised the sale of Fideuram Bank Suisse, a wholly-held subsidiary of Fideuram Bank Luxembourg
(which in turn is 100% owned by Banca Fideuram), specialising in private banking services, to Banca Credinvest. The capital gain
on the sale of this subsidiary is of about 7 million euro.

In July Intesa Sanpaolo finalised the acquisition of 51% and 9.8% of shares of Banca Monte Parma, from Fondazione
Monte Parma and Banca Sella Group respectively, with a provisional total outlay of approximately 158 million euro.
The agreements stated that the price would be subject to adjustment, upwards or downwards, based on the amount of the
bank's gross income and shareholders' equity at the date of execution of the agreement. The price adjustment was subsequently
quantified as 31 million euro in favour of Intesa Sanpaolo.

As a result of transactions between the other shareholders, Fondazione Monte Parma retained 21% of shares,
Fondazione Piacenza e Vigevano 15.2%, Compagnia Generale e Immobiliare 2.5%, and Others 0.5%. Moreover, Intesa Sanpaolo
had entered into a put & call agreement with Fondazione Monte di Parma on 3.25% of the bank's capital, at the unit price paid
for the majority stake. Following the exercise of the option in November, Intesa Sanpaolo's stake rose to 64.05%.

According to the contractual agreements, Intesa Sanpaolo was committed to subscribe, on a proportional basis, including any
unopted shares, a share capital increase of 120 million euro (divided into two tranches of 75 million euro and 45 million euro)
resolved by the Bank on 13 December 2010.

As at 31 December 2011, Banca Monte Parma direct customer deposits amounted to about 2.1 billion euro and customer loans to
approximately 2.6 billion euro.

On 29 July 2011 Intesa Sanpaolo and the trade unions signed a Master Agreement to implement the downsizing of staff by at
least 3,000, envisaged in the Business Plan 2011 — 2013/15, as well as the requalification of an additional 5,000 staff, with a view
to structurally reducing labour costs by at least 300 million euro.

The agreement is organised into two separate parts, relating to the different status of personnel: Part A governs the exit of staff
who have accrued or will accrue the right to receive a pension by 1 July 2015; Part B provides for optional access to the specific
"solidarity allowance” for staff who will accrue the right to receive a pension after 31 December 2013, with the actual pension
entitlement falling by 1 January 2018. On expiry of the terms, approximately 2,500 people meeting the criteria for Part A and
another approximately 2,500 people meeting the criteria for Part B had accepted the agreement.

Following the reform of the pension system pursuant to Law Decree no. 201/11, converted into Law no. 214/11, the framework
was changed significantly, protecting the rights of those who signed up for the Redundancy Fund by 4 December 2011, but
postponing the term for receiving retirement benefits for approximately 1,000 people who would have been able to directly
access their pensions by 1 July 2015.

While possible regulatory and/or contractual supplements are pending, the 2011 Annual Report recorded gross provisions of 725
million euro (698 million euro, taking account of discounting), which amounts to 506 million euro net of tax charges.
Moreover, additional incentives of 20 million euro (15 million euro net of tax charges) relating to other plans were posted to the
income statement.

In December, Intesa Sanpaolo finalised the settlement of the pending disputes involving the Group with the Agenzia delle Entrate
(Italian Revenue Agency), regarding the misuse of a right, through the use of special dispute settlement mechanisms, though
convinced of the correctness of its actions, and only based on the unsuitability of long, burdensome disputes and judicial
evaluations that are difficult to predict. This settlement resulted in a net charge of approximately 147 million euro, posted to the
2011 income statement, supplementing the use of pre-established allowances.

On 31 December 2011, Intesa Sanpaolo Vita was established. This is the new Group insurance company which incorporated the
various Group companies operating in the bancassurance sector. With accounting and tax effects from 1 January 2011,
EurizonVita incorporated Centrovita Assicurazioni, Intesa Sanpaolo Vita (formerly Intesa Vita) and Sud Polo Vita, concurrently
changing its company name to Intesa Sanpaolo Vita S.p.A.
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The new insurance business structure has 68 billion euro in assets under management and approximately 3.7 million customers.

The business has reached such a size that the Group is now placed in an absolutely leading position in the Italian and European

and can offer increasingly expert services to the customers.

Intesa Sanpaolo Vita is capable of offering an extensive range of products and services covering insurance investment, family

protection and supplementary pensions, and makes use of a widespread distribution structure: more than 5,000 branches of the

Banks in the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, over 4,200 financial advisors (private bankers) of Banca Fideuram and Sanpaolo Invest and

more than 300 agencies of Neos Finance.

Intesa Sanpaolo Vita, a company incorporated under Italian law, operating in the life business, also makes use of the

operations of:

- Intesa Sanpaolo Assicura, a company incorporated under lItalian law, authorised to conduct insurance and reinsurance
business in the non-life business;

- Intesa Sanpaolo Life, a company incorporated under Irish law, operating under the free provision of services in the life
business. It is headquartered in Ireland and operates in the European Union countries where it is authorised;

Moreover, Intesa Sanpaolo Vita holds a minority investment in the Chinese company Union Life Insurance Limited Company.

The capital increase

The Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held on 10 May 2011 resolved a share capital increase for consideration, for a total
maximum amount of 5 billion euro, including share premium, to be executed within 31 December 2011, in divisible form, through
the issuance of ordinary shares with a nominal value of 0.52 euro each, carrying regular rights (1 January 2011), to be offered
with pre-emptive rights to the shareholders holding ordinary shares and owners/holders of the Company’s savings shares,
pursuant to article 2441 of the Italian Civil Code.

On 19 May, the Management Board resolved — in execution of the Shareholders’ Meeting resolution — to issue 3,651,949,408
ordinary shares, with a nominal value of 0.52 euro each, having the same characteristics as those outstanding, and carrying
regular rights, to be offered with pre-emptive rights to shareholders at a price of 1.369 euro per share, inclusive of 0.849 euro of
share premium, in the ratio of 2 newly issued shares to 7 ordinary shares and/or savings shares held, up to a maximum total
nominal value of 1,899,013,692.16 euro and to a maximum total aggregate value, inclusive of the share premium, of
4,999,518,739.55 euro. The issue price was determined by applying a discount of approximately 24% to the theoretical ex-right
price (TERP) of ordinary shares, calculated on the basis of the official Stock Exchange price of 19 May 2011.

The rights offering of new ordinary shares ended on 22 June with full subscription of the total 3,651,949,408 shares offered, for a
total aggregate value of 4,999,518,739.55 euro.

Accessory charges for the capital increase, amounting to 98.5 million euro, were recognised as a direct reduction in the share
premium reserve.

The capital increase strengthened the Intesa Sanpaolo Group's capital. By consolidating its capital profile, the Intesa Sanpaolo
Group also strengthened its competitive position in the domestic and European financial markets. Moreover, due to the availability
of adequate capital resources, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group will be able to further increase its penetration in its reference markets,
finance internal growth and provide greater strategic flexibility and flexibility in pay out policies. The share capital increase also
provided flexibility in managing existing Tier 1 and Lower Tier 2 regulatory capital instruments.

As to impact on capital ratios, the capital increase produced a positive effect on the Core Tier 1 ratio of about 150 basis points.

Recognition of deferred tax assets on exercise of the options pursuant to art. 15, paragraphs 10-bis and 10-ter, Law
Decree 185/08, converted to Law 2/09

As known, in 2008, 2009 and 2010, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group exercised the option of realignment of accounting values which
were not recognised for tax purposes, envisaged by Article 15, paragraph 10 of Law Decree no. 185 of 29 November 2008,
converted into Law no. 2 of 28 January 2009. This law allowed recognition for tax purposes of goodwill, trademarks and other
intangible assets recorded in the separate financial statements as a result of neutral extraordinary operations, through the
payment of a substitute tax of 16%. This option was not permitted for intangible assets recorded only in the consolidated
financial statements.

In the 2008 — 2010 period, as a result of the aforementioned realignment, with a substitute tax charge of 1,689 million euro, the
Group recorded higher deferred tax assets of 2,366 million euro and released deferred tax liabilities of 1,028 million euro, with a
positive net effect of 1,705 million euro on the income statement.

Law Decree no. 98 of 6 July 2011, converted into Law no. 111 of 15 July 2011, introduced paragraphs 10-bis and 10-ter into the
aforementioned Article 15 of Law Decree 185, which, under certain conditions, also allowed for the realignment of intangible
assets only recorded in the consolidated financial statements. Specifically, the intangible assets subject to realignment must be
related to the higher values of controlling interests - which must be understood as those included in the scope of consolidation
based on the IAS/IFRS - recorded in the separate financial statements as a result of extraordinary operations that are tax-neutral
(business contribution, merger, spin-off) or recognised for tax purposes (acquisitions of companies and equity investments).

The legislative intervention was aimed at removing the inequality of treatment of companies which concentrate their operations
internally - which, in the case of neutral extraordinary operations, may directly recognise intangible assets recorded in the separate
financial statements, by applying Article 15, paragraph 10 of Law Decree 185/08 - and companies which carry out operations
through subsidiaries - which, therefore, express the value of these assets through the value of equity investments.

As a result of the new provisions, companies were able to realign the value relating to intangible assets which contributed to
forming the cost of the controlling interests by paying the substitute tax of 16% by 30 November 2011 and, consequently, for tax
purposes, could deduct the amortisation charges relating to the intangible assets subject to realignment, recorded in the
consolidated financial statements.

Based on the resolutions taken by the competent Boards, at Group level, goodwill and other intangible assets totalling 12,928
million euro have been realigned, with a substitute tax charge of 2,069 million euro, recognition of deferred tax assets and the
release of deferred tax liabilities totalling 4,199 million euro and a benefit to the Group income statement of 2,130 million euro
(2,102 million euro relating to the Parent Company and 28 million euro relating to Cassa di Risparmio di Firenze).
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Impairment testing of intangible assets with indefinite useful life

The crisis which hit the financial and economic markets of the Eurozone, and Italy in particular, from summer 2011, had negative
effects on the profitability of the banking system.

As a result, the growth estimates set forth in the Business Plan approved at the beginning of the year were deemed to be no
longer sustainable, while the continuing uncertainty about economic growth in Italy over the next few years, despite the clear
improvements in the past few months, makes it impossible to provide reliable medium-/long-term forecasts.

This situation affected the impairment tests required by IAS 36, at least annually, to verify the recoverable amount of intangible
assets with indefinite life posted to the financial statements, represented by goodwill and brand name in the case of
Intesa Sanpaolo. As previously specified, these amounts were recognised in the financial statements at the time of acquisition of
equity investments and thus, paid in cash, or, for most of the goodwill (13.5 billion euro out of 19 billion euro) and the entire
amount of the brand name (2.4 billion euro) as a result of mergers and, thus, have an "accounting" origin.

The method adopted to conduct the tests for the 2011 financial statements is the same method which has always been used,
based on determining the value in use, understood as the present value of the future cash flows reasonably expected to be
generated by the Group. However, lacking updated internal estimates, due to the reason indicated above, it was deemed
necessary to use as a reference the income flows predicted by financial analysts, available on the market, adjusted to take into
account the evidence from the 2011 financial statements.

For an illustration of the tests performed, refer to Point 13.2 of Part B of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
explains the methodology used, activities carried out and results. However, the tests showed that goodwill impairment of 10,338
million euro (10,233 million euro net of the tax effect) was necessary, the amount representing over 54% of the values in the
financial statements. Conversely, no impairment was required for the brand name.

These impairment losses concerned almost all of the Cash Generating Units, with the only exception of the Banca Fideuram CGU.
The Banca dei Territori CGU and the Corporate and Investment Banking CGU had particularly penalising results, with impairment
of 56% and 72% of goodwill recorded, respectively.

It is noted that the impairment losses did not have any negative effects on the regulatory capital requirements, as the regulatory
capital had already been decreased by the full amount of the goodwill.

The portfolio of Greek bonds

In 2011 the Greek Government crisis exploded to extreme proportions. After taking into consideration Greece's real financial
position, the European Union, the International Monetary Fund and the European Central Bank approved a series of support
measures, while negotiations began between the Greek Government and private investors to restructure a significant portion of
the sovereign debt, which could result in a reduction in the debt/GDP ratio to 120% by 2019.

The agreement with private investors (banks, insurance companies and financial companies) was reached in February 2012.
This envisages waivers of receivables and other facilities resulting in a financial loss for investors of approximately 74% of the
nominal value of the receivable.

For the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, the agreement resulted in impairment losses on securities of 939 million euro (net of amounts
allocated to insurance products under separate management), which also include 261 million euro in adjustments linked to the
effect of hedging on the value of the security. This is to be added to 73 million euro of capital losses relating to derivatives
reclassified in the trading portfolio, as illustrated in detail hereinafter and in Part E of the Notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The amount of losses was fully charged to the income statement for 2011.

The 2011-2013/2015 Business Plan

As is known, in April 2011, the Intesa Sanpaolo Management Board and Supervisory Board approved the 2011 — 2013/15
Business Plan.

In 2011, the Directors and Management worked and continue to work to achieve the projects under the Plan, as illustrated below.
Moreover, it must be noted that the Plan was based on economic and financial forecasts (growth rates, inflation rates, ECB
benchmark rates, spreads, etc.) which are no longer realistic following the crisis which hit the financial markets, specifically in the
last few months of the year, causing a slowdown in the global economy and, in several countries, including ltaly, recession.

As a result, the Plan must be significantly adjusted to the changed external scenario, which will be possible only after the market
situation and macroeconomic outlook stabilise and it will thus be possible to formulate reliable medium-/long-term forecasts,
which are indispensible for drawing up a plan with a great scope.

The Business Plan of April 2011 envisaged a significant plan of well-defined managerial actions, which were classified in: (i)
Projects for growth (75 initiatives); (ii) Projects for productivity and human resource development (55 initiatives); (iii) Projects for
risk control and optimisation (20 initiatives); (iv) Projects for liquidity optimisation (6 initiatives); and (v) Projects for a stronger
capital base (8 initiatives).

The actions carried out in 2011 and those planned for 2012 operate along the guidelines set forth in the Business Plan. More
specifically, the main actions include the following initiatives:

Projects for growth

- Extracting the unexpressed potential revenue growth in all business units, leveraging the customer assets of the Group, which
can count on over 11 million Retail customers and over 90% of Corporate customers. To extract the unexpressed potential of
customers, the Bank is developing dedicated service models, optimising the cost-to-serve and maximising product cross-
selling. The current management of the price factor is a priority: this is being implemented through the redesigning of price
lists, the strict application of pricing logics based on the risk-return profile and the value perceived by the customer, and
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revision of exceptions. Significant attention is also focused on the exploitation of intra-divisional synergies (i.e. offering Capital
Markets products to Financial Institutions) and interdivisional synergies (i.e. extending the Group's distinctive offering to the
International Subsidiary Banks).

Selective international expansion. Intesa Sanpaolo's international business is developed by the International Subsidiary Banks
Division, as well as through specific initiatives of the Corporate and Investment Banking Division.

In order to develop the growth potential of the International Subsidiary Banks, dedicated service models and products which
stand out from those of their local competitors have been created (i.e. specialised "package" offers for SMEs), leveraging the
Group's centres of excellence (Divisions and product companies, such as: Intesa Sanpaolo Card, leasing and asset
management). To significantly strengthen its international presence, the Corporate and Investment Banking Division intends to
evolve from a “National Champion” to a “Regional Player”, becoming the bank of choice for international customers. In the
public sector, Banca Infrastrutture Innovazione e Sviluppo is developing its current portfolio of international transactions,
concentrating on strategic countries for the Group, which have a strong need for Public-Private Partnerships (Poland, Brazil).
Strengthening investment banking and capital markets, while protecting the risk profile. Intesa Sanpaolo is pursuing a strategy
for rebalancing its portfolio in favour of investment banking and capital markets activities, which can increase profitability
without significantly changing the risk profile. The partnership between Banca IMI and Eurizon is developing further, with
specific reference to Epsilon business, whose platform is used to create structured products. It is also planned to strengthen
leadership on Capital Markets, by developing and supplementing the range of products and services, while the London
Branch, where the Banca IMI operating model has been implemented, shall be used to support the internationalisation
project.

To extend Investment Banking activities, additional strengthening of cross-selling is planned on the Mid, Large and Financial
Institutions segments, while structured finance will be strengthened as a result of synergies with Capital Markets and
extension to international markets.

Product innovation and service model as determining factors for success. In a market scenario marked by growing
competition, continuous innovation to meet the new needs of customers is an indispensible determining factor for success.
Innovating the range of products, the service model and the distribution strategy increases service, thus improving relations
with customers. An example is the gradual implementation of the “Financial Value Chain”, which involves integrated
management of companies' treasury, transaction and trade finance services. Another example is the Superflash Branch, a new
way of banking, without “teller windows”, with significant use of Internet technology, targeted to customers up to 35
years of age.

Improvement in customer satisfaction. Customer satisfaction is a fundamental determining factor both for keeping and fully
optimising the customer base, reducing the switch rate, and for acquiring new customers. Current service levels can be
increased through targeted initiatives, based on the priorities perceived by each customer segment.

Projects for productivity and human resource development

Full implementation of simplification measures. In the banking industry, simplification is an extraordinarily effective tool for
increasing customer and employee satisfaction, as well as increasing the efficiency of operations.

In its sales process, Intesa Sanpaolo challenges itself to offer a simpler range of products, provide greater transparency to
customers regarding their applications (i.e. traceability of mortgage applications), develop new services which meet complex
needs in a simple manner (i.e. collection and payment hub), and introduce pre-authorised loans for customers.

In providing banking services and after-sales support, new operating models have been introduced (i.e. Mid and Large
Corporate) and the customer experience has been improved (i.e. overdraft authorisation via the mobile channel).

To increase the effectiveness and efficiency of operations while increasing the level of employee satisfaction, initiatives are
aimed, on one hand, at improving the instruments supporting sales processes and the provision of services to customers and,
on the other, optimising central-peripheral relations.

Maintaining adequate cost and productivity control. Maintenance of the Intesa Sanpaolo's current competitive position in
cost control is a fundamental objective which cannot be read separately from the achievement of suitable levels of
productivity. An important contribution is provided by the additional reduction of the weight of administrative activities in
the network, which frees up production capacity through the optimisation of processes, procedures and
organisational structures.

Optimisation of territorial presence: new branch plan and branch resource mix. Intesa Sanpaolo boasts a network of branches
in Italy which has no equal in terms of scope and geographical coverage. Moreover, opportunities for additional
improvement of oversight and the territorial coverage model have been identified, rationalising the Bank's presence in
selected areas which show overlapping, and concentrating efforts on areas with less coverage. At the same time, a mix of
remote channels has been created, which complement the branch in providing service to customers, creating an effective
multi-channel experience consistent with the customer profile.

Upgrading of IT systems to support growth and risk management. In order to support growth in front-line activities, the
upgrading of branch applications is being promoted, enhancing and simplifying sales and reporting tools available to the
various network employees (i.e. Navigatore del Risparmio, ABC Platform and Sportello PIU’). Marketing efficacy has also been
strengthened by developing a multichannel marketing automation platform and cross-channel interaction methods.

An important step forward in the upgrading of IT systems used by the International Subsidiary Banks and Group companies is
their integration into a single IT platform, thus making it possible to achieve efficiency without sacrificing the effectiveness of
the systems currently used (i.e. personnel management, facility management).

Development of human resources of the Group. Intesa Sanpaolo is expanding its network of customer relationship managers,
retraining resources (specifically sales resources) and increasing motivation for all employees.

To expand the network of relationship managers in Italy and abroad, the focus is on targeted placements and resources freed
up by the measures for increasing organisational and process efficiency.

To support the internationalisation process, a plan for the gradual internationalisation of resources has been launched,
leveraging new hires, training and assignment of existing resources to professional positions in international subsidiaries.
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Projects for risk control and optimisation

- Credit granting and quality. In this phase of the economic cycle, the Group intends to move its focus to the selective
management of credit, privileging customers and/or sectors with a view to creating value, increasing the share of wallet for
creditworthy customers and those with medium risk by applying suitable pricing policies, acquiring new customers with a
significant outlook for growth and suitable balance sheet fundamentals, supporting small and medium-sized enterprises with
good market positioning.

- Oversight of IT systems with a view to containing risk. To ever-more accurately manage the risk related to operations of the
Bank, specific initiatives are continuing to upgrade current value and risk management instruments, as well as to optimise
systems supporting compliance and second and third level control activities performed by the risk management and
auditing functions.

Projects for liquidity optimisation

Launch of a project aimed at strengthening the technological framework supporting tactical and strategic monitoring and
management of interest rate risk and liquidity risk. An upgrade is planned of the current platform in use in order to fine-tune, also
through analytic consolidation of the portfolios of all Group companies, the centralised control processes (“normal course of
business”) and favour the development of simulation systems (“stress scenarios”), while increasing the flexibility and timeliness of
information and reporting flows to Corporate Bodies. The simplification of technological infrastructure and reduction in operating
costs are fundamental targets of the project.

As regards management of liquidity risk, the adjustment of the infrastructure and application structure is an indispensible process
for dealing with the increased complexity of the Group's operating scenario and to move up the introduction of
Basel Ill regulations.

As regards processes for monitoring interest rate risk, the project aims at expanding the capacity for measurement and
governance of this risk factor in order to optimise the economic capital allocated to it.

Projects for a stronger capital base

In 2011, a project for optimising capital absorption was launched, which identified two macro-categories of actions: 1) actions
relating to the calculation methods of capital requirements and reliability of data, and 2) actions relating to marketing strategies.
In 2011 the project focused on the first type of actions, identifying several levers for intervention, such as resolving issues in
guarantees for their eligibility under Basel Il and increasing the coverage of internal ratings. These actions were partially
implemented during the year, resulting in the achievement of initial benefits.

In 2012 the project is continuing with the completion of the first group of actions previously launched, and the development of
those relating to marketing strategies, which will result in targeted actions on specific clusters of customers (for example,
customers with negative EVA®), and updating of marketing policies, focusing on products with lower absorption of capital.

Main risks and uncertainties

The worsening of the macroeconomic context and high volatility of the financial markets required constant oversight of the
factors that enable the Bank to pursue sustainable profitability in the medium and long term: high liquidity, funding capacity, low
leverage and adequate capital base.

Liquidity has remained high: at the end of December 2011, available, unused eligible assets with the Central Banks (net of
haircuts) amounted to 37 billion euro. Moreover, as a result of funding from the European Central Bank, which amounted to 37.5
billion euro at the end of 2011, it was possible to optimise the cost of funding, substituting a portion of short-term
wholesale funding.

This balance remained at the same levels in the first few months of 2012 as well, as the additional amounts obtained offset
transactions which had expired in the meantime.

Overall, at the end of 2011, liquid assets (available eligible assets and eligible assets used as collateral) reached almost 100
billion euro.

In terms of funding, the branch network remains a stable, reliable source: 79% of direct deposits from banking business derives
from retail operations (285 billion euro). During the year, medium-/long-term retail placements were carried out for 29 billion euro
and medium-/long-term wholesale placements for 15 billion euro. These trends laid a solid foundation also for 2012, which shows
50% lower maturities than the average placements of the previous four years.

The leverage of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group continues to be at lower levels than its main competitors, while the ratio of risk-
weighted assets to total assets is among the highest, given the significant prevalence of retail banking activities within the Group.
Also the capital base has remained high: the Total Capital Ratio is 14.3%, Tier 1is 11.5% and Core Tier 1is 10.1%.

Capital adequacy is confirmed by the stress tests and additional analyses conducted by the European Banking Authority in the
second half of the year, which verified that the Group does not need additional capital, confirming Intesa Sanpaolo as one of the
most solid European banking groups.
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The difficult macroeconomic environment and high volatility of the financial markets make credit risk assessment, valuation of
financial instruments and the measurement of the recoverable amount of other assets more complex, and require a careful
analysis of the impact of such assessments on the solidity of the Company and on the going concern of its business operations as
a whole. While measurement criteria implemented are described in detail in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements, a
general outline of the processes which led to determination of the book value of balance sheet assets is shown below, noting that
no symptoms which could give rise to uncertainties regarding the going concern assumption have been detected in the asset and
financial structure or in the performance of operations.

With regard to credit risk, Intesa Sanpaolo has developed a set of instruments which ensures analytical control over the quality of
the loans to customers and financial institutions, and loans subject to country risk.

Risk measurement uses rating models that are differentiated according to the borrower’s segment (Corporate, Small Business,
Mortgage, Personal Loans, Sovereigns, Public sector entities, Financial institutions). These models make it possible to summarise
the credit quality of the counterparty in a measurement, the rating, which reflects the probability of default over a period of one
year, adjusted on the basis of the average level of the economic cycle. Statistical calibrations have rendered these ratings fully
consistent with those awarded by rating agencies, forming a single scale of reference.

Ratings and mitigating credit factors (guarantees, technical forms and covenants) play a fundamental role in loan granting and
monitoring process.

The rating system also includes a risk trend indicator, calculated on a monthly basis. It interacts with processes and procedures for
loan management and credit risk control and allows timely assessments when any anomalies arise or persist. The positions to
which the synthetic risk index attributes a high risk valuation, which is confirmed over time, are intercepted by the
Non-performing Loan Process. This process, supported by a dedicated electronic procedure, enables constant monitoring, largely
automatic, of all the phases for the management of anomalous positions. The positions which show an anomalous trend are
classified into different processes based on the risk level, including the automatic classification in non-performing assets.

The entire loan portfolio is also subject to a specific periodic review carried out by the competent central or peripheral structures
based on the credit line limits for each counterparty/economic group.

Directional control of credit risks is achieved through a portfolio model which summarises the information on asset quality in risk
indicators, including expected loss and capital at risk.

The expected loss is the product of exposure at default, probability of default (derived from the rating) and loss given default.

The expected loss represents the average of the loss statistical distribution, whereas the capital at risk is defined as the maximum
“unexpected” loss that the Group may incur with particular confidence levels. These indicators are calculated with reference to
the current status of the portfolio and on a dynamic basis, by determining the projected level, based on both the forecast
macro economic scenario and on stress scenarios.

The expected loss, transformed into “incurred loss” as indicated by IAS 39, is used in the collective assessment of loans, while
capital at risk is the fundamental element in the assessment of the Group's capital adequacy. Both indicators are also used in the
value-based management reporting system.

Non-performing financial assets include those loans which, due to events that occur after initial recognition, show objective
evidence of possible impairment.

For the classification of non-performing assets in the various risk categories (doubtful loans, substandard loans, restructured loans
and exposures expired and/or past due, in decreasing order of severity), the Group applies regulations issued by the Bank of Italy,
consistent with the regulations envisaged for such purpose by the Basel Accords and IAS/IFRS, supplemented by internal provisions
that establish criteria and rules for the transfer of loans to the various risk categories, including via automatic mechanisms.

In 2011, loan classification and measurement have been performed using conservative criteria, to promptly and correctly
identifying the impacts of the negative trend of the current economic context. As the crisis deepened and expanded at an
alarmingly fast pace, it became necessary to constantly review both the loans already showing signs of distress and those still free
from evidence of impairment. All categories of non-performing loans were assessed using the usual criteria of prudence, as
pointed out by the substantial average provisioning percentages for doubtful loans (approximately 64%) and substandard loans
(over 20%). In the area of performing loans, as a result of the worsening of the economic situation, especially in the last part of
the year, "collective" adjustments increased significantly, with hedging of the portfolio up from 0.7% to 0.8%. At the end of
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2011, performing loans as a whole were covered by provisioning of over 2.7 billion euro.

As a rule, most financial instruments have been classified as held for trading under the fair value option, or among available for
sale assets. Accordingly, these assets have been measured at their fair value, represented, for instruments quoted on active
markets, by the price of the last day of the period, as required by international accounting standards (effective market quotes).

On the other hand, financial instruments not quoted on an active market have been valued on the basis of prices or credit spreads
derived from official quotations of instruments having similar risk profiles, i.e. using the comparable approach. This approach
requires the identification of transactions and/or quotations on active markets pertaining to instruments that have a risk profile
comparable to that of the instrument to be measured. The calculation methodologies used reproduce prices of financial
instruments quoted on active markets and do not contain discretional parameters that significantly influence the final valuation.
Lastly, only for financial instruments not quoted on an active market and which could not be valued through the comparable
approach, valuation was based on various inputs, not all directly derived from observable market parameters, hence requiring
estimates and assumptions on the part of the valuator (mark-to-model approach).

In particular, with this approach, the financial instrument was measured by means of a pricing model based on specific
assumptions as to: (i) the development of future cash flows, which may be affected by future events that are assigned probabilities
on the basis of past experience or assumed behaviour, (ii) the level of specific input parameters not quoted on active markets, but
based as much as possible on information relating to prices and spreads observed in the market. Where such information was not
available, past data on the specific risk of the underlying asset or specialised reports were used (e.g. reports prepared by
Rating agencies or leading market players).

Considering this background, valuation methodologies have been constantly refined and updated, improving the models used for
level 3 valuation techniques for structured credit products, and carefully defining specific processes for managing "model risk”
leading to adjustments to valuations, especially in case of non observable or highly illiquid market parameters.

In the financial statements as at 31 December 2011, 58% of the fair value measurement of financial assets used the effective
market quotes method (level 1), 40% used the comparable approach (level 2) and only 2% used the mark-to-model approach
(level 3). Among the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss, most of the financial instruments (93%)
were measured using the comparable approach (level 2).

The Group's risk profile remained at relatively low levels - despite an increase mainly resulting from the volatility of spreads in the
ltalian government segment - in line with the Group's intention to continue to privilege the retail banking activity. The trend in
operational VaR, shown in the chart, reflects the development of the crisis in the sovereign markets of the Eurozone.

Market risks trend:
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For further information on credit risk and financial risk, see Part E of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements on risk
management. The same chapter also provides detailed information on the fair value measurement methods applied to financial
instruments and the various measurement levels, structured credit products, activities performed through Special Purpose Entities
(SPE), leveraged finance transactions, hedge fund investments and derivatives transactions with customers.

When preparing the 2011 Annual Report, as a result of the gradual deterioration of the economic situation, equity investments,
securities available for sale, securities classified among loans and receivables or held to maturity, and intangible assets and
goodwill were tested for impairment losses through analyses aimed at detecting the presence of impairment indicators and the
calculation of any write-downs.

In further detail, equity investments and securities available for sale were tested for impairment in order to assess whether there is
objective evidence to consider that the carrying value of such assets may not be fully recoverable by adopting the methods and
criteria illustrated in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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With specific reference to the sovereign debt crisis, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has limited exposure to the European countries
(Greece, Ireland and Portugal) for which the European Union and the International Monetary Fund have implemented financial
support plans. For further details, see the information reported above and, in more detail, the disclosures provided under Part E of
the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives, consisting of the asset-management and insurance portfolios and core deposits, for a total
of 3,243 million euro as at 31 December 2011, which have also been gradually amortised, were analysed in order to verify
whether there were impairment indicators. No critical factors were detected by these analyses, as indicated in detail in Part B of
the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, represented by the brand name (2,384 million euro as at 31 December 2011) and
goodwill (19,006 million euro as at 31 December 2011, prior to impairment testing), were analysed in order to verify whether
there were indicators that they had become impaired and thus whether the recoverable amounts of the various CGUs needed to
be re-determined.

As briefly indicated above, as a result of the effects of the current crisis on expected short/medium-term flows and the increase in
discounting rates, these analyses showed the need to recognise impairment losses on goodwill of the Banca dei Territori,
Corporate and Investment Banking, Eurizon Capital and International Subsidiary Banks CGUs and the subsidiary Bank of
Alexandria for a total amount of 10,338 million euro (10,233 million euro, net of the tax effect).

The underlying methodological criteria for these analyses are illustrated in detail in the specific section of the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements — Part B, to which reference should be made for further details.

*kkkkkk*k

In general, the information on risks and uncertainties the Intesa Sanpaolo Group is exposed to, briefly illustrated above, is
provided in this Report on operations and in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The risks associated with the trends in the global economy and financial markets are discussed in the introduction to the
Report on operations, in the chapter on the macroeconomic scenario and the following chapter on the forecast for 2011.
The assumptions on which our valuations and forecasts are based with regards to the verification of the values of intangible assets
and goodwill are described - as previously mentioned - in Part B of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements, in the
section on impairment tests.

Capital solidity is dealt with briefly in this introductory chapter to the Report on Operations, whereas a more detailed discussion
can be found in Part F of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Information on risks generally, and in particular on financial risks (credit risks and market risks), operational risks and the risks of
insurance companies are detailed in Part E of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

With regard to the going concern assumption, the Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo reaffirm that they have a reasonable certainty that
the company will continue in operational existence in the foreseeable future and consequently have prepared the financial
statements for 2011 on a going concern basis. The Directors have not detected in the asset and financial structure or in the
performance of operations any uncertainties casting doubt on the going concern assumption.
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The macroeconomic context and the banking system

The macroeconomic context

The economy

The economic context during 2011 was heavily affected by the gradual extension of the sovereign debt crisis in the Eurozone.
After Greece and Ireland, which had applied for support already in 2010, in April Portugal too was forced to apply for assistance
from the Eurozone and the International Monetary Fund. During the summer, the crisis deepened, with a huge leap in risk
premiums on the national debt of Italy and Spain, and to a lesser degree of Belgium and France. The phenomenon has been
associated with a sharp fall in the inflows of foreign capital to these countries, especially from the rest of the Eurozone.
The European authorities’ response to the crisis was sluggish and inadequate vis-a-vis market developments, with the exception of
the measures taken by the European Central Bank. The political authorities were unable to establish a credible and robust
safeguard mechanism to face up to the major contagion scenarios. On its part the European Central Bank, starting from last
autumn, has further strengthened its open market operations, broadening the range of assets that can be allocated to refinancing
operations, whose maturities have been extended also to one and three years. Furthermore, in agreement with the Federal
Reserve, the ECB has increased the offer of US dollar funding. A very effective move for stabilising the system was the two
offerings of 3-year funding in December and at the end of February. Moreover, starting from August, the ECB has extended its
debt-buying programme to Spanish and ltalian government bonds, facilitating the stabilisation of international investors’
portfolios. As to official rates, the main refinancing rate was increased to 1.50% from April to July; starting from October
however, the sudden worsening of the economic situation and the deepening financial crisis induced the Central Bank to cut the
benchmark rate twice, bringing it down to 1%.

The Eurozone’s economy continued to grow until the third quarter, albeit with a progressive slowdown in the GDP growth curve.
Average annual growth in 2011 was 1.4%, lower than that recorded in 2010. Growth was driven equally by internal demand and
net exports. However, the aggregate results hide strong geographical differences, due to the different degree of fiscal and
financial restriction suffered by the individual countries.

Italy belongs to the group of countries whose economic performance has taken the brunt of the crisis. Its GDP growth was 0.4%.
After a first half-year of moderate growth, the economy returned to contraction mode in the second half of the year. Domestic
demand was dampened by the effects of the fiscal austerity policy: between 2010 and 2011 no less than four major fiscal
manoeuvres were approved, with their full impact to be felt in 2011 and 2012. Real disposable income has contracted further.
The reduction in Italian household savings has prevented a decline in consumption. Domestic demand has been further weakened
by the decline in fixed investments and collective consumption. The overall performance of the economy was supported by the
improvement in net exports, in the context of an overall slowdown in international trade flows. Consumer price growth was
relatively strong (2.8%) due to upward pressures in commodity prices and to indirect tax and tariff rises.

Interest rates followed an uneven course, rising until July, when the 3-month Euribor peaked at 1.61% for, 61 basis points up
from year-end 2010. Thereafter, it started to decline reaching a minimum of 1.36% at year-end 2011.

The market for high-rated government securities followed a divergent path from other issuers’ securities, in a climate of high and
growing risk aversion. The 10-year spread, which in the early months of 2011 oscillated between 100 and 200bp, peaked at
555bp in November and was still above 500bp at the end of the year. Spread performance on the shorter maturities was similar,
albeit with a more marked improvement in December. The spread on two-year bonds dropped from 762 to 498bp between
25 November and the end of the year. The stronger recovery in the shorter maturities was driven by the expectation that the
ECB’s long-term liquidity auction would bolster the banks’ demand for government bonds.

The euro/US dollar exchange rate followed a similar course to that of interest rates, reaching a peak in the second quarter (1.48)
and slowly decreasing thereafter. The exchange rate at year end (1.30) was weaker compared to year-end 2010 (1.33).

The financial markets

During 2011, the main international stock markets experienced long phases of weakness and, especially in the Eurozone and the
Far East, sharp drops within an exceptionally volatile environment.

The growing tensions linked to the sovereign debt crisis, the indecisiveness of European policy-makers in identifying convincing
and effective solutions to the Eurozone'’s financial crisis, and the steady slowdown in the global macroeconomic environment have
generated a strong increase in risk aversion on stock markets throughout the year.

In the Eurozone, in particular, stock indices were severely affected by the deepening of the sovereign debt crisis, with particularly
heavy losses in the zone's peripheral stock markets, such as that of Italy.

The adoption of stringent tax policies, necessary to cut government deficits, triggered substantial downward correction to
economic growth forecasts for both 2011, and, in the longer term, 2012. Expected corporate profits in the Eurozone also
underwent significant downward revisions, in particular with regard to 2011.

Sovereign debt tensions did not spare the US stock market, after the lengthy debate on the Federal debt ceiling in August,
followed by the US government debt downgrade by S&P.

[t was only towards the close of the year that the main international indices rebounded partly from the trough reached in late
September, spurred by the expectation of more coordinated and effective actions by the EU political and monetary institutions in
managing the debt crisis. This notwithstanding, 2011 closed with a minus sign for almost all global stock indices, with the
exception of the US market.
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The S&P 500 index ended the year flat, after a 5% gain at the end of June. On the other hand, overall performance of the major
Eurozone stock markets was highly negative: DAX closed the year down 14.7%; the French CAC recorded a slightly higher loss
(-16.7%); the EuroStoxx index ended the year down 17.7%, after recording +2% at half-year. Outside the Eurozone, the UK stock
market decline on the previous year was far more moderate, with FTSE 100 closing the year at -5.5%.

The ltalian stock market showed worse performance than the major European markets, reflecting the growing concerns of
investors regarding the sustainability of Italian sovereign debt, economic stagnation and the high weight of financial securities on
the index. FTSE Italia All Shares and FTSE MIB closed 2011 with heavy losses (-24.3% and -25.2% respectively) after posting flat
mid-year results. The performance of mid-cap stocks was less negative than that of blue chip: the STAR index ended the year
down by 18.9%.

The corporate bond market also posted negative year-end results: it was affected across all sectors by growing risk aversion and a
confirmed flight-to-quality trend. Despite relatively sound corporate fundamentals and low insolvency rates, generalised spread
growths occurred in both the cash and the derivative sectors, with exceptional bouts of volatility and with the strongest negative
impact on the corporate securities of peripheral countries and on financial securities.

The cash segment was marked by better performance of the securities with the best credit ratings; moreover, industrial securities
outperformed financial securities. The speculative bond market also suffered the consequences of growing risk aversion with
lower performance than the investment grade bond sector, especially in the lower rating classes (CCC & lower rated).

The derivative segment also posted heavy losses: it was affected by the steep rise in insolvency risk hedging costs, and its overall
performance was lower than that of the cash segment. Among iTraxx (credit default swap) the worst performing indices were the
financial CDS, followed by Crossover CDS, which showed an inversion in spread curves typical of the phases of heightened
market tensions.

The emerging economies and markets

In 2011 the emerging economies slowed down compared with the previous year, while maintaining a growth rate above the
global average. According to the latest estimates, GDP growth in emerging countries was 6.2% in 2011 (+7.3% in 2010) against
a global average of 3.8%.

The emerging economies of Asia, with an estimated growth of 7.9% in 2011 (+9.5% in 2010) have remained the most dynamic,
followed by Latin American countries at 4.6%. In particular, CIS countries (Commonwealth of Independent States) reached an
estimated GDP growth rate of 4.5% in 2011 thanks to the positive cyclic phase of the commodity market. Due to their close
commercial and financial links with the advanced European economies, Central Eastern and South Eastern European countries
were particularly affected by the economic slowdown of their Western partners and by the volatility of their financial markets. In
most of the CEE/SEE countries, GDP growth is estimated to range between 1% and 3%, with Poland and the Slovak Republic
standing above the range and Croatia and Slovenia below it.

In the North African countries, the impact of the political turmoil experienced during the year on production activities and
financial inflows from abroad (from tourism, remittances and direct foreign investment) has led to an overall drop in economic
activity, especially in Egypt, where according to the latest estimates GDP fell by about 1% in 2011, and, albeit to a lesser degree,
in Tunisia. The interruption of oil production has been particularly severe in Libya. In Middle-eastern oil producing countries, less
affected by political tensions, public spending plans and salary and subsidy rises in response to popular unrest, coupled with the
still positive oil cycle, have boosted the economy, pushing estimated GDP growth to over 4%, a modest improvement on 2010.
The economic slowdown and the drop in commodity prices have favoured a gradual reduction of inflationary pressures.
The annualised inflation rate, after rising from 6.1% in December 2010 to 6.7% in June, slowed down to 5.2% in December.

The different performance of the real economy and inflation in 2011 has influenced the Monetary Authorities’ action. While in the
first half-year to counter inflationary pressures the Central Banks of Latin America and Asia were still following a restrictive policy,
in the second part of the year, growth concerns prevailed.

The action of the Central-Eastern European authorities was highly diversified. In Russia, the Central Bank launched in February a
bull cycle raising the reference interest rate from 7.75% to 8.25% but in December it lowered it again to 8%. In parallel, in Serbia
the Authorities, after raising rates at the end of 2010 and in the first months of 2011, cut the reference rate in various stages from
June to December bringing it down to 9.75%. In Romania, where inflation stood within the target 2% - 4% range, in November
the Central Bank cut rates to 6%. On the other hand, in Hungary the monetary authority raised rates in both the first half of the
year, to 6%, and in the last six months, to 7% to curb inflationary pressures caused by exchange rate depreciation.

In Egypt, in November the Central Bank raised the reference interest rate by 100 basis points, bringing the overnight lending rate
t0 10.25% and that on deposits to 9.25%, mainly to support the exchange rate and stem the currency reserves drain.

The stock markets of emerging countries experienced bear pressures starting from the second quarter. Year end results show an
overall drop of 14.9%, outperformed by the US S&P index (unchanged), but with lower losses than those posted by Eurostoxx
(-17.7%) and Nikkei (-17.3%). The decline in stock prices has occurred across the board: the worst losses were recorded in Egypt
(-48.9%), affected by political uncertainties, and in Ukraine (-45.5%), where strained relations with the International Monetary
Fund (on lending issues) and with Russia (on the price of gas) have created tensions on the financial markets.

In parallel, bond market spreads widened. EMBI+ (Emerging Markets Bond Index) composite spread rose by 129 basis points,
closing the year at 377 basis points, down however from its peak of 440 basis points in early October. The widening of the spread
was greater for EMBI+ Europa, affected by the fears of a spread of the debt crisis of some Eurozone countries. The cost of
hedging default risk (CDS) increased in all the emerging countries; in this case too, the strongest increases were recorded in
Croatia, Poland, Russia, Ukraine and Egypt.

Exchange rates displayed high volatility. In the first half of the year, appreciation trends prevailed, driven by the relatively high
yields offered by domestic financial instruments and by the favourable economic outlook. From the third quarter strong
downward pressures set in, largely as a result of the fear that the mature economies’ slowdown and market turmoil would also be
reflected in the emerging areas.

This reversal was most acutely felt in Central and Eastern Europe. The Hungarian forint depreciated 12.5% against the euro.
This result was influenced by a strong need for foreign funding and the relatively low coverage offered by currency reserves, but
also by the adoption of a tax policy and other measures, which were received unfavourably by market investors. In Ukraine, to
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defend the national currency the monetary authority intervened on the market for substantial amounts and pushed the money
market rates to 20%.

The different economic and market dynamics are reflected in the judgments of rating agencies. On one side, Bosnia, Hungary
(which lost its investment grade rating) and Slovenia were downgraded, on the other Serbia, the Czech Republic and Lithuania
were upgraded, in recognition of their improved public accounts and external performance. The concerns as to the impact of the
current political unrest has led to the downgrading of several MENA countries (Middle East and North Africa), including Egypt.

The Italian banking system

Rates and spreads

Along 2011 bank rates followed an upward trend, first as a consequence of the hikes in money rates and ECB reference rates,
and later reflecting the increase in risk premiums on ltalian government securities.

Starting from the summer, the sovereign debt crisis led to a funding squeeze for banks, restricting their access to wholesale and
medium-/long-term debt markets, where the availability of funding contracted and its cost increased. For time deposits and
bonds, the marginal cost of funding shot up considerably. The rate paid to households on new time deposits rose over 12 months
by an impressive 2.15 percent, while the rate on new repurchase agreements with households and businesses came close to 3%
at year-end, up 1.4 percent over its 2010 year-end value. For new fixed-rate bond issues, the average rate curve partially reflected
the tensions that affected the wholesale markets. On the other hand, the average interest rate on current accounts only rose
slightly, with more marked increases for the accounts of non-financial companies. The rise in the marginal cost of funding was
very gradually reflected on the average rates on existing deposits.

The rising cost of funding led to the review of loan rates carried out during 2011. The rate on new loans to businesses increased,
in annual average terms by almost one percent, reaching their three-year record high at the end of 2011. From the summer
onward, spurred by the spillover to the economy of the mammoth increase in sovereign debt risk premiums, rates on new loans to
businesses rose above the Eurozone average after a long period in which below-average values had benefited Italian borrowers.
The rates on new home-purchase loans to households also rose, albeit more gradually. Rates on current loans were also affected,
albeit very gradually, by the rises on new loans. The average rate on loans to households and non-financial companies rose slowly
to levels last seen in mid 2009, reflecting especially the rate hikes on short-term loans to non-financial companies.

Margins on lending and deposit collecting activities remained moderate, but showed some signs of improvement. The upward
revision of loan interest rates set against the slower increase in the average cost of current funding, especially in current accounts
slightly widened the spread between the average rates on current loans and on funding in the second half of 2011, picking up
from the lows which had characterised the whole first half of the year (2.22% in the last six months of 2011 compared with
2.09% in the first half). However, in annual average terms, the spread remained almost unchanged (2.16% against an average
2.15% in 2010). An improvement was however recorded in the spread on funding, measured on short-term interest rates, which
in the third quarter of 2011 rose to levels last seen in early 2009, to narrow down again in the last part of the year
(the mark-down' on the 1-month Euribor rate rose to an annual average of 0.68% in 2011, from 0.27% in 2010). Conversely, the
mark-up” on the 1-month Euribor on the other hand underwent a strong rebound in the last quarter of 2011, driven by the
revision of bank rates in response to the exceptional rise in spreads on Italian government debt (3.86% in the last quarter of 2011,
compared with 3.21% in the first nine months of the year). However, in annual average terms, the mark-up fell slightly below the
average recorded in 2010 (3.37% in 2011, 3.46% in 2010). Thanks to the improvements in contribution margins recorded during
the year, the short-term spread gradually widened, coming close to 4.7% in December and closing the year with an annual
average in excess of 4% (4.69% in December, 4.06% was the 2011 average, up from 3.73% in 2010).

Loans

The year opened with a strong pickup in loans to non-financial companies, driven by the demand for short-term loans to meet
working capital requirements. The good performance of short-term lending continued into November, followed by a sudden
slowdown in December. Medium-/long-term lending to non-financial companies also had a rebound in 2011 from the stagnation
experienced in 2010. However, growth was modest, reflecting the sluggish demand for investment loans, and the upward trend
slowed down in the second half of the year. Taken overall, loans to non-financial companies showed a good growth rate in
annual average terms, after the slight contraction recorded in 2010.

During the year, a slight slowdown was also experienced in loans to households, partly as a consequence of the drop in home
purchase mortgage loans. Nevertheless, the growth in loans to households remained on good levels, starting to slowdown before
loans to companies, but with a more gradual contraction according to the data corrected for securitisations.

In comparison with the rest of Europe, the growth of the Italian banks’ lending activity was stronger than the Eurozone average, a
trend present since 2009, both for loans to households and for loans to non-financial companies.

Overall, loans to households and businesses continued to grow at a fair pace, indicating that, at least up to October, the impact
on the economy of the tensions on sovereign debt and of bank funding conditions remained limited. However, at year-end the
growth trend in bank loans to the private sector underwent a slowdown compared with the average in the first ten months of
2011. This change could well have been influenced by the recommendation issued by the European Banking Authority (EBA),
which asked 31 of the main banks in EU countries, including four Italian banks, to strengthen their capitalisation by June 2012, to
counter the risks of sovereign debt. The EBA also asked the banks to reach a 9% Core Tier ratio, including a temporary capital
buffer. The EBA’s recommendation, issued at a time when the sovereign debt crisis was peaking and the Italian economy was
falling back into recession has prompted further tightening of the credit offer, already under strain due to the banks’ funding

' Difference between the one-month Euribor and interest rates on household and company current accounts.
? Difference between the interest rates applied to households and companies on loans with maturity under one year and the one-month Euribor.
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difficulties. The measures adopted in early December by the ECB to boost bank lending and money market liquidity have warded
off a stronger credit crunch. Already in January 2012, surveys on credit access conditions among companies have shown a slight
improvement in opinions.

Direct deposits

2011 was a complex year for the Italian bank’s deposit-collection activity, not only due to the impact on the cost of funding
caused by the steep rise in risk premiums on sovereign debt, but also as a consequence of the diminished willingness of bank
counterparties and institutional investors to supply liquidity and medium-long term funding on the international wholesale
market. Once again, the Italian banks were able to withstand the heavy market dysfunctions through direct deposit from domestic
retail customers, coupled with careful and cautious management of their liquidity.

However, as expected, a steady slowdown in deposits was experienced, especially due to the weakening of current accounts,
while bank bonds made a recovery, thanks to the intense issuance activity performed in the first half of 2011 but also to the
stability of domestic bond placements in the second half-year despite the almost complete shutdown of wholesale markets. In
2011, Italian banks’ bond issues exceeded repayments by 102 billion euro: of these, almost 46 billion euro were issued in
December, and consisted of public-guarantee backed bonds placeable through the Eurosystem. Thanks to these positive results,
the trend in Italian bank bonds remained substantially better than the Eurozone average, marked by stagnating performance.

As to deposits, stagnation continued all along 2011, with a slight drop in annual average terms. On the bright side, consumer
household deposits held up constantly, albeit with moderate growth rates. Aggregate deposit performance was negatively
affected by the contraction in current accounts, which deepened slightly in the last quarter, presumably reflecting the decline in
the deposits of non-financial companies. The weakness recorded in current accounts was countered by the success of time
deposits, which gained strong momentum in the last quarter of the year, with two-digit growth rates. Starting from July 2011, as
market funding difficulties increased, Italian banks made increasing recourse to the Eurosystem to meet their refinancing needs.
According to the Bank of Italy’s financial report, as at December 2011 the total amount of refinancing operations was more than
four times higher than the value at the end of 2010.

Assets under management

As regards assets under administration, the year saw a recovery in debt securities deposits of households and businesses (debt
securities at nominal value and inclusive of bank bonds). In particular, the growth in debt securities under custody on behalf of
consumer households accelerated further in the last quarter of 2011, reaching the highest level since the first half of 2009.
The performance of securities deposits of non financial companies and family businesses was also good. These trends confirm the
current re-composition of household portfolios in the direction of higher-yield instruments, on the one hand, and the positive
contribution from bank customers in absorbing bond issues and government securities, on the other.

With regard to assets under management, during 2011 the ltalian market for open-ended mutual funds was marked by negative
performance of the balance between subscriptions and redemptions, due to the heavy outflows from Italian mutual funds and, in
the second half of the year, also from foreign mutual funds. On an annual basis, the total funding deficit of open-ended mutual
funds amounted to 33 billion euro. Outflows were recorded across investment categories, the hardest hit being liquidity and bond
funds. As a consequence of these outflows and of the negative performance of financial markets, the total stock managed by the
open-ended mutual funds industry dropped to 419 billion euro at the end of 2011, down from the 460 billion euro registered in
December 2010.

Life insurance production fell 27.8% percent in 2011 compared with the previous year, with slightly less than 53 billion euro of
collected premiums. The slowdown in production was experienced across the board, including both low-risk products (-27.4% for
Class | policies) and those with a higher financial component (-22% for “linked” policies). In terms of breakdown by distribution
channel, in 2011 the share of premiums collected through bank and post offices remained stable at slightly more than 70.4% of
total premiums (with more than 37 billion euro), while the remaining 26% off the market was roughly equally split between
agents and financial advisors (with about 7 billion euro collected by each distribution channel).

Forecast for the whole 2012

2012 promises to be a year of stagnation for the Eurozone. Several countries, including Italy, will experience a phase of recession
in their economic cycle. Italy’s GDP is expected to contract by at least one percent, and signs of recovery are predicted to set in
only in the second half of the year. The weak economic cycle and financial tensions will prompt expansionary monetary policy,
with official interest rates at low levels in historical terms and an easing of liquidity conditions. The progress already seen in risk
premiums is expected to strengthen, thanks to the decrease in refinancing risk and improved public finances. However, there will
continue to be various crisis hotbeds, with the result that temporary flare-ups of tensions cannot be ruled out.

In emerging countries, economic growth is expected to slow down further. Projections by the foremost centres call for a growth
rate slightly above 5%. Asian economies are expected to show growth rates of around 7%, only slightly slower than in 2011. In
Latin America and the CIS countries, growth is projected to fall within a range of 3-4%, depending on the phase of the related
slowdown in the commodities cycle. The slowdown of growth in the euro area will result in a considerable decline in GDP growth
rates in CEE and SEE countries, where the combined average value for the two areas is expected to be around 1%. CEE countries
are especially exposed to the dynamics of the manufacturing cycle in major European countries. SEE countries will also be affected
by the ongoing process of adjustment between current account imbalances and private-sector indebtedness.

In the MENA (Middle East and North Africa) countries with diversified exports the growth prospects appear brighter compared to
2011, albeit with margins of uncertainty, for instance in Egypt, linked to the political transition process still under way. In oil-
producing countries, the slowdown in the commodities cycle will result in more moderate growth rates.
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The operating scenario in the Italian banking industry will remain strongly influenced by the development of the sovereign debt
crisis. Only a considerable, lasting reduction in the risk premium on Italian debt will result in a gradual normalisation of the cost of
bank funding and, on trickle-down basis, loan rates, consistent with the accommodating monetary policy conditions and low level
of market rates. Conversely, it is expected that lending rates will continue to be affected by detrimental funding conditions,
although moderated by the extraordinary measures implemented by the Eurosystem in order to stimulate credit and provide
liquidity to the money market. Loan trends will also be influenced by the recessionary phase of the Italian economy and the
restrictive tax measures affecting households. Customer deposits will see a lively competitive environment, continuing to reflect
the shift in investors’ portfolios towards higher-yield investments, such as time deposits and government bonds.
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Economic results

General aspects

As usual, a condensed reclassified income statement has been prepared to give a more immediate understanding of results for the

year. To enable consistent comparison, the figures for the previous quarters of 2011 and 2010 income statement figures are

restated, where necessary, to account for components classified under non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations and changes in the scope of consolidation.

The restated financial statements are obtained by making appropriate adjustments to historical data to reflect the significant

effects of such changes retroactively. Any differences due to the possibility of choosing between different options provided for by

IAS/IFRS or arising from the use of different methods or parameters for measurement of assets and liabilities are not considered, as

they are deemed irrelevant. Lastly, please note that no intragroup relations are netted where their amount is not significant.

Breakdowns of restatements and reclassifications performed are provided in separate tables included in the attachments to the

Consolidated financial statements, as also required by Consob in its Communication 6064293 of 28 July 2006.

The restatement of the 2010 figures involved the line-by-line consolidation of Intesa Vita, Banca Monte Parma, Banca Sara (subject

to a total spin-off to Banca Fideuram and Sanpaolo Invest Sim in 2011) and the branches acquired from Banca Monte dei Paschi di

Siena, the sale of Cassa di Risparmio della Spezia and the branches to Crédit Agricole and, lastly, the sale of Fideuram Bank Suisse.

The 2011 figures have been restated to include the results before the acquisition of Banca Monte Parma and Banca Sara (spun off,

as mentioned above) and to exclude the contribution before the disposal of branches sold to Crédit Agricole and Fideuram Bank

Suisse during the year.

Reclassifications and aggregations are as follows:

— dividends on shares classified as assets available for sale and as assets held for trading have been reallocated to Profits (Losses)
on trading;

— the portions of Net interest income, Dividend and similar income, Net fee and commission income and Profits (Losses) on
trading related to the insurance business have been recorded under a specific caption, and the effect of the adjustment of the
technical reserve — with respect to the component attributable to policyholders — associated with the impairment of securities
available for sale held in the portfolios of the Group’s insurance companies was also attributed to this caption;

— differentials on derivatives, classified to the trading portfolio and contracted to hedge transactions in foreign currencies, have
been allocated among Net interest income owing to the close correlation;

— fair value adjustments in hedge accounting (caption 90) have been reallocated to Profits (Losses) on trading;

— profits and losses on disposal or repurchase of financial assets available for sale and of financial liabilities have been
reallocated to Profits (Losses) on trading;

—  Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value are reallocated to Profits (Losses) on trading;

— the recoveries of expenses, taxes and duties have been subtracted from Administrative expenses, instead of being included
among Other operating income;

—  Profits and losses on disposal or repurchase of loans are posted in Net adjustments to loans;

— Net impairment losses on other financial activities (caption 130d), related to guarantees, commitments and credit derivatives,
have been recognised under Net adjustments to loans;

— the reversal in time value on loans is recorded in Net interest income instead of being allocated to Net adjustments to loans,
since the phenomenon derives directly from the application of the amortised cost criterion in the absence of changes in
expected future flows. A consistent approach is used for the time value of Employee termination indemnities and Allowances
for risks and charges;

— net impairment losses of property, equipment and intangible assets have been reclassified from Net adjustments to property,
equipment and intangible assets — which therefore solely express depreciation and amortisation — to Net impairment losses on
other assets, which also includes Net impairment losses on financial assets available for sale, investments held to maturity and
other financial activities;

— impairment losses on Greek government bonds and the bonds of other Greek public entities were recognised to Net
impairment losses on other assets, regardless of their balance sheet classification (Financial assets available for sale or loans);

—  Profits (Losses) on disposal of investments in associates and companies subject to joint control and Profits (Losses) on disposal
of investments are recorded in Profits (Losses) on investments held to maturity and on other investments, after the deduction
of net income from investments carried at equity which is posted in a specific caption in Operating income;

— Taxes on income from continuing operations, to which the portions of deductible interest expense associated with the
application of settlement procedures for the tax dispute, along with the amounts of the related fines, recognised among Other
operating expenses, have been attributed;

— Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives, which have been reclassified from Personnel expenses, Administrative
expenses and, to a lesser extent, other captions of the income statement to a separate caption;

— the Effects of purchase price allocation, net of the tax effect, are indicated in a specific caption. They represent adjustments

and any impairment to financial assets and liabilities and property, equipment and intangible assets which were measured at
fair value as provided for by IFRS 3.
Lastly, it should be noted that effective from the 2011 Financial statements, in the interest of providing a more accurate
representation of ordinary operations, Goodwill impairment, which includes the considerable impairment losses on intangible
assets, is presented, net of tax, among “non-current” income components, as was already the case for the Effect of purchase
price allocation (net of tax).
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Reclassified income statement
(millions of euro)

2011 2010 Changes

amount %
Net interest income 9,780 9,700 80 0.8
Dividends and profits (losses) on investments carried at equity 72 29 43
Net fee and commission income 5,466 5,652 -186 -3.3
Profits (Losses) on trading 920 460 460
Income from insurance business 540 654 -114 -17.4
Other operating income (expenses) 7 34 -27 -79.4
Operating income 16,785 16,529 256 1.5
Personnel expenses -5,419 -5,528 -109 -2.0
Other administrative expenses -3,080 -3,174 -94 -3.0
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -638 -602 36 6.0
Operating costs -9,137 -9,304 -167 -1.8
Operating margin 7,648 7,225 423 5.9
Net provisions for risks and charges -218 -366 -148 -40.4
Net adjustments to loans -4,243 -3,170 1,073 33.8
Net impairment losses on other assets -1,069 -95 974
Profits (Losses) on investments held to maturity and on other investments -99 273 -372
Income (Loss) before tax from continuing operations 2,019 3,867 -1,848 -47.8
Taxes on income from continuing operations 910 -1,372 2,282
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -552 -72 480
Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) -321 -396 -75 -18.9
Goodwill impairment (net of tax) -10,233 - 10,233 -
Income (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations - 694 -694
Minority interests -13 -16 -3 -18.8
Net income (loss) -8,190 2,705 -10,895

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.
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Quarterly development of the reclassified income statement

(millions of euro)

2011 2010
Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First

quarter quarter quarter quarter quarter quarter quarter quarter
Net interest income 2,541 2,479 2,368 2,392 2,408 2,453 2,442 2,397
Dividends and profits (losses) on investments
carried at equity 5 26 34 7 11 -5 26 -3
Net fee and commission income 1,339 1,322 1,410 1,395 1,517 1,328 1,404 1,403
Profits (Losses) on trading 173 -74 541 280 120 126 -4 218
Income from insurance business 205 50 165 120 126 173 151 204
Other operating income (expenses) 2 -3 -3 11 14 -4 2 22
Operating income 4,265 3,800 4,515 4,205 4,196 4,071 4,021 4,241
Personnel expenses -1,348 -1,324 -1,375 -1,372 -1,430 -1,364 -1,365 -1,369
Other administrative expenses -841 -752 -766 =721 -898 -751 -786 -739
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible
assets -177 -159 -153 -149 -170 -142 -148 -142
Operating costs -2,366 -2,235 -2,294 -2,242 -2,498 -2,257 -2,299 -2,250
Operating margin 1,899 1,565 2,221 1,963 1,698 1,814 1,722 1,991
Net provisions for risks and charges -106 -18 -80 -14 -148 -32 -100 -86
Net adjustments to loans -2,043 -695 -823 -682 -895 -713 -808 -754
Net impairment losses on other assets -360 -635 -57 -17 -47 -5 -38 -5
Profits (Losses) on investments held
to maturity and on other investments -139 7 19 14 262 - 1 10
Income (Loss) before tax from
continuing operations -749 224 1,280 1,264 870 1,064 777 1,156
Taxes on income from continuing operations 976 894 -464 -496 -280 -416 -315 -361
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit
incentives -53 -483 -12 -4 -18 -1 -27 -16
Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) -67 -83 -85 -86 -102 -102 -100 -92
Goodwill impairment (net of tax) -10,233 - - - - - - -
Income (Loss) after tax from discontinued
operations - - - - 3 - 663 28
Minority interests 7 -25 22 -17 32 -25 4 -27
Net income (loss) -10,119 527 741 661 505 510 1,002 688

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

2011 was characterised by the sovereign debt crisis, which influenced the performance of the economy at a global level, in the
Eurozone and especially in Italy. In fact, after modest growth early in the year, Italy’s economic performance slowed and then fell
into a recession in the second half of the year.

Within this scenario, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group achieved appreciable operating results through attentive management of its
lending and deposit collection operations and strict operating cost control. Those results led to an increase in the operating
margin of 5.9%, from 7,225 million euro to 7,648 million euro. Nonetheless, due to the considerable impairment losses required
by the gradual deterioration of credit quality and the impairment of Greek government bonds held in the portfolio, income before
tax from continuing operations came to 2,019 million euro, down by nearly 48% compared to the previous year.

Affected by non-recurring income and charges of considerable amounts, and in particular the effects of the tax realignment of
recognised intangible assets and, most significantly, the impairment losses on intangible assets with indefinite useful lives brought
on by the challenging macroeconomic scenario, the net loss amounted to 8,190 million euro, compared to a net income of 2,705
million euro in 2010.

Operating income

In 2011, the Group's operating income amounted to 16,785 million euro, up by 1.5% compared to the previous year.

The trend that emerges from the comparison was the result of the increase in profits on trading and, to a lesser extent, net
interest income, only partly softened by the decline in fee and commission income and income from insurance business.

In further detail, operating income came to 4,265 million euro in the fourth quarter of 2011, up by 12.2% compared to the third
quarter. This improvement may be ascribed to the recovery of trading operations and income from insurance business,
accompanied by a moderate increase in net interest income and net fee and commission income.
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Net interest income
(millions of euro)

2011 2010 Changes Quarterly development
amount % of net interest income
Relations with customers 11,922 10,589 1,333 12.6
Securities issued -5,526 -5,239 287 5.5
Differentials on hedging derivatives 1,209 2,279 -1,070  -47.0 2,541
Customer dealing 7.605 7.629 -24 -0.3
Financial assets held for trading 624 700 -76 -10.9 2479
Investments held to maturity 108 124 -6 -12.9 2,407 2453
Financial assets available for sale 758 477 281 58.9 2,408 2,392 S 68
Financial assets 1,490 1,301 189 a5 Y :
Relations with banks -115 125 -240
Non-performing assets 881 737 144 19.5
Other net interest income -81 -92 -1 -12.0
2 2 2 2 p - p p
Net interest income 9,780 9,700 80 0.8 S N B 3 = B = 3

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

Net interest income resumed growth after the gradual decline that began in the fourth quarter of 2010. Net interest income stood
at 9,780 million euro at the end of 2011, up 0.8% compared to 2010. Interbank market rates showed signs of recovery compared
to the minimum levels recorded in the previous year, resulting in an increase in the mark-down, only partly offset by a narrowing
of the margin on loans.

Net interest from operations with customers, which also includes interest on securities issued and differentials on hedging
derivatives, stood at 7,605 million euro, essentially stable compared to 2010, despite higher interest expense on securities issued.
The decrease in hedging differentials was offset by the positive performance of margins on relations with customers.

Interest on financial assets increased 14.5% owing to the growth of assets available for sale (+281 million euro), which contained
the negative effects of the decline in financial assets held for trading (-76 million euro) and investments held to maturity (-16
million euro).

Net interest on the interbank market reported a negative balance of 115 million euro, compared to net interest income of 125

million euro in 2010, as exposure to that market, and to the ECB in particular, increased beginning in the third quarter.
(millions of euro)

2011 Changes %

Fourth Third Second First
quarter quarter quarter quarter (A/B) (B/C) (C/D)

A) B) © D)
Relations with customers 3,164 3,105 2,895 2,758 1.9 7.3 5.0
Securities issued -1,423 -1,381 -1,395 -1,327 3.0 -1.0 5.1
Differentials on hedging derivatives 238 220 318 433 8.2 -30.8 -26.6
Customer dealing 1,979 1,944 1,818 1,864 1.8 6.9 -2.5
Financial assets held for trading 146 167 164 147 -12.6 1.8 11.6
Investments held to maturity 26 28 26 28 -7.1 7.7 -7.1
Financial assets available for sale 256 201 162 139 27.4 24.1 16.5
Financial assets 428 396 352 314 8.1 12.5 12.1
Relations with banks -81 -54 9 1 50.0 -18.2
Non-performing assets 231 217 21 222 6.5 2.8 -5.0
Other net interest income -16 -24 -22 -19 -33.3 9.1 15.8
Net interest income 2,541 2,479 2,368 2,392 2.5 4.7 -1.0

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

Net interest income recovered by 2.5% in the fourth quarter compared to the third, which had already seen an improvement
compared to previous quarters. This was due to the recovery of spreads, which was reflected in an improvement in the
component related to operations with customers and net interest income on financial assets. Net interest income in the fourth
quarter was the highest of the last eight quarters.
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(millions of euro)

2011 2010 Changes 5
Business areas
amount %
Banca dei Territori 5,820 5,881 -61 -1.0 Banca dei Territori 58.1%
Corporate and Investment Banking 2,318 2,253 65 29
International Subsidiary Banks 1,736 1,665 71 4.3 Corporate and
. Investment Banking 23.2%
Eurizon Capital 2 1 1
Banca Fideuram 141 124 17 13.7
Total business areas 10,017 9,924 93 0.9
_ B International Subsidiary
Corporate Centre 237 224 13 5.8 Banks 17.3%
Intesa Sanpaolo Group 9,780 9,700 80 0.8

\\ Eurizon Capital -

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business ‘

1 0
unit constituents. Banca Fideuram 1.4%

Banca dei Territori, which accounts for 58% of business area results, recorded a 1% decrease in net interest income, mainly due
to the lesser contribution by loans to customers caused by an increase in market rates not fully transferred to lending rates. This
effect was partly offset by an increase in the mark-down on deposits, despite the presence of more limited benefits of the hedging
of demand loans and deposits. By contrast, increases in net interest income were reported by the International Subsidiary Banks
(+4.3%) and Corporate and Investment Banking (+2.9%). The latter was mainly attributable to the increase in average volumes of
loans driven by the operations of the factoring and leasing product companies, structured finance and global banking and
transactions, in addition to the positive contribution of the assets relating to Banca IMI's HFT & AFS portfolio, which benefited
from higher interest and active management of the finance and capital management segment, as well as the increase in average
spreads for public entities. A positive contribution was also provided by Banca Fideuram (+13.7%), owing to the increase in
interest income generated by the rise in rates early in the year, particularly on the floating-rate securities portfolio, which allowed
an improvement in the spread between yields and the cost of funding.

Dividends and profits on investments carried at equity

In 2011 dividends and profits on investments carried at equity came to 72 million euro and were attributable to the dividend on
the investment in the Bank of Italy and the valuation of associates, an area in which positive performances were shown by SGR
(Societa Gestione per il Realizzo), Bank of Qingdao and Penghua. The item showed an increase compared to the 29 million euro in
profits reported in the previous year. The dividends relate to companies not consolidated line-by-line. Those on shares held for
trading and securities available for sale were reclassified to Profits (Losses) on trading.

Net fee and commission income
(millions of euro)

2011 2010 Changes Quarterly development of net fee
amount % and commission income
Guarantees given 378 342 36 10.5
Collection and payment services 345 344 1 0.3
Current accounts 872 897 -25 -2.8
Credit and debit cards 465 454 11 2.4
Commercial banking activities 2,060 2,037 23 1.1
Dealing and placement of securities 386 446 -60  -135 1,517
Currency dealing 57 56 1 1.8
Portfolio management 1,179 1,238 -59 -4.8
Distribution of insurance products 667 763 -96 -12.6 1,403 1,404 1395 1,410
Other 110 92 18 19.6
Management, dealing and consultancy 1328 1322 1,339
activities 2,399 2,595 -196 -7.6 '
Other net fee and commission income 1,007 1,020 -13 -1.3 I I I
2 2 2 2 s s pa ha
Net fee and commission income 5,466 5,652 -186 -3.3 = N @ 3 = N @ 3

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

Net fee and commission income, which makes up approximately one-third of operating income, came to 5,466 million euro,
down 3.3% on 2010.

Fees and commissions on commercial banking activities increased by 1.1%. The positive performance of fee and commission
income on guarantees given and on debit and credit cards more than offset the downturn in commissions on current accounts,
partly attributable to the promotion of modular accounts with more favourable conditions for customers.

Overall, management, dealing and consultancy activities generated net fee and commission income of 2,399 million euro, against
2,595 million euro recorded in 2010. The more modest growth of other management and dealing commissions was not sufficient
to offset the decline in fee and commission income from the distribution of insurance products (-96 million euro), due to a drop in
new business written, financial product dealing and placement (-60 million euro), relating to the decision to privilege the
placement of own bond issues, and individual and collective portfolio management schemes (-59 million euro), as a consequence
of the decrease in operations with customers and the reduced volume of assets under management.

Other net fee and commission income, whose key factors are represented by commissions on loans issued and on factoring
services, showed a decline of 13 million euro compared to 2010, falling to 1,007 million euro.
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(millions of euro)

2011 Changes %

Fourth Third Second First
quarter quarter quarter quarter (A/B) (B/C) (C/D)

(A) (B) (@] (D)
Guarantees given 98 96 88 96 2.1 9.1 -8.3
Collection and payment services 89 89 90 77 - -1.1 16.9
Current accounts 227 217 216 212 4.6 0.5 1.9
Credit and debit cards 120 120 118 107 - 1.7 10.3
Commercial banking activities 534 522 512 492 2.3 2.0 4.1
Dealing and placement of securities 83 82 115 106 1.2 -28.7 8.5
Currency dealing 15 14 14 14 7.1 - -
Portfolio management 269 291 305 314 -7.6 -4.6 -2.9
Distribution of insurance products 154 147 162 204 4.8 9.3 -20.6
Other 24 26 34 26 -7.7 -23.5 30.8

Management, dealing and consultancy

activities 545 560 630 664 -2.7 -11.1 -5.1
Other net fee and commission income 260 240 268 239 8.3 -10.4 12.1
Net fee and commission income 1,339 1,322 1,410 1,395 1.3 -6.2 1.1

Figures restated, where necessary, on a consistent basis, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

On a quarterly basis, net fee and commission income in the fourth quarter of 1,339 million euro was up 1.3% compared to the
third quarter, chiefly due to the increase in fees and commissions on commercial banking activities, and especially fees and
commissions on current accounts (+4.6%), owing in part to the effect typically seen at year-end, yet to a significantly lesser extent
than in previous years, associated with fees on operations that exceed the allowance, and in other net fee and commission income
(+8.3%). By contrast, the decline in fees and commissions on management, dealing and consultancy activities (-2.7%) was
primarily a result of the negative performance by fees and commissions on portfolio management schemes (-7.6%) due to adverse
market conditions.
(millions of euro)

2011 2010 Changes
Business areas
amount %
Banca dei Territori 3,234 3,370 -136 -4.0 )
Corporate and Investment Banking 1,053 1,029 24 2.3 Banca dei Territori 57.2%
. . Corporate and
International Subsidiary Banks 572 576 -4 -0.7 Investment Banking 18.6%
Eurizon Capital 243 261 -18 -6.9
Banca Fideuram 556 543 13 2.4

International Subsidiary

Total business areas 5,658 5,779 -121 -2.1 Banks 10.1%

Corporate Centre -192 -127 65 51.2

Intesa Sanpaolo Group 5,466 5,652 -186 -3.3 I.

Eurizon Capital 4.3%

Banca Fideuram 9.8%

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business
unit constituents.

By business sector, the most significant decline in absolute terms may be attributed to Banca dei Territori (-4%), which accounts
for 57% of operating units’ fee and commission income. In further detail, there were decreases in fees and commissions on asset
management and bancassurance products, up-front fees and commissions on bond placements and fees and commissions on
current accounts. A downtrend was reported by Eurizon Capital (-6.9%), which was penalised by the negative performance effect
and redemptions of Italian mutual funds and retail portfolio management schemes, resulting in a reduction in the volume of assets
under management, as well as the greater weight of insurance products under management mandate compared to retail funds
and management schemes. The fee and commission income reported by the International Subsidiary Banks showed a more
moderate decline by amount (-4 million euro). Conversely, a good performance in net fee and commission income was recorded
by Corporate and Investment Banking Division (+2.3%), due to higher income related to commercial banking services, and
particularly loans, guarantees and factoring, while investment banking fees and commissions remained stable, as well as by
Banca Fideuram (+2.4%), owing to the increase in recurring fees and commissions related to the development of average assets
under management, as well as the reduction of fee and commission expense paid to the network of private bankers to provide
incentives for inflows.
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Profits (Losses) on trading
(millions of euro)

2011 2010 Changes Quarterly development of profits
amount % (losses) on trading
Interest rates -245 -153 92 60.1
Equity instruments -53 118 -171
Currencies 224 269 -45 -16.7 541
Structured credit products 49 96 -47 -49.0
Credit derivatives 95 -5 100
Commodity derivatives 12 28 -16 -57.1 280
Trading result 82 353 271 768 218 173
Trading on AFS securities and financial 126120
liabilities 838 107 731 4 74 I
2 2 2 2 - = - -
Profits (Losses) on trading 920 460 460 S B = X ) 3

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

In 2011 trading activities yielded a profit of 920 million euro, compared to the 460 million euro recognised in the previous year.

The positive performance was chiefly a result of the increase in operations on AFS securities and financial liabilities (+731 million

euro), which benefited from significant capital gains on the sale of the investments in Prada (272 million euro), Findomestic

(154 million euro) and Banco di Patagonia (56 million euro) and on the repurchase of own debt securities on the market

(180 million euro). These effects are offset by a negative contribution from interest rate transactions in debt securities and interest

rate derivatives, which include:

—  the residual loss on hedging derivatives for Greek assets, reclassified due to the loss of hedge effectiveness, of -73
million euro;

—  the effects on the income statement of the measurement of OTC derivatives considering the various parameters required by
the new EONIA discounting approach of -80 million euro;

—  the effect of the deterioration of the creditworthiness of the counterparties to derivative contracts (known as the “credit risk
adjustment”) of -75 million euro.

Transactions in equities, including the dividends collected, also provided a negative contribution despite the positive results of

ordinary operations, owing to the decrease in the fair value of the derivative separated from the Risanamento convertible loan (-43

million euro) and the capital losses recorded on the hedge fund portfolio (-116 million euro).

Currency trading and structured credit products were down. Gains on credit derivatives (95 million euro) should be interpreted

jointly with the interest rate segment, as these were mainly transactions put in place to hedge credit risk on investments in

debt securities.

For a more detailed illustration of structured credit products, reference should be made to Part E of the Notes to the

Consolidated financial statements.

It should be noted that transactions in AFS securities and in financial liabilities incorporate, in addition to dividends and proceeds

on the trading of securities classified as available for sale, the effects of the measurement at fair value of financial liabilities issued

associated with an assessment of creditworthiness related to the fair value option.
(millions of euro)

2011 Changes %
Fourth Third Second First
quarter quarter quarter quarter (A/B) (B/C) (C/D)
(A) (B) © (D)
Interest rates -206 -254 22 193 -18.9 -88.6
Equity instruments 41 -124 -10 40
Currencies 47 93 59 25 -49.5 57.6
Structured credit products 32 -20 11 26 -57.7
Credit derivatives 1 142 -26 -32 -92.3 -18.8
Commodity derivatives 5 1 -3 9
Trading result -70 -162 53 261 -56.8 -79.7
Trading on AFS securities and financial
liabilities 243 88 488 19 -82.0
Profits (Losses) on trading 173 -74 541 280 93.2

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

On a quarterly level, the result for the fourth quarter of 2011 was 173 million euro, compared to a loss of -74 million euro in the
third quarter.
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Income from insurance business

(millions of euro)

Captions (a) 2011 2010 Changes Quarterly development of income
Life Non-life  Total Life Non-life ~ Total  amount % {0 (I (LD
Technical margin 83 42 125 128 24 152 -27 -17.8
Net insurance premiums (b) 9,093 167 9,260 11,065 159 11,224 -1,964 -17.5
Net charges for insurance claims and surrenders (c) -6,718 -47 -6,765 -6,237 -58 -6,295 470 7.5
Net charges for changes in technical reserves (d) -3,019 - -3,019 -5,629 - 5,629 -2,610 -46.4
Gains (losses) on investments pertaining to insured
parties on insurance products (e) 966 - 966 1,281 - 1,281 -315 -24.6
Net fees on investment contracts (f) 116 - 116 131 - 131 -15 -11.5
Commission expenses on insurance contracts (g) -381 -76 -457 -510 -74 -584 -127 -21.7
Other technical income and expense (h) 26 -2 24 27 -3 24 - -
Net investment result 401 14 415 488 14 502 -87  -17.3
Operating income from investments 838 14 852 2,727 14 2,741 -1,889 -68.9
Net interest income 2,057 12 2,069 1,592 9 1,601 468 29.2
Dividends 87 - 87 94 - 94 7 74 204 205
Gains/losses on disposal -119 2 -117 1,117 5 1,122 -1,239
Valuation gains/losses -1,005 - 1,005 206 - 206 1,211 73 165
Portfolio management fees paid (i) -151 - -151 -144 - -144 7 4.9
Profit/loss pertaining to third party
underwriters of mutual funds (j) -31 - -31 -138 - -138 -107  -77.5
Gains (losses) on investments pertaining
to insured parties -437 - -437 -2,239 - -2,239 -1,802 -80.5
Insurance products (k) -1,062 - -1,062  -1,286 - -1,286 224 -17.4

Investment’s unrealized capital gains/losses
pertaining to insured parties on insurance

]
[}
~
o
.
o

products (1) 9 - 96 5 - 5 91

Investment products (m) 529 - 529 -958 - -958 1,487 =) e e = = = =
S 5 05 S 8 &5 %

Income from insurance business 484 56 540 616 38 654 114 174

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

@ The table illustrates the economic components of the insurance business broken down into those regarding:

- products considered to be insurance products according to IAS/IFRS, which include contracts where the risk insured is considered significant or in which the decision of the return on the contracts is not
market-based but depends on the insurance company's choices;
- investment products, which include financial products without a significant insurance risk. The latter are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements as financial movements.

® The caption includes premiums issued only for products considered to be insurance products according to IAS/IFRS, net of the portions ceded to reinsurers. For the non-life insurance business, the change
in the premiums reserve is also included.

© The caption includes the amounts paid (claims, surrenders and maturities) and the change in claims reserves and reserves for amounts to be paid, net of portions ceded to reinsurers.
© The caption includes the change in technical reserves, net of the portions ceded to reinsurers.

© The caption includes the portion of the profit/loss from investments (for insurance products) pertaining to insured parties, including the impact of shadow accounting.

@ The caption includes net fees on investment products; specifically, charges paid by customers, management fees received by the financial units and fee expenses reversed by the insurance companies to

the sales network and management companies.

@ The caption includes commission expenses on insurance products (including unit and index-linked insurance products and pension funds) paid to the sales network.

t Residual caption comprising fee income on insurance product management fee income (unit and index-linked insurance products and pension funds), rebates, net interest income on current accounts of

the insurance company and on subordinated loans and other income and technical charges.
@ The caption includes fees paid to management companies for the management of traditional insurance products (separate management) portfolios and pension funds. This also includes fees from
consolidated funds underlying insurance units.

0

(k)

The caption includes profit/loss pertaining to third party underwriters of consolidated mutual funds which are not wholly-owned by the Group.

The caption includes the portion of the profit/loss from investments (for insurance products) pertaining to insured parties, without the impact of shadow accounting.

o The caption includes the portion of unrealized capital gains/losses pertaining to insured parties on insurance products (shadow accounting).

(m) The caption refers to the valuation of financial liabilities designated at fair value which represent the amount payable to insured parties for investment products.

In 2011, income from insurance business, which includes the revenue captions of the Group’s life and non-life companies, was
540 million euro, down 114 million euro compared to the previous year. The decrease in revenues attributable to the life business
was primarily due to the unfavourable performance of net investment result attributable to the deterioration of financial market
quotations, which resulted in the recognition of realised and unrealised losses on investments. The technical margin showed a
better performance, despite being penalised by lesser net insurance premiums and greater charges for insurance claims and
surrenders. It should be recalled that the 2010 figure had benefited from capital gains on the sale of securities.

The result for non-life business increased, mainly due to the increase in net premiums and to lower claim-related expense.
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(millions of euro)

Captions (a) 2011 Changes %
Fourth Third Second First
quarter quarter quarter quarter (A/B) (B/C) (C/D)
(A) (B) (© (D)
Technical margin 42 5 34 a4 -85.3 -22.7
Net insurance premiums (b) 1,768 1,824 2,237 3,431 -3.1 -18.5 -34.8
Net charges for insurance claims and surrenders (c) -2,307 -1,435 -1,622 -1,401 60.8 -11.5 15.8
Net charges for changes in technical reserves (d) 232 -312 -865 -2,074 -63.9 -58.3
Gains (losses) on investments pertaining to insured
parties on insurance products (e) 422 -15 363 196 85.2
Net fees on investment contracts (f) 5 42 37 32 -88.1 13.5 15.6
Commission expenses on insurance contracts (g) -88 -105 -125 -139 -16.2 -16.0 -10.1
Other technical income and expense (h) 10 6 9 -1 66.7 -33.3
Net investment result 163 45 131 76 -65.6 72.4
Operating income from investments 742 -584 483 211
Net interest income 625 499 509 436 25.3 -2.0 16.7
Dividends 13 15 47 12 -13.3 -68.1
Gains/losses on disposal -203 -256 82 260 -20.7 -68.5
Valuation gains/losses 305 -731 -70 -509 -86.2
Portfolio management fees paid (i) -34 -38 -40 -39 -10.5 -5.0 2.6
Profit/loss pertaining to third party underwriters of
mutual funds (j) 36 -73 -45 57 62.2
Gains (losses) on investments pertaining
to insured parties -579 629 -352 -135
Insurance products (k) -434 -70 -340 -218 -79.4 56.0

Investment’s unrealized capital gains/losses
pertaining to insured parties on insurance

products (I) 12 85 -23 22 -85.9
Investment products (m) -157 614 11 61 -82.0
Income from insurance business 205 50 165 120 -69.7 37.5

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

For notes, see the previous table

The insurance business showed growth in the fourth quarter of 2011 compared to the previous quarters, most markedly in
comparison with the third quarter, rising from 50 to 205 million euro, owing in part to the new shadow-accounting method
adopted by the Group’s insurance companies. Overall, income in the second half of the year, amounting to 255 million euro,
returned to levels near those of the first half of the year (285 million euro).
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(millions of euro)

2011 2010

Periodic Single of which new

. . Total .

premiums premiums business
Life insurance business 802 8,292 9,094 8,291 11,066
Premiums issued on traditional products 661 8,024 8,685 8,024 10,504
Premiums issued on unit-linked products 101 57 158 57 204
Premiums issued on capitalisation products 1 1 2 1 13
Premiums issued on pension funds 39 210 249 209 345
Non-life insurance business 48 126 174 78 171
Premiums issued 47 175 222 126 198
Change in premium reserves 1 -49 -48 -48 -27
Premiums ceded to reinsurers -3 -5 -8 -3 -13
Net premiums from insurance products 847 8,413 9,260 8,366 11,224
Business on index-linked contracts - - - - -
Business on unit-linked contracts 219 3,394 3,613 3,395 4,490
Total business from investment contracts 219 3,394 3,613 3,395 4,490
Total business 1,066 11,807 12,873 11,761 15,714

Figures restated, where necessary, to account for changes in the scope of consolidation.

The total business of the insurance segment reached premiums of 12.9 billion euro compared to total inflows of 15.7 billion in
2010. New business came to 11.8 billion euro, over 70% of which was attributable to net premiums on insurance products.

Other operating income (expenses)

Other operating income (expenses) is a residual caption comprising various types of income and expenses that cannot be
recognised in other operating income captions, except expense, tax and duty recoveries that have been directly deducted from the
corresponding sub-captions of administrative expenses. In 2011 this caption recorded a positive balance of 7 million euro
compared to the 34 million euro recognised in 2010, which included non-recurring sums.

Operating costs
(millions of euro)

2011 2010 Changes Quarterly development
amount % of operating costs
Wages and salaries 3,834 3,948 -114 -2.9
Social security charges 982 996 -14 -1.4
Other 603 584 19 3.3
Personnel expenses 5,419 5,528 -109 -2.0
Information technology expenses 702 753 -51 -6.8
Management of real estate assets expenses 749 762 -13 -1.7
General structure costs 375 396 21 5.3 2498 5 366
Professional and legal expenses 452 455 -3 -0.7 2,299 2,242 2,294 2235 i
Advertising and promotional expenses 166 171 -5 -2.9 2,250 2,257
Indirect personnel costs 127 130 -3 -2.3
Other costs 420 400 20 5.0
Indirect taxes and duties 663 628 35 5.6
Recovery of expenses and charges -574 -521 53 10.2
Administrative expenses 3,080 3,174 -94 -3.0
Property and equipment 385 379 6 1.6
Intangible assets 253 223 30 13.5
Adjustments 638 602 36 6.0
o o o o - - - -
Operating costs 9,137 9,304 -167 -1.8 S B ) Y = B & 3

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

Operating costs amounted to 9,137 million euro, down 1.8% on the figure recorded in 2010.
Personnel expenses decreased by 2% to 5,419 million euro. Policies aimed at reducing the rise in average costs, associated with a
decrease in the average number of employees (-0.6%), contributed to the reduction in expenses.
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Administrative expenses were 3,080 million euro, down 3%: this result was shaped in particular by the decrease in information
technology expenses (-6.8%), general structure costs (-5.3%) and property management costs (-1.7%).

Amortisation and depreciation for 2011 amounted to 638 million euro, up 6% on the previous year, mainly due to higher
investments in intangible assets, particularly in software application components.

As a result of the combined performance of revenues and costs, the cost/income ratio for the period was 54.4%, down compared
to the 56.3% recognised for 2010.

(millions of euro)

2011 Changes %
Fourth Third Second First
quarter quarter quarter quarter (A/B) (B/C) (C/D)
(A) (B) © (D)

Wages and salaries 949 937 984 964 1.3 -4.8 2.1
Social security charges 238 241 253 250 -1.2 -4.7 1.2
Other 161 146 138 158 10.3 5.8 -12.7
Personnel expenses 1,348 1,324 1,375 1,372 1.8 -3.7 0.2
Information technology expenses 184 171 171 176 7.6 - -2.8
Management of real estate assets expenses 196 192 178 183 2.1 7.9 -2.7
General structure costs 88 94 96 97 -6.4 -2.1 -1.0
Professional and legal expenses 135 100 117 100 35.0 -14.5 17.0
Advertising and promotional expenses 61 31 45 29 96.8 -31.1 55.2
Indirect personnel costs 34 25 42 26 36.0 -40.5 61.5
Other costs 122 113 93 92 8.0 215 1.1
Indirect taxes and duties 183 169 160 151 8.3 5.6 6.0
Recovery of expenses and charges -162 -143 -136 -133 13.3 5.1 2.3
Administrative expenses 841 752 766 721 11.8 -1.8 6.2
Property and equipment 101 95 95 94 6.3 - 1.1
Intangible assets 76 64 58 55 18.8 10.3 5.5
Adjustments 177 159 153 149 11.3 3.9 2.7
Operating costs 2,366 2,235 2,294 2,242 5.9 -2.6 2.3

Figures restated, where necessary, on a consistent basis, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

At the quarterly level, operating costs increased by 5.9% in the fourth quarter compared to the third quarter, reaching 2,366
million euro. The performance is mainly attributable to administrative expenses, which traditionally present elements of
seasonality: the most significant differences were in professional and legal expenses, advertising and promotional expenses and
information technology expenses.

(millions of euro)

2011 2010 Changes Business areas
amount %
Banca dei Territori 5,733 5,903 -170 -2.9 8 dei Territori 68.8%
n i Territori 68.8%
Corporate and Investment Banking 968 965 3 0.3 —
International Subsidiary Banks 1,171 1,169 2 0.2 Corporate and
Eurizon Capital 120 132 -12 9.1 Investment Banking 11.6%
Banca Fideuram 347 362 -15 -4.1
Total business areas 8,339 8,531 -192 -2.3
International Subsidiary
Corporate Centre 798 773 25 3.2 Banks 14.0%
Intesa Sanpaolo Group 9,137 9,304 -167 -1.8

’\ Eurizon Capital 1.4%

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business \ Banca Fideuram 4.2%

unit constituents.

The virtuous trend in Group operating costs (-1.8%) was driven by Banca dei Territori (-2.9%), which recorded 69% of total
business areas costs, Banca Fideuram (-4.1%) and Eurizon Capital (-9.1%). Savings in these business areas were related to both
personnel expenses and other administrative expenses. Essentially stable costs were reported by the International Subsidiary Banks
(+0.2%) and Corporate and Investment Banking (+0.3%). The Corporate Centre’s costs were up (+3.2%) due to greater
amortisation and depreciation.

Operating margin

The operating margin came to 7,648 million euro in 2011, up 5.9% compared to the previous year. This trend was generated by
increased revenues (+1.5%), accompanied by a decrease in operating costs (-1.8%). The trend was even more positive at the
quarterly level, translating into an increase of 21.3% on the previous quarter.




Report on operations — Economic results

Adjustments to/write-backs on assets

Net provisions for risks and charges

In 2011 net provisions for risks and charges amounted to 218 million euro, attributable to provisions for legal proceedings,
revocatory actions and other existing risks mainly concerning the Parent Company. That amount is compared to the 366 million
euro reported in 2010, which included allocations attributable to the revision of existing consumer credit product contracts and
tax disputes.

Net adjustments to loans
(millions of euro)

2011 2010 Changes Quarterly development of net
amount % adjustments to loans
Doubtful loans -2,227 -1,815 412 22.7
Substandard loans -991 -993 -2 -0.2 2,043
Restructured loans -387 -32 355
Past due loans -209 -207 2 1.0
Performing loans -416 -124 292
Net impairment losses on loans -4,230 -3,171 1,059 334 895 823
. 754 808 743 682 695
Net adjustments to guarantees and
commitments -13 1 -14 I I I I I I I
Net adjustments to loans -4,243 -3,170 1,073 33.8 =) =] =] S = = = =
= N ISl 3 = N o 3

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

During 2011, the gradual deterioration of the general economic situation, which only became clear late in the year with a
decrease in GDP and the beginning of a recessionary phase in Italy, resulted in a further significant decline in credit quality, with a
consequent rise in net adjustments to loans, which amounted to 4,243 million euro, up 33.8% compared to 2010. Doubtful
positions required total net adjustments of 2,227 million euro, up 22.7% compared to the previous year, with an average
coverage ratio of 64%. Conversely, net adjustments to substandard positions of 991 million euro remained virtually unchanged
with a coverage ratio of 20.6%. Adjustments to restructured loans increased significantly from 32 million euro in 2010 to 387
million euro in 2011.

The significant amount of adjustments to loans may be attributed both to a general deterioration in the solvency of borrowers and
to the deterioration of certain loan portfolios or specific positions.

In further detail, within the non-performing loan category (doubtful loans and substandard loans), especially negative results were
shown by the portfolios of Mediocredito Italiano (medium- and long-term loans to SMEs) and Neos (consumer loans).

In the restructured loans category, it was necessary to apply considerable adjustments to positions already subject to previous debt
restructuring agreements, which showed, during the year, a deterioration of the assets serving as collateral for the exposures as a
result of the financial market and real-estate sector crisis.

Lastly, with regard to performing loans, there was a significant increase in “collective” adjustments, with portfolio coverage rising
from 0.7% to 0.8%, as a consequence of the worsening of the economic situation, especially in the latter part of the year.
The adjustments to this loan portfolio also include those applied by the Hungarian subsidiary CIB Bank due to the enactment by
the government of measures aimed at transferring to the banking system a portion of the foreign exchange losses of customers

who have contracted mortgage loans denominated in foreign currencies, which entered into effect in the fourth quarter.
(millions of euro)

2011 Changes %
Fourth Third Second First
quarter quarter quarter quarter (A/B) (B/C) (C/D)
(A) (B) (© (D)
Doubtful loans -868 -388 -576 -395 -32.6 45.8
Substandard loans -289 -261 -210 -231 10.7 24.3 -9.1
Restructured loans -358 -3 -18 -8 -83.3
Past due loans -63 -43 -56 -47 46.5 -23.2 19.1
Performing loans -425 7 6 -4 16.7
Net losses/recoveries on impairment of
loans -2,003 -688 -854 -685 -19.4 24.7
Net adjustments to/recoveries on - - -
guarantees and commitments -40 -7 31 3
Net adjustments to loans -2,043 -695 -823 -682 -15.6 20.7

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

Quarterly analysis also shows a strong increase in net adjustments to loans, which rose from 695 million euro in the third quarter
to 2,043 million euro in the fourth quarter, consistently with financial market performance and the economic cycle, which reached
peak tension levels in the latter part of the year. In further detail, there were increases in adjustments to doubtful loans (+480
million euro) and restructured loans (+355 million euro) and coverage was increased for performing loans (+432 million euro),
consistently with the cyclical effect of “collective adjustments” and taking account of provisions recognised by the Hungarian
subsidiary CIB Bank, as illustrated above.
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Net impairment losses on other assets

During 2011, net impairment losses on other assets totalled 1,069 million euro, 939 million euro of which was attributable to the
impairment of Greek government bonds held by the Group. The residual amount refers to the impairment loss on equity
instruments and bonds available for sale. This figure compares to the 95 million euro recorded in the previous year.

As mentioned previously, and to be illustrated in greater detail later in this Report, it was deemed appropriate to reclassify the full
effect of impairment losses on Greek government bonds and bonds issued by other Greek public entities to this caption,
regardless of their balance sheet classification (AFS or L&R) to avoid distortion effects on the cost of credit.

In particular: AFS securities were measured at fair value, recognising the entire negative reserve (532 million euro, net of amounts
allocated to insurance products under separate management) and lesser impairment losses related to financial guarantees of 7
million euro to the income statement, while for securities classified as L&R, a haircut of approximately 78% was applied to the
contractual inflows and said inflows were discounted at the effective interest rate, taking into account interest rate hedging, as
required by IAS 39. The methodology described above resulted in the recognition of total adjustments of 414 million euro.

Note that the Greek securities classified as held for trading (of a marginal amount) are systematically designated at fair value
through profit and loss.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, adjustments declined compared to the previous quarter, falling from 635 to 360 million euro.
This amount is almost entirely attributable to the impairment of the Greek bonds held by BIIS (249 million euro), Banca Fideuram
(27 million euro) and the Group's insurance companies (44 million euro).

Profits (Losses) on investments held to maturity and on other investments

Losses on investments held to maturity and on other investments amounted to 99 million euro in 2011. This result is essentially
due to the impairment of the investment in Telco (251 million euro), only partially offset by capital gains realised on the sale of
branches to Crédit Agricole (123 million euro), a historical property of CR Firenze (16 million euro) and Serenissima Partecipazioni
(11 million euro). This figure is compared to the 273 million euro in profits reported in 2010.

Income before tax from continuing operations

Income before tax from continuing operations came to 2,019 million euro in 2011, down 47.8% from 2010. Given an increase in
the operating margin, the trend was primarily due to a strong increase in net adjustments to loans and other assets, only partially
counterbalanced by a decrease in net provisions for risks and charges. The result for the fourth quarter, penalised by said
adjustments, decreased significantly compared to the result for the third quarter, coming to a negative balance of 749
million euro.

Other income and expense captions

Taxes on income from continuing operations

Income tax for 2011 based on current and deferred tax was a positive 910 million euro, against the 1,372 million euro provisioned
for 2010. Income taxes for the year benefited from the realignment of goodwill included in the consolidated financial statements,
as permitted by Article 23 of Law Decree no. 98 of 6 July 2011. Specifically, as previously illustrated, the rule permits the
realignment (i.e., tax recognition) of intangible assets (goodwill, trademarks and other intangible assets) recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and related to the higher values of controlling interests - which must be understood as those
included in the scope of consolidation based on the IAS/IFRS - recorded in the separate financial statements as a result of
extraordinary transactions that are tax-neutral (business contribution, merger, spin-off) or executive (sale of companies
and interests).

The provision allowed recognition for tax purposes of the above assets, by paying a 16% substitute tax and performing tax
deduction for the related value, off balance sheet, in ten years, starting from 2013.

Exercise of this option results in the recognition of future tax benefits expected from deduction of the tax value of the realigned
assets from corporate income, represented by deferred taxes relating to the new temporary deductible difference.

The application of the statute in the preparation of the 2011 financial statements resulted in the recognition of deferred tax assets
and the release of tax liabilities of 4,199 million euro and a substitute tax charge of 2,069 million euro, with a net benefit to the
income statement for the year of 2,130 million euro.

The caption was also affected by the settlement of disputes with Agenzia delle Entrate (Italian Revenue Agency) concerning the
misuse of a right to which the Group was a party through recourse to dispute settlement mechanisms, as described in further
detail in Part E of the Notes, resulting in the use of the pre-established allowance with a total charge recognised in the income
statement of 158 million euro (147 million euro net of the deductibility of the associated interest expense).

In addition, the recent increase in the base IRAP tax rate entailed an increase in taxes for the year of approximately 86
million euro.

Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives

This caption rose to 552 million euro, mainly due to the inclusion of costs relating to the exit of personnel pursuant to the
Framework Agreement of 29 July 2011, which has already been mentioned, amounting to 506 million euro net of discounting
and the tax effect.

Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax)

This caption comprises charges attributable to the revaluation of loans, debts, real estate and the recognition of new intangible
assets, in application of IFRS 3, upon recognition of acquisition transactions. These charges amounted to 321 million euro in 2011,
down from 396 million euro recorded in 2010. The caption also includes the recognition of badwill of 16 million euro on the
acquisition of Banco Emiliano Romagnolo.
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Goodwill impairment (net of tax)

As mentioned above, the negative results of impairment tests on the carrying amounts of goodwill resulted in the recognition of
impairment losses of a total of 10,233 million euro in 2011. Of this amount, 6,390 million euro was associated with the Banca dei
Territori CGU, 2,318 million euro with the Corporate and Investment Banking CGU, 373 million euro with the Eurizon Capital
CGU and 122 million euro with the International Subsidiary Banks CGU, to which foreign exchange differences of 21 million,
entirely adjusted, are also attributable. Bank of Alexandria, the goodwill associated with which, of 1,009 million euro, was fully
impaired, was separated from the International Subsidiary Banks CGU for reasons solely relating to the institutional and economic
situation in the country in which it is located, Egypt.

Income (Loss) from discontinued operations (net of tax)
No income or loss on discontinued operations was recorded in 2011. Conversely, 694 million euro in income was recorded in the
previous year, mostly due to the results of securities services business on completion of the sale to State Street Co.

Net income (loss)
The net result for 2011, which, as mentioned above, was affected by non-recurring income and charges of considerable amounts,
came to a net loss of 8,190 million euro, compared to a net income of 2,705 million euro in 2010.



Balance sheet aggregates

General aspects
A condensed balance sheet has been prepared to permit a more immediate understanding of the Group’s assets and liabilities.
Where necessary, comparative figures are restated to account for non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations and
changes in the scope of consolidation. As usual, certain captions have been aggregated with respect to the model provided in
Circular 262/05 of the Bank of Italy.
The restated financial statements are obtained by making appropriate adjustments to historical data to reflect the significant
effects of such changes retroactively. Any differences due to the possibility of choosing between different options provided for by
IAS/IFRS or arising from the use of different methods or parameters for measurement of assets and liabilities are not considered, as
they are deemed irrelevant. Lastly, please note that no intragroup relations are netted where their amount is not significant.
Breakdowns of restatements and aggregations of captions performed are provided in separate tables included in the attachments
to the consolidated financial statements, as also required by Consob in its Communication 6064293 of 28 July 2006.
The most significant restatements involved the line-by-line consolidation of Banca Monte Parma and Banca Sara (subject to a total
spin-off to Banca Fideuram S.p.A. and Sanpaolo Invest Sim in 2011), the sale of Cassa di Risparmio della Spezia and the branches
to Crédit Agricole and, lastly, the sale of Fideuram Bank Suisse.
Aggregatlons of captions referred to:
the inclusion of Cash and cash equivalents in the residual caption Other assets;
—  the inclusion of Hedging derivatives and Fair value change of financial assets/liabilities in hedged portfolios in Other
assets/liabilities;
—  theinclusion of technical insurance reserves reassured with third parties in Other assets;
—  the aggregation in one single caption of Property and equipment and Intangible assets;
- the aggregation of Due to customers and Securities issued in just one caption;
— the aggregation into one caption of allowances for specific purpose (Employee termination indemnities and Allowances for
risks and charges);
—  the presentation of Reserves as an aggregate and net of any treasury shares.
Again, to provide a more effective presentation of the composition of aggregates, in the detailed tables and/or in the relative
comments, derivatives recorded in Financial assets/liabilities held for trading and Due from/Due to banks are presented on a
net basis.
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Reclassified balance sheet
(millions of euro)

Assets 31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes
amount %
Financial assets held for trading 59,963 71,945 -11,982 -16.7
of which: Insurance Companies 1,341 1,836 -495 -27.0
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss 34,253 35,550 -1,297 -3.6
of which: Insurance Companies 33,391 34,538 -1,147 -3.3
Financial assets available for sale 68,777 61,835 6,942 11.2
of which: Insurance Companies 39,194 39,197 -3 -
Investments held to maturity 2,621 3,858 -1,237 -32.1
Due from banks 35,865 41,494 -5,629 -13.6
Loans to customers 376,744 378,827 -2,083 -0.5
Investments in associates and companies subject to joint control 2,630 2,712 -82 -3.0
Property, equipment and intangible assets 20,577 31,076 -10,499 -33.8
Tax assets 14,702 8,769 5,933 67.7
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations 26 75 -49 -65.3
Other assets 23,063 20,884 2,179 10.4
Total Assets 639,221 657,025 -17,804 -2.7
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes
amount %
Due to banks 78,644 52,972 25,672 48.5
Due to customers and securities issued 357,410 399,177 -41,767 -10.5
of which: Insurance Companies 403 211 192 91.0
Financial liabilities held for trading 48,740 45,044 3,696 8.2
of which: Insurance Companies 29 48 -19 -39.6
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit and loss 22,653 26,144 -3,491 -13.4
of which: Insurance Companies 21,955 24,906 -2,951 -11.8
Tax liabilities 4,064 3,253 811 24.9

Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations - - - R

Other liabilities 24,225 20,941 3,284 15.7
Technical reserves 50,761 50,188 573 1.1
Allowances for specific purpose 4,966 4,644 322 6.9
Share capital 8,546 6,647 1,899 28.6
Reserves 49,982 45,235 4,747 10.5
Valuation reserves -3,298 -1,054 2,244

Minority interests 718 1,129 -411 -36.4
Net income (loss) -8,190 2,705 -10,895

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 639,221 657,025 -17,804 -2.7

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

Intesa Sanpaolo’s consolidated assets recorded a moderate decrease in 2011: total assets were down 2.7%.

The significant reduction in financial assets held for trading (-12 billion euro), property, equipment and intangible assets (-10.5
billion euro) due to the impairment of goodwill and, to a lesser extent, amounts due from banks (-5.6 billion euro) and loans to
customers (-2.1 billion euro) was partially offset by the increase in financial assets available for sale (+6.9 billion euro) and tax
assets (+5.9 billion euro). As regards liabilities, there was a shift in the composition of customer deposits (-41.8 billion euro of
amounts due to customers and securities issued) towards bank funding (+25.7 billion euro), owing in part to recourse to
refinancing with the European Central Bank, capital and reserves (+6.6 billion euro ) as a result of the capital increase, financial
liabilities held for trading (+3.7 billion euro) and other liability captions (+3.3 billion euro).
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Quarterly development of the reclassified balance sheet
(millions of euro)

Assets 2011 2010
31/12 30/9 30/6 31/3 31/12 30/9 30/6 31/3

Financial assets held for trading 59,963 69,934 60,584 61,141 71,945 90,565 98,522 84,023

of which: Insurance Companies 1,341 1,371 1,625 1,690 1,836 1,855 2,299 1,400
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit and loss 34,253 35,212 36,303 36,349 35,550 33,253 32,974 33,432

of which: Insurance Companies 33,391 34,345 35,354 35,230 34,538 32,301 32,059 32,517
Financial assets available for sale 68,777 70,950 69,007 64,845 61,835 60,541 55,199 55,627

of which: Insurance Companies 39,194 40,733 41,837 41,137 39,197 39,638 36,341 36,735
Investments held to maturity 2,621 2,872 2,865 3,021 3,858 4,224 4,326 4,365
Due from banks 35,865 40,449 43,258 40,449 41,494 44,132 46,975 46,275
Loans to customers 376,744 381,192 374,979 377,252 378,827 378,157 374,901 370,968
Investments in associates and companies subject
to joint control 2,630 2,732 2,694 2,817 2,712 2,360 2,348 2,328
Property, equipment and intangible assets 20,577 30,876 30,798 30,903 31,076 30,589 30,779 30,671
Tax assets 14,702 11,259 7,886 8,079 8,769 7,861 8,133 7,564
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations 26 30 38 35 75 48 35 7,741
Other assets 23,063 21,816 19,182 20,703 20,884 23,853 26,291 27,552
Total Assets 639,221 667,322 647,594 645,594 657,025 675,583 680,483 670,546
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 2011 2010

31/12 30/9 30/6 31/3 31/12 30/9 30/6 31/3

Due to banks 78,644 72,978 50,182 51,087 52,972 47,326 49,753 45,503
Due to customers and securities issued 357,410 369,459 389,511 392,736 399,177 406,472 410,986 403,229

of which: Insurance Companies 403 368 389 405 211 216 230 237
Financial liabilities held for trading 48,740 53,952 38,216 37,431 45,044 58,139 56,413 48,349

of which: Insurance Companies 29 76 43 42 48 65 67 51
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit and loss 22,653 23,558 24,729 25,201 26,144 26,357 26,430 27,692

of which: Insurance Companies 21,955 22,814 23,969 24,403 24,906 24,617 24,646 25,393
Tax liabilities 4,064 4,857 3,299 3,342 3,253 3,032 2,857 3,772
Liabilities associated with non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations - - - - - - - 9,375
Other liabilities 24,225 26,697 24,330 23,765 20,941 26,062 26,537 24,704
Technical reserves 50,761 52,217 52,887 51,896 50,188 49,585 48,612 47,947
Allowances for specific purpose 4,966 4,978 4,405 4,561 4,644 4,557 4,612 4,791
Share capital 8,546 8,546 8,546 6,647 6,647 6,647 6,647 6,647
Reserves 49,982 49,906 49,924 47,920 45,235 45,265 45,317 46,358
Valuation reserves -3,298 -2,827 -937 -766 -1,054 -1,134 -1,120 -339
Minority interests 718 1,072 1,100 1,113 1,129 1,075 1,749 1,830
Net income (loss) -8,190 1,929 1,402 661 2,705 2,200 1,690 688
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 639,221 667,322 647,594 645,594 657,025 675,583 680,483 670,546

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.
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Loans to customers

(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes
" » Quarterly development
% % 9 Loans to customers
breakdown breakdown Sount &
Current accounts 33,832 9.0 30,713 8.1 3,119 10.2 o
Mortgages 164,845 437 165,702 43.7 -857 -0.5 =
50N o~ ®
Advances and other loans 131,783 35.0 132,449 35.0 -666 -0.5 _ 2 ® 9 3
{ N
Commercial banking loans 330,460 87.7 328,864 86.8 1,596 0.5 w© §1 § = E g ©
O £ m
Repurchase agreements 5,302 1.4 10,703 2.8 -5,401 -50.5 2 - E
IS
Loans represented by securities 18,286 4.9 18,022 4.8 264 1.5 " I
Non-performing loans 22,696 6.0 21,238 5.6 1,458 6.9 l
2 2 2 2 = = = =
Loans to customers 376,744 100.0 378,827 100.0 -2,083 -0.5 @ Ity Iy S 3 Y S x
R R = = 8 8 =
m

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

As at 31 December 2011, Intesa Sanpaolo Group loans to customers amounted to approximately 377 billion euro, down slightly
(-0.5%) on the figure of the end of the previous year.

This trend was due to the decrease of 5.4 billion euro in repurchase agreements, which were halved, owing to the unwinding of
several transactions of significant amounts with the counterparty Cassa di Compensazione e Garanzia, partially offset by the rise in
commercial banking loans (+0.5%). In further detail, the latter aggregate was positively affected by the increase in current
accounts of 3.1 billion euro (+10.2%), which more than offset the decrease of 0.9 billion euro in mortgages (-0.5%) and of 0.7
billion euro in advances and other loans (-0.5%). In relation to the portfolio’s risk level, an increase was seen in non-performing
loans and their greater impact on total loans.

In the domestic medium-/long-term loan market, in 2011 disbursements to households (including the small business and non-
profit segments) totalled 14.8 billion euro and those to businesses covered by Banca dei Territori amounted to approximately
10 billion euro. During the same period, medium/long-term disbursements to Mid Corporate and Large Corporate Italia customers
reached 15.4 billion euro.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s share of the domestic market (calculated on the harmonised time-series defined for
countries in the eurozone) was 15.7% for total loans, down by one-tenth of a percentage point compared to December 2010.

(millions of euro)

31.12.2011  31.12.2010 Changes EHEESS S

amount %
Banca dei Territori 186,414 183,240 3,174 1.7 Banca dei Territori 50.2%
Corporate and Investment Banking 150,701 151,287 -586 -0.4
International Subsidiary Banks 30,881 30,926 -45 -0.1 Corporate and
Eurizon Capital 109 153 44 288 Investment Banking 40.6%
Banca Fideuram 3,439 2,851 588 20.6
Total business areas 371,544 368,457 3,087 0.8
Corporate Centre 5,200 10,370 -5,170 -49.9

International Subsidiary

Intesa Sanpaolo Group 376,744 378,827 -2,083 -0.5 ' Banks 8.3%
A\

Eurizon Capital -

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business
9 v 9 9 P Banca Fideuram 0.9%

unit constituents and discontinued operations.

Breaking down loans by business areas, Banca dei Territori, which accounts for half the aggregate of the Group’s business areas,
increased loans to customers by 1.7% compared to the end of the previous year, specifically to businesses and, to a lesser extent,
retail customers. Essentially stable loans were reported by the International Subsidiary Banks (-0.1%) and Corporate and
Investment Banking (-0.4%). The reduction in the use of cash by Large Corporate ltaly, International Corporate and Financial
Institutions counterparties and the decline in reverse repurchase transactions with institutional operators and financial
intermediaries by Banca IMI were almost fully absorbed by the increase in loans to the public works and infrastructure sector,
handled by BIIS, as well as the growth in operations of factoring and leasing product companies and structured finance.
Banca Fideuram loans, of an overall modest amount, expanded (+20.6%) as a result of the increase in facilities granted in current
accounts, debt securities and repurchase agreements with institutional customers.

The decrease in Corporate Centre loans (-49.9%) was mainly driven by the unwinding of repurchase agreements entered into by
the Treasury with Cassa di Compensazione e Garanzia.
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Loans to customers: loan portfolio quality
(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Change

Net % Net % Net

exposure  breakdown exposure  breakdown exposure

Doubtful loans 8,998 2.4 7,394 2.0 1,604
Substandard loans 9,126 2.4 8,966 2.3 160
Restructured loans 3,425 0.9 3,338 0.9 87
Past due loans 1,147 0.3 1,540 0.4 -393
Non-performing loans 22,696 6.0 21,238 5.6 1,458
Performing loans 335,762 89.1 339,567 89.6 -3,805
Loans represented by performing securities 18,286 4.9 18,022 4.8 264
Loans to customers 376,744 100.0 378,827 100.0 -2,083

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes

Gross Total Net Gross Total Net Net

exposure adjustments exposure exposure adjustments exposure exposure

Doubtful loans 24,961 -15,963 8,998 20,666 -13,272 7,394 1,604
Substandard loans 11,486 -2,360 9,126 11,337 -2,371 8,966 160
Restructured loans 4,032 -607 3,425 3,637 -299 3,338 87
Past due loans 1,319 -172 1,147 1,694 -154 1,540 -393
Non-performing loans 41,798 -19,102 22,696 37,334 -16,096 21,238 1,458
Performing loans 338,467 -2,705 335,762 342,062 -2,495 339,567 -3,805
Performing loans represented by securities 19,220 -934 18,286 18,504 -482 18,022 264
Loans to customers 399,485 -22,741 376,744 397,900 -19,073 378,827 -2,083

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

At the end of 2011, as mentioned above, the Group recorded an increase in non-performing loans, net of adjustments, of 6.9%
on an annual basis. This trend led to a higher incidence of non-performing loans on total loans to customers, increasing from
5.6% to 6%. Coverage of non-performing loans came to a total of approximately 46%, a level higher than that recorded at the
end of 2010 (43%) and deemed adequate to account for expected losses, also considering the guarantees that secure
the positions.

In particular, as at 31 December 2011, doubtful loans totalled 8,998 million euro, with a 1.6 billion euro rise (+21.7%) on the end
of the previous year; the incidence on total loans was 2.4%, with a coverage ratio of 64%.

Substandard loans were up slightly (+1.8%) compared to 31 December 2010 to reach 9,126 million euro, coming to 2.4% of
total loans to customers, with a coverage ratio of approximately 21%.

Restructured loans of 3,425 million euro increased by 2.6% on an annual basis, with a coverage ratio of 15%, almost twice that
of the previous year. Past due loans amounted to 1,147 million euro, down by more than 25% compared to the end of December
2010 and showing a coverage ratio of 13%.

The increase in total adjustments to loans represented by securities may be attributed to the impairment of Greek securities.

Customer financial assets
(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes

% breakdown % breakdown amount %
Direct deposits from banking business 359,991 47.0 402,202 48.5 -42,211 -10.5
Direct deposits from insurance business and technical
reserves 73,119 9.5 75,305 9.1 -2,186 -2.9
Indirect customer deposits 405,727 53.0 427,067 51.6 -21,340 -5.0
Netting © -73,009 95 -75,958 9.2 -2,949 3.9
Customer financial assets 765,828 100.0 828,616 100.0 -62,788 -7.6

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

@ Netting refers to components of indirect deposits which are also included in direct customer deposits (financial liabilities of the insurance business designated at fair

value, life business technical reserves and fund-based bonds designated at fair value issued by Group companies and placed with its customers).

Customer financial assets came to approximately 766 billion euro as at 31 December 2011, down by 7.6% on an annual basis,
mainly due to the decline in direct deposits from banking business (-10.5%) and, to a lesser extent, indirect deposits (-5%) and
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direct deposits from insurance business and technical reserves (-2.9%). The trend in direct deposits from banking business is
attributable to a general decline in all components of the aggregate, with the exception of bonds, which recorded positive
performance compared to the end of December 2010. The decrease in indirect customer deposits was driven by the negative
performance effect, which impacted both assets under administration and assets under management. The decrease in assets
under management was mainly attributable to the stock of mutual funds.

Direct deposits from banking business
The table below sets out amounts due to customers, securities issued, including those designated at fair value, and securitised
capital-protected certificates.

(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes Quarterly development
% breakdown % breakdown  amount % Direct deposits from banking business

Current accounts and deposits 183,773 51.0 195,778 48.7 -12,005 -6.1 IS
Repurchase agreements and securities - ;r‘ §
lending 4,640 1.3 13,111 3.3 -8,471 -64.6 K‘ ~ g
Bonds 132,480 36.8 121,427 30.2 11,053 9.1 § - % 2 ©

of which designated at fair value ) 698 0.2 1,238 0.3 -540 -43.6 § ; §
Certificates of deposit 6,425 1.8 19,844 4.9 -13,419 676 m ”
Subordinated liabilities 19,481 54 24,134 6.0 -4,653 -19.3
Other deposits 13,192 3.7 27,908 6.9 -14,716 -52.7

of which designated at fair value " 2,286 0.6 1,998 0.5 288 14.4

Direct deposits from banking business 359,991 100.0 402,202 100.0 -42,211  -10.5

30/6/11

o1 [ 372027
szt [ 359991

31/3/10
30/6/10
30/9/10
31/12/10
31/3/11

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

® Figures included in the Balance sheet under Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss.

¢ Figures included in the Balance sheet under Financial liabilities held for trading.

Direct deposits from banking business amounted to 360 billion euro, down (-10.5%) compared to the end of December 2010,
mainly due to the reduction in certificates of deposit and other deposits, replaced by an increase in interbank funding through
refinancing with the ECB.

In further detail, there were declines of 13.4 billion euro in certificates of deposit (-67.6%), of 14.7 billion euro (-52.7%) in other
deposits, owing mainly to the maturity of commercial paper, and of 8.5 billion euro in repurchase agreements (-64.6%), largely
attributable — as in the case of loans — to the maturity of transactions with institutional counterparties (Cassa di Compensazione e
Garanzia). The drop in the demand component within current accounts and deposits (-12 billion euro or -6.1%) should be viewed
in light of both the decrease in wholesale funding from institutional counterparties and a partial shift in customer demand
towards higher-return investment products, and bonds in particular. Bonds reported sustained growth of over 11 billion euro
(+9.1%), confirming their importance within both investors’ portfolios and the Group’s overall funding. At the end of 2011, the
Group's share of direct customer deposits on the domestic market (according to the harmonised ECB definition) was 16.9%,
down by one-tenth of a percentage point on the figure reported at the end of December 2010 owing to the downtrend in the
demand component and repurchase agreements, only partially offset by the improvement in the share of other time deposits
and bonds.

(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes Business areas
amount %
Banca dei Territori 200,574 201,449 -875 -0.4 Banca dei Territori 61.7%
Corporate and Investment Banking 87,591 102,783 -15,192 -14.8
International Subsidiary Banks 30,678 30,259 419 1.4 Corporate and
Eurizon Capital 9 12 -3 -25.0 Investment Banking 26.9%
Banca Fideuram 6,367 6,586 -219 -3.3
Total business areas 325,219 341,089 -15,870 -4.7
Corporate Centre 34,772 61,113 -26,341 -43.1 International Subsidiary
Banks 9.4%
Intesa Sanpaolo Group 359,991 402,202 -42,211 -10.5 '
s\ Eurizon Capital -

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit .
'9u o Y aering ges | P et nbust unt ‘ Banca Fideuram 2.0%

constituents and discontinued operations.

The breakdown by Group business areas shows that Banca dei Territori, which made up over half of the aggregate attributable to
the Group's total operating business areas, remained virtually stable on an annual basis (-0.4%): the decrease in amounts due to
retail customers was offset by the increase in funding through securities. Corporate and Investment Banking reported negative
development (-14.8%) due to less bond placement by Banca IMI and the drop in liquidity from short-term deposits of major
customers, as a result of the economic recession. Banca Fideuram’s funding declined (-3.3%) as a result of the decrease in
amounts due to ordinary customers associated with the shift in liquidity towards assets under administration in the latter part of
the year. Conversely, International Subsidiary Banks achieved an increase in funding during the year (+1.4%) attributable to
securities transactions and, to a lesser extent, the increase in amounts due to customers. The contraction recorded in
Corporate Centres (-43.1%) is due to the maturity of time deposits, certificates of deposit and commercial paper issued by the
Treasury Department, including through foreign vehicles on international markets and the unwinding of repurchase agreements
with Cassa di Compensazione e Garanzia.
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Direct deposits from insurance business and technical reserves

(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes Quarterly development
% breakdown % breakdown amount % Direct insurance deposits and technical reservese
Financial liabilities of the insurance
business designated at fair value (*) 21,955 30.0 24,906 33.1 -2,951 -11.8
Index-linked products 1,564 2.1 4,454 59 -2,890  -64.9 -
Unit-linked products 20,391 27.9 20,452 27.2 -61 -0.3 § N o
~ ~ o
Technical reserves 50761 694 50,188  66.6 53 11 = B
y ~ -
Life business 50,419 69.0 49,902 66.3 517 1.0 A 2 ;‘ N pat
o ™
Mathematical reserves 44,895 61.4 38,982 51.8 5913 15.2 ~ ™~ =
Technical reserves where the
investment risk is borne by the
policyholders (**) and reserves
related to pension funds 9,053 124 10574 140 1,521 -144
Other reserves -3,529 -4.8 346 0.5 -3,875
Non-life business 342 0.4 286 0.3 56 19.6
Other insurance deposits (***) 403 0.6 21 0.3 192 91.0
2 2 2 2 s - - =
Direct deposits from insurance @ 2 3 ] & & 3 N
business and technical reserves 73,119 100.0 75,305 100.0 -2,186 -2.9 m @ & = ™ | & =
m

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

® Figures included in the Balance sheet under Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss.

) This caption includes unit- and index-linked policies with significant insurance risk.

B Figures included in the Balance sheet under Due to customers and securities issued.

Direct deposits from insurance business came to 73 billion euro at the end of December 2011, down 2.9% compared to the end
of the previous year. This performance may be attributed to the decrease in the financial liabilities of the insurance business
designated at fair value by nearly 3 billion euro (-11.8%), most markedly of index-linked products. Conversely, technical reserves,
which represent the amount owed to customers who have contracted traditional policies, showed a net increase of 0.6 billion
euro (+1.1%) as the result of an increase in technical reserves associated with traditional insurance products (+4.4 billion euro),
largely offset by the value of deferred liabilities to policyholders (-3.8 billion euro) included among Other reserves.

Indirect customer deposits

(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes Quarterly development
% breakdown % breakdown amount % Indirect deposits
Mutual funds (*) 58,310 14.4 70,280 16.5 -11,970 -17.0
Open-ended pension funds and individual 3 2
pension plans 2,939 0.7 3,084 0.7 -145 -4.7 < 1 3 § 3 ©
IS a3 a 2
Portfolio management 73,279 18.1 74,249 17.4 970 -13 s g ~ 3 g NS
Life technical reserves and financial liabilities 77,322 19.0 77,136 18.1 186 0.2 - ~ 0 5
&
Relations with institutional customers 10,039 2.5 9,180 2.1 859 9.4 53 %
<
Assets under management 221,889 54.7 233,929 54.8 -12,040 -5.1 ~
Assets under administration and in custody 183,838 45.3 193,138 45.2 -9,300 -4.8 I I
o o o o
Indirect customer deposits 405,727 100.0 427,067 100.0 21,340 5.0 & & & S S s S S
~ 8 8 % & 8 8 =%
=

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

O The caption includes mutual funds established and managed by Eurizon Capital, Banca Fideuram and several international companies. The caption does not include funds held by Group insurance companies
and managed by Eurizon Capital, whose values are included in technical reserves, or the contribution of funds established by third parties and managed by Banca Fideuram, whose value is included in assets
under administration and in custody.

As at 31 December 2011, indirect customer deposits came to approximately 406 billion euro, highlighting declining performance
(-5%) compared to the end of 2010, due to both assets under management (-5.1%) and assets under administration (-4.8%).
Both segments were impacted by the performance effect of assets in the portfolio, both for the stock and bond components,
penalised by the sovereign debt crisis in peripheral countries of the eurozone and the ensuing decline in stock markets.

Assets under management, which account for more than half of the aggregate, came to 222 billion euro: the decrease compared
to the end of December 2010 was primarily due to mutual funds (-17%), affected by significant redemptions and the
aforementioned performance effect and, to a lesser extent, portfolio management (-1.3%). With regard to mutual funds, it should
be noted that increases were recorded in the funds held by Group insurance companies (included in the table under Technical
reserves) and in the funds established by third parties (included in the table under Assets under administration and in custody). The
decrease of mutual funds and portfolio management was only partially mitigated by the positive performance of relations with
institutional customers (+9.4%) and the stability of life insurance policies (+0.2%), the value of which is determined according to
national accounting principles and thus does not include the amount of deferred liabilities to policyholders. In the insurance
business, new life insurance business written by Intesa Sanpaolo Vita (the company formed by the merger of the insurance
companies Intesa Sanpaolo Vita — formerly Intesa Vita, EurizonVita, Sud Polo Vita and Centro Vita Assicurazioni), and Fideuram
Vita, including pension products, amounted to 11.7 billion euro in 2011.

The contraction in assets under administration on an annual basis, which was only partly offset by the increase in positions in
securities attributable to institutional customers, affected both retail segments and corporate counterparties.
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Financial assets and liabilities
(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes
of which of which
Insurance Insurance
Companies Companies amount %
Financial assets held for trading 59,963 1,341 71,945 1,836 -11,982 -16.7
of which derivatives at fair value 41,789 25 38,940 88 2,849 7.3
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit and loss 34,253 33,391 35,550 34,538 -1,297 36
Financial assets available for sale 68,777 39,194 61,835 39,197 6,942 1.2
Investments held to maturity 2,621 - 3,858 - -1,237 -32.1
Total financial assets 165,614 73,926 173,188 75,571 -7,574 -4.4
Financial liabilities held for trading (*) -46,454 -29 -43,046 -48 3,408 7.9
of which derivatives at fair value -44,172 -29 -40,282 -48 3,890 9.7

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

¢ )The amount of the item does not include capital protected securitised derivatives (certificates) which are included in the direct customer deposits table.

The table above illustrates the breakdown of financial assets and the total financial liabilities held for trading. Financial liabilities
designated at fair value, referring to insurance business, certain bond issues designated at fair value and capital-protected
certificates, are not represented as these are included in the direct deposits aggregates.

Total financial assets decreased by 4.4% owing to the differentiated performance of the various components. Assets available for
sale increased from 62 billion euro to 69 billion euro (+11.2%) due to the rise in bonds and other debt securities held by the
Parent Company and Banca IMI. Conversely, a downturn was recorded in assets designated at fair value (-3.6%), investments held
to maturity (-32.1%) and assets held for trading (-16.7%). The decrease in the latter captions is due to the contraction in bonds
and other debt securities, partly offset by the increase in trading derivatives.

Net financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss
(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes
of which of which
Insurance Insurance amount %
Companies Companies
Bonds and other debt securities held for trading and designated at
fair value through profit and loss 38,823 22,469 53,255 22,706 -14,432 -27.1
of which designated at fair value 22,083 21,403 22,117 21,312 -34 -0.2
Equities and quotas of UCI held for trading and designated at fair
value through profit and loss 13,320 11,955 15,269 13,549 -1,949 -12.8
of which designated at fair value 11,887 11,705 13,402 13,195 -1,515 -11.3
Other assets designated at fair value through profit and loss 284 283 31 31 253
Securities, assets held for trading and financial assets
designated at fair value through profit and loss 52,427 34,707 68,555 36,286 -16,128 -23.5
Financial liabilities held for trading (*) -2,282 - -2,764 - -482 -17.4
Net value of financial derivatives -1,774 -4 -1,180 40 594 50.3
Net value of credit derivatives -609 - -162 - 447
Net value of trading derivatives -2,383 -4 -1,342 40 1,041 77.6
Financial assets / liabilities, net 47,762 34,703 64,449 36,326 -16,687 -25.9

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

¢ )The amount of the item does not include capital protected securitised derivatives (certificates) which are included in the direct customer deposits table.

Financial assets held for trading, net of the associated liabilities, and financial assets designated at fair value through profit and
loss amounted to almost 48 billion euro, down 25.9% compared to the end of 2010. In detail, the decrease was due to the
reduction in the stock of bonds and other debt securities, which more than offset the slight decrease in financial liabilities held for
trading, including short-selling.
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Financial assets available for sale
(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes

of which of which
Insurance Insurance amount %

Companies Companies
Bonds and other debt securities 64,051 37,578 56,371 37,531 7,680 13.6
Equities and quotas of UCI 4,689 1,616 5,431 1,666 -742 -13.7
Securities available for sale 68,740 39,194 61,802 39,197 6,938 11.2
Loans available for sale 37 - 33 - 4 12.1
Financial assets available for sale 68,777 39,194 61,835 39,197 6,942 11.2

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

Financial assets available for sale amounted to nearly 69 billion euro, up by 11.2% compared to the figure as at
31 December 2010.

The caption consists primarily of bonds and other debt securities not held for trading and, to a marginal extent, of equities.
Financial assets available for sale are measured at fair value with a balancing entry in the specific shareholders’ equity reserve.

Net interbank position

Net interbank position came to a negative 42.8 billion euro as at 31 December 2011, compared to a negative 11.5 billion euro at
the end of 2010. The negative imbalance between amounts due from/due to banks is essentially related to loans entered into by
the Parent Company with the European Central Bank intended to replace part of funding from institutional customers with a view
to optimising the Group'’s cost of funding.

As at 31 December 2011, Intesa Sanpaolo’s exposure to the ECB amounted to 37.5 billion euro.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations and related liabilities
(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes
amount %
Investments in associates and companies subject to joint control - - - -
Property and equipment 26 75 -49 -65.3
Other - - - -
Individual assets 26 75 -49 -65.3
Discontinued operations - - - R
of which: loans to customers - - - -
Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations - - - R
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
and related liabilities 26 75 -49 -65.3

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

This caption contains assets and related liabilities which no longer refer to continuing operations as they are being disposed of.
As at the end of December 2011, the sole component of the aggregate was property and equipment of 26 million euro, down
65.3% compared to the figure for the end of 2010.

Sovereign risk exposure

The economic and financial environment during 2011 was severely affected by the sovereign debt crisis. The European Union and
International Monetary Fund intervened on several occasions to provide financial support to the countries in greatest difficulty.
Such actions involved Greece, Ireland and Portugal, however it is only in relation to Greece that the action envisaged involvement
of the private sector. The most significant exposure, which is illustrated in further detail in the following paragraph, is towards the
Greek government. Regarding exposures to Ireland and Portugal, it is considered that, also as a result of the aforementioned
public aid, at present there are no conditions to consider a write-down of the exposures as there has been no breach of contracts.
The Intesa Sanpaolo Group has a total of 98 billion euro in exposure to sovereign debtors, of which 74 billion euro is represented
by debt securities and 24 billion euro by other loans. In further detail, the exposure to the Italian government came to 82 billion
euro as at 31 December 2011, of which 60 billion euro was represented by securities and 22 billion euro by other loans.

The following table illustrates the book value of Intesa Sanpaolo Group exposures to sovereign risk.
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(millions of euro)

DEBT SECURITIES LOANS
Loans and Financial Investments Financial Financial Total
Receivables assets available held assets assets held
for sale to maturity designated at for trading

fair value

through profit

and loss
EU Countries 8,092 51,609 1,762 786 6,353 68,602 22,795
Austria - 61 2 - 52 115 -
Belgium - 84 - - 10 94 -
Bulgaria . R R R R R -
Cyprus 19 - - - - 19 -
Czech Republic - 27 R R 25 5 24
Denmark - - - - - - -
Estonia - - - - - - -
Finland - 17 - - - 17 16
France 112 255 - - 55 422 10
Germany 105 1,484 - - 373 1,962 -
Greece 64 153 - - 2 219 -
Hungary 221 500 20 - 28 769 203
Iceland - R R R 2 2 -
Ireland - 232 - - 1 233 -
Italy 6,951 46,521 633 703 4,852 59,660 21,621
Latvia 25 - - - - 25 60
Liechtenstein - - - - - - -
Lithuania - 19 - - 1 20 -
Luxembourg - 322 - - 307 629 -
Malta R R R R - - -
Netherlands R 173 3 83 2 261 R
Norway - - - - 67 67 -
Poland 74 28 - - 183 285 -
Portugal - 40 - - - 40 35
Romania 10 114 - - 3 127 15
Slovakia - 1,272 1,104 - 30 2,406 127
Slovenia - 124 - - - 124 83
Spain 511 151 - - 93 755 601
Sweden - 27 - - 10 37 -
United Kingdom - 5 - - 257 262 -
North African Countries 19 124 14 - 1,173 1,330 39
Algeria - R R R R R 39
Egypt - 124 14 - 1,173 1,311 -
Libya - - - - - - R
Morocco 19 - - - - 19 -
Tunisia - - - - - - -
Japan - - - - 51 51 -
Other Countries 2,193 506 362 266 617 3,944 1,174
TOTAL 10,304 52,239 2,138 1,052 8,194 73,927 24,008

Exposure to Greece

As at 31 December 2011 the total exposure to the Greek government amounted to 858 million euro in terms of nominal value
and 844 million euro in terms of amortised cost, with a book value of 219 million euro, after accounting for impairment of
870 million euro.

In addition to this direct exposure to Greece, the Group has an exposure of 200 million euro (with a book value of 50 million euro)
to Hellenic Railways and an exposure of 57 million euro (with a book value of 36 million euro) to other public and private
Greek entities.

The constant intensification of the Greek debt crisis led Heads of State and Government of eurozone countries to approve a
structured plan of aid for Greece which envisages involvement of the European Union, through the European Financial Stability
Facility (the “EFSF”), the International Monetary Fund (IMF) and private institutional investors. As part of this plan, in the second
half of 2011 and first few months of 2012 banks and insurance companies, under the direction of the Institute of International
Finance (IIF), defined a number of support options for Greece (Private Sector Involvement — PSI), which were crystallised in an
agreement dated 21 February 2012.
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That agreement calls for the Greek government to issue new bonds and securities linked to the gross domestic product (GDP)
of the Hellenic Republic having the following characteristics:
—  the nominal value of each bond eligible for exchange held by private creditors (GGB) shall be decreased by 53.5%;
—  the residual value shall be distributed as follows:
31.5% shall be exchanged with 20 new Greek bonds (new GGBs) set to mature within 11 to 30 years, so as to replicate a
5% amortisation plan starting in 2023;
15% shall be exchanged with short-term securities (maximum of two to three years) issued by the EFSF;

— the new Greek securities shall be part of a co-financing structure with the loan of 30 billion euro disbursed by the EFSF: the
payment dates for interest and principal shall be aligned with the foregoing in order to permit equal standing for the new
Greek securities and the EFSF loan;

—  the interest accrued through the time of the exchange on existing securities shall be paid with short-term EFSF notes;

— the coupon on new Greek bonds shall be structured so as to increase over time in order to limit the debtor’s borrowing costs:
the planned rate is 2% for the three years from February 2013 to February 2015, and then 3% for the following five years
(from 2016 to 2020), 3.65% for the coupon set to mature in 2021 and 4.3% for the periods from 2022 to 2042,

— each subscriber shall also be attributed securities separated from the new government bond indexed on Gross Domestic
Product, which could provide a moderate increase in yield if Greece’s growth outperforms current estimates. A cap shall also
be established in order to avoid excessive costs for the borrower over time;

— the new bonds, securities linked to Greek GDP and EFSF loan shall be governed by English law in order to protect the new
bonds from unilateral actions by the sovereign debtor. The new Greek bonds and securities linked to Greek GDP shall enjoy
the same ranking in the reimbursement as all the Hellenic Republic’s debts.

The combination of these elements results in an assessment of the loss, in terms of present value, at approximately 74.1% of the

nominal value of the bonds of the Greek government and other public issuers currently outstanding.

Given the agreement of 21 February 2012, in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 the Intesa Sanpaolo

Group has adopted an approach that has aligned the overall carrying amounts of the securities with their exchange value under

the agreement, considering both the haircut and the value of the securities received in exchange determined on the basis of the

yield established in the agreement.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group has thus opted to adjust for impairment all Greek government bonds and the Hellenic Railways bond

(also included in the agreement) by an average of approximately 75% of the nominal value of the securities, essentially in line

with the valuation resulting from the restructuring agreement.

In particular, for bonds included in the available for sale portfolio, the bonds were adjusted for impairment by aligning their

carrying amount to the fair value expressed by the market at 31 December 2011, eliminating the cumulative AFS reserve and

posting it to the income statement.

For bonds included in the loan portfolio, in line with the provisions of IAS 39 for the measurement of captions in this category, the

present value of the cash flows from the securities was determined in light of the terms of the new agreement. It was also

considered that in the fourth quarter of 2011 many hedging relationships were discontinued because they were no longer
effective due to impairment, inasmuch as impairment had caused an imbalance between the cash flows from the security and the
interest rate hedge for the purposes of hedge effectiveness testing. The cumulative fair value delta of the security for the purposes
of determining the original effective interest rate is as determined during the most recent effectiveness test that yielded a positive

result (30 September 2011).

The derivatives have thus been reclassified to the portfolio held for trading and the difference between the fair value of the

derivative as at the date of the most recent positive effectiveness test and the fair value as at 31 December 2011, or the amount

settled with the counterparty in the event of the early unwinding of the derivatives, has been recognised under “Profits (Losses) on

trading — caption 80,” with an impact of 73 million euro in 2011.

The table below shows the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s exposure to the Greek government and Hellenic Railways, and the

measurements made in the financial statements as at 31 December 2011. In brief, the measurements performed resulted in the

recording of a total of 1,046 million euro of impairment of the bonds in 2011 (939 million euro net of amounts allocated to
insurance products under separate management), of which 312 million in the fourth quarter of 2011 (321 million euro net of
amounts allocated to insurance products under separate management). The carrying amount of said bonds, after impairment, is

269 million euro. The fair value of these securities, measured based on the prices as at 31 December 2011, came to

234 million euro.
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(millions of euro)

Nominal Amortised Adjustment Book value Profits (losses) Impairment Book
value as at cost on security due before on as at value as at
31.12.2011 to fair value valuation trading/Income 31.12.2011 31.12.2011
hedge (net  from insurance (net of
of accruals) business accruals)
*)
Government bonds
Loans and receivables 192 180 110 290 63 238 @ 64
Financial assets available for sale 654 664 128 792 8 M 632 @ 153
Financial assets held for trading 12 - - 8 - @ - 2
TOTAL GOVERNMENT BONDS 858 844 238 1,090 -71 -870 219
Bonds issued by public entities
Hellenic Railways
Loans and receivables 200 203 23 226 2 ™ 176 50
TOTAL OTHER SECURITIES 200 203 23 226 -2 -176 50
GRAND TOTAL 1,058 1,047 261 1,316 -73 -1,046 269
TOTAL IMPAIRMENT (net of amounts allocated to insurance portfolios under separate management) -939

® Includes -69 million euro comprised in Profits (Losses) on trading and -4 million euro in Income from insurance business in the reclassified income statement.
)

(
(
(

Amounts referring to derivatives reclassified in the trading portfolio.
2 Includes 12 million euro adjustment for the elimination of the AFS reserve, "crystallised" when reclassifying the security pursuant to IAS 39 amendment (October 2008).
3

) The amount of impairment takes into account the presence of income from collateral of 7 million euro.

4) »
Includes impairment of trading securities of -6 million euro and realised net income of +6 million euro.

In addition to the above exposures, as stated, the Group has exposures in bonds of other public and private entities resident in
Greece for a nominal value of 57 million euro, with a book value of 36 million euro (21 million euro among Loans and receivables,
15 million euro as Financial assets available for sale) and with a fair value of 36 million euro, for which the measurement criteria
applied as at previous reporting dates remained unchanged without impairment loss recognition. Furthermore, loans to Greek
parties (banks and other customers) have been disbursed for 125 million euro, in addition to margins available on irrevocable
credit lines of 34 million euro.

Shareholders’ equity

As at 31 December 2011, the Group's shareholders’ equity came to 47,040 million euro, compared to 53,533 million euro at the
end of 2010. The change in shareholders’ equity reflects the opposite effects of the capital increase completed in June, the
distribution of the dividend on 2010 earnings, the negative trend in valuation reserves, as illustrated below, and the net result
for 2011.

Valuation reserves
(millions of euro)

Valuation Change Valuation reserves as at
reserves in the 31.12.2011
as at period

31.12.2010 % breakdown

Financial assets available for sale -662 -1,690 -2,352 71.3
of which: Insurance Companies -283 -692 -975 29.6
Property and equipment - - - -
Cash flow hedges -494 -439 -933 28.3
Legally-required revaluations 343 1 344 -10.4
Other -241 -116 -357 10.8
Valuation reserves -1,054 -2,244 -3,298 100.0

As at 31 December 2011, the negative balance of the Group’s valuation reserves increased to -3,298 million euro from -1,054
million euro at the end of 2010. The change during the year is attributable to the decrease in value of financial assets available for
sale (-1,690 million euro), most markedly debt securities, cash flow hedges (-439 million euro) and other reserves (-116
million euro).



Report on operations - Balance sheet aggregates

Regulatory capital

(millions of euro)
Regulatory capital 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

and capital ratios

Regulatory capital

Tier 1 capital 37,295 31,175

of which: instruments not included in Core Tier 1 ratio (*) 4,498 5,016
Tier 2 capital 12,201 16,348
Minus items to be deducted (**) -3,144 -3,721
REGULATORY CAPITAL 46,352 43,802

Tier 3 subordinated loans - -
TOTAL REGULATORY CAPITAL 46,352 43,802

Risk-weighted assets

Credit and counterparty risks 277,498 289,172
Market risks 17,488 15,385
Operational risks 24,825 27,175
Other risks (***) 5,395 426
RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS 325,206 332,158
Capital ratios %

Core Tier 1 ratio 10.1 7.9
Tier 1 ratio 11.5 9.4
Total capital ratio 14.3 13.2

(*) This caption includes preferred shares and, as of 31 December 2010, savings shares and preference ordinary shares.

(**) In compliance with the provisions of the Bank of Italy Circular 263/2006, in the calculation of capital ratios, elements to be deducted from total regulatory capital
have been deducted separately and for an equal amount from Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital, with the exception of the contributions deriving from the insurance business that
refer to contracts which arose prior to 20 July 2006 and continue to be deducted from total capital.

(***) In relation to risk-weighted assets, this caption includes further specific capital requirements as provided for by the Supervisory Authority to the various Group
entities. It also includes the supplement for the floor relating to the calculation of capital requirements for the credit risk according to IRB approaches.

At the end of 2011, total regulatory capital came to 46,352 million euro, compared to risk-weighted assets of 325,206 million
euro, resulting primarily from credit and counterparty risk and, to a lesser extent, operational and market risk.

Regulatory capital takes into account the dividend distribution that the Management Board will propose to the Shareholders’
Meeting, i.e. 0.05 euro per savings share and ordinary share, for a total dividend disbursement of 822 million euro.

All capital ratios improved compared to 31 December 2010. The total capital ratio stood at 14.3%, while the Group’s Tier 1 ratio
was 11.5%. The ratio of Tier 1 capital net of preferred shares to risk-weighted assets (Core Tier 1) was 10.1%.

In addition to ordinary operations, the increase in the ratios compared to 31 December 2010 derives from the capital increase
resolved and subscribed during the second quarter of 2011 (approximately +150 basis points on Core Tier 1), the sale of Cassa di
Risparmio della Spezia and of 96 branches to Crédit Agricole (+20 basis points on Core Tier 1), the sale of the second tranche of
Findomestic (+11 basis points on Core Tier 1), the sale of part of the investment in Prada (+8 basis points on Core Tier 1), the
removal of negative filters on the effects deriving from the realignment of goodwill during the last few years (+14 basis points on
Core Tier 1), based on the specific notification of the Bank of Italy as a result of the provisions of the so-called “Milleproroghe
Decree” on the matter of deferred tax assets, and from the realignment of goodwill envisaged by Law Decree no. 98/2011 (+52
basis points on Core Tier 1). These increases were partially offset by the acquisition of Banca Monte Parma (-9 basis points on Core
Tier 1), the impairment of Greek bonds (-22 basis points on Core Tier 1) and the charges for staff exit plans relating to the
agreement of 29 July 2011 (-16 basis points on Core Tier 1).

Lastly, in a Regulation published on 18 May 2010, the Bank of Italy provided new supervisory instructions concerning the
prudential treatment of reserves associated with debt securities issued by the central governments of EU countries and classified
among “Financial assets available for sale”. In particular, the Regulation allows the capital gains and losses recognised through
such reserves associated with the foregoing securities to be completely neutralised effective 1 January 2010, as an alternative to
the already established asymmetrical approach (full deduction of the net capital loss from Tier 1 capital and partial inclusion of the
net capital gain in Tier 2 capital). The Intesa Sanpaolo Group had elected to apply this approach. Accordingly, the regulatory
capital and capital ratios as at 31 December 2011 account for this measure (the effect on the Core Tier 1 ratio is +31 basis points).
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Reconciliation of the Parent Company’s shareholders’ equity and net income (loss) with consolidated
shareholders’ equity and net income (loss)
(millions of euro)

Shareholders’ equity of which

Net income (loss)

as at

31.12.2011

Parent Company’s balances as at 31 December 2011 44,271 -7,679

Effect of consolidation of subsidiaries subject to control 1,716 1,216
Effect of valuation at equity of companies subject to joint control and other

significant equity investments 18 45

Elimination of adjustments to equity investments and recognition of impairment of goodwill 1,164 142

Dividends collected during the period - -1,912

Other -129 -2

Consolidated balances as at 31 December 2011 47,040 -8,190
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Breakdown of consolidated results by business area and
geographical area

The organisational model of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group is based on five Business Units. In addition there is the Corporate Centre,
which is charged with providing guidance, coordination and control for the entire Group.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group

Banca dei

International Eurizon Banca Corporate
Territori

Subsidiary Capital Fideuram Centre

Banks
(*)

) Includes the Group’s Treasury.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s segment reporting is based on the elements that the management uses to make its own operating
decisions (the “management approach”) and is therefore consistent with the disclosure requirements of IFRS 8.

In addition to reflecting the operating responsibilities assigned according to the Group’s organisational structure, the business
areas are an aggregation of business lines similar in the type of products and services they sell.

Compared to 2010, the subsidiary Banca Infrastrutture Innovazione e Sviluppo (BIIS), created to serve public and private entities
participating in the construction of large infrastructures and the improvement of public services, was placed under the direct
responsibility of the General Manager and Head of the Corporate and Investment Banking Division. The new placement of BIIS will
allow it to pool its skills with those of the Corporate and Investment Banking Division and increase the efficiency of collaboration
with the Division's "product companies”, specifically that with the Investment banking and the international network.

As a result of this relocation, figures of the former division Public Finance are shown under the results of the Corporate and
Investment Banking Division. However, separate evidence is also maintained for the purpose of continuity with the representation
used in the interim reports.

The table below shows the main data summarising the trend of the business areas of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group in 2011.

The following itemised analysis of the business areas contains a description of the products and services offered, the type of
customers served and the initiatives carried out in the year; it also illustrates income statement figures, the main balance sheet
aggregates as well as the most significant profitability ratios.

It should be noted that Division figures for the comparative periods have been restated to reflect the new scopes,
where necessary.

Allocated capital was determined in accordance with the instructions issued by the Bank of Italy in compliance with Basel 2
regulatory provisions.

Value creation, expressed in terms of EVA, was calculated net of charges for integration and exit incentives, of the economic
effects of purchase price allocation pursuant to IFRS 3 and goodwill impairment.
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(millions of euro)

Banca Corporate and  International Eurizon Banca Corporate Total
dei Investment Subsidiary Capital Fideuram Centre
Territori Banking Banks

Operating income
2011 9,654 3,928 2,383 266 771 -217 16,785
2010 9,929 3,842 2,302 288 757 -589 16,529
% change @ 2.8 22 35 756 18 63.2 15
Operating costs
2011 -5,733 -968 -1,171 -120 -347 -798 -9,137
2010 -5,903 -965 -1,169 -132 -362 -773 -9,304
% change 2.9 03 02 9.1 4.1 32 1.8
Operating margin
2011 3,921 2,960 1,212 146 424 -1,015 7,648
2010 4,026 2,877 1,133 156 395 -1,362 7,225
% change @ 26 29 7.0 6.4 73 255 59
Net income (loss)
2011 -6,412 -1,797 -763 -297 89 990 -8,190
2010 734 1,552 378 77 133 -169 2,705
% change @ -33.1
Loans to customers
31.12.2011 186,414 150,701 30,881 109 3,439 5,200 376,744
31.12.2010 183,240 151,287 30,926 153 2,851 10,370 378,827
% change 1.7 0.4 0.1 288 206 499 05
Direct deposits from banking business
31.12.2011 200,574 87,591 30,678 9 6,367 34,772 359,991
31.12.2010 201,449 102,783 30,259 12 6,586 61,113 402,202
% change 0.4 148 1.4 25.0 33 -43.1 -10.5

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.
(a)

(b)

The change expresses the ratio between 2011 and 2010.
The change expresses the ratio between 31.12.2011 and 31.12.2010.
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BUSINESS AREAS

Banca dei Territori

(millions of euro)
Income statement/Alternative performance indicators Changes

Net interest income 5,820 5,881 -61 -1.0
Dividends and profits (losses) on investments

carried at equity 1 - 1 -
Net fee and commission income 3,234 3,370 -136 -4.0
Profits (Losses) on trading 99 84 15 17.9
Income from insurance business 492 578 -86 -14.9
Other operating income (expenses) 8 16 -8 -50.0
Operating income 9,654 9,929 -275 -2.8
Personnel expenses -3,285 -3,356 -71 -2.1
Other administrative expenses -2,436 -2,537 -101 -4.0
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -12 -10 2 20.0
Operating costs -5,733 -5,903 -170 -2.9
Operating margin 3,921 4,026 -105 -2.6
Net provisions for risks and charges -72 =111 -39 -35.1
Net adjustments to loans -2,334 -2,127 207 9.7
Net impairment losses on other assets -107 -17 90

Profits (Losses) on investments held to maturity and

on other investments - -1 -1

Income (Loss) before tax from continuing operations 1,408 1,770 -362 -20.5
Taxes on income from continuing operations -764 -737 27 3.7
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -456 -51 405

Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) -210 -249 -39 -15.7
Goodwill impairment (net of tax) -6,390 - 6,390 -
Income (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations - 1 -1

Minority interests - - - -

Net income (loss) -6,412 734 -7,146

Allocated capital 9,381 10,433 -1,052 -10.1
Profitability ratios (%)

Cost / Income ratio 59.4 59.5 -0.1 -0.2
ROE n.m. 7.0

EVA® adjusted @ (millions of euro) 4132 157 -289

(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes
amount %
Loans to customers 186,414 183,240 3,174 1.7
Direct deposits from banking business 200,574 201,449 -875 -0.4
Direct deposits from insurance business and technical reserves 63,458 64,976 -1,518 -2.3
Indirect customer deposits 230,340 244,718 -14,378 -5.9

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.

@ Net of charges for integration and exit incentives, effect of purchase price allocation, as per IFRS 3 and of goodwill impairment.

In 2011, the scope of the Division was changed as a result of the disposal of CR La Spezia to the Cariparma FriulAdria Group on
3 January, and an additional 96 branches (11 of Banca CR Firenze and 85 of Intesa Sanpaolo and CR Veneto) sold between the
end of March and the middle of May, as part of business line disposals and in compliance with the Italian Competition Authority's
provisions. On 26 July 2011, Intesa Sanpaolo completed the purchase from Fondazione Monte Parma and Banca Sella Group
respectively of 51% and 9.8% of the shares of Banca Monte Parma, and as a result now (after the exercise of the option existing
with Fondazione Monte Parma) holds 64.05% of the bank’s share capital. Note that the figures shown above and commented on
below have been restated, with effect from 1 January 2010, to exclude the contributions of the branches sold and to include the
figures of Banca Monte Parma.

Banca dei Territori’'s operating income was 9,654 million euro in 2011, amounting to 57.5% of the Group’s consolidated
operating income, down 2.8% on the previous year. In further detail, there was a reduction in net interest income (-1%) which
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had as one of its main causes the smaller benefits from loans to customers following an increase in market interest rates which
was not completely transferred to lending rates. This effect was partly offset by the expansion of the mark-down on deposits,
though in the presence of smaller benefits deriving from hedging activities on core deposits. Net fee and commission income was
also down (-4%), in particular, that from asset management and bancassurance products, which was affected by the negative
performance of the markets, specifically in the second half of 2011, up-front commissions on bond placements, relating to the
decision to privilege the placement of own bond issues in 2011, and fees and commissions on current accounts. Decreases were
also seen in other income items including income from the insurance business, down from 578 million euro to 492 million euro,
due to a reduction in net investment result. Operating costs, amounting to 5,733 million euro, decreased (-2.9%) compared with
those of 2010. Operating margin amounted to 3,921 million euro, down 2.6% from the previous year. Following higher net
adjustments to loans (+207 million euro), lower net provisions for risks and charges (-35.1%) and higher adjustments to other
assets (+90 million euro) primarily relating to the impairment of the Greek bonds held in the portfolios of the insurance
companies, income before tax from continuing operations came to 1,408 million euro, down 20.5%. Net result, which was
affected by considerable goodwill impairment caused by the difficult macroeconomic scenario, after the attribution of charges for
integration of 456 million euro and the economic effects of purchase price allocation of 210 million euro to the Division, came to
-6,412 million euro.

On a quarterly basis, the fourth quarter showed an increase in operating margin of 20.2% compared to the third quarter, driven
by an increase in revenues, in particular, in income from insurance business and, to a lesser extent, in net fee and commission
income and net interest income. Income before tax from continuing operations decreased significantly (-50.9%), mainly due to
higher net adjustments to loans.

The Division absorbed 38% of Group capital, which is lower than in 2010. The capital, amounting to 9,381 million euro, fell in
absolute terms (10.1%) due to the containment of assets at risk correlated with the retail, small business and business segments.
EVA was negative (-132 million euro).

The balance sheet figures at the end of December 2011 showed loans to customers of 186,414 million euro, up 1.7% on the
previous year end, mainly as a result of business customers and, to a lesser extent, retail customers. Direct customer deposits from
banking business, amounting to 200,574 million euro, remained substantially stable (-0.4%): the fall in amounts due to retail
customers was offset by the increase in funding through securities. Direct deposits from insurance business showed a decrease on
an annual basis (-2.3%), due to lower liabilities of the insurance segment designated at fair value. Indirect customer deposits
reached 230,340, down 5.9% from the end of 2010, due to the negative performance of the financial markets, which eroded the
value of assets under management and administration, as well as to outflows from mutual funds and portfolio management.
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Traditional lending and deposit collection operations in Italy and associated financial services

To serve household, personal, small business, private banking and small and medium enterprise customers,

creating value through:

— widespread local coverage

— afocus on the specific qualities of local markets

— exploitation of the brands of banks and the centrality of the roles of the officers responsible for the
Regional Governance Centres, Area Governance Centres, Banks and Branches as points of reference for
the Group at local level

— exploitation of the companies specialised in medium-term lending, consumer credit and pensions and
insurance, reporting to the Business Unit

Organisational structure

Retail Marketing Department

Small Business Marketing
Department

Business Marketing
Department

Intesa Sanpaolo Private
Banking

Non divisionalised banks and
Product companies"”’

Banca Prossima

Insurance and Pension
companies

Manages the Household (individual customers with financial assets under 100,000 euro) and Personal
(individual customers with financial assets of 100,000 euro - 1 million euro) segments

Manages businesses with a turnover under 2.5 million euro and Group loan facilities under 1 million euro

Manages companies with a turnover of between 2.5 and 150 million euro

Devoted to private customers whose financial assets exceed 1 million euro

“ Specialised in medium-term credit (Mediocredito Italiano), consumer credit (Moneta and Neos Finance),
the management of electronic payments (Setefi) and trust services (Sirefid)

Serves non-profit organisations

Specialised in offering pension and personal and asset protection services

Distribution structure

Over 5,400 branches, including retail, business and private-banking branches, distributed broadly
throughout Italy. The territorial structure is divided into 7 Regional Governance Centres (8 at the end of
2011) that coordinate 28 Areas/Network Banks (27 at 31 December 2011), designed to guarantee
optimum territorial coverage and standardised sizing in terms of numbers of branches and resources
assigned

During 2011, in order to strengthen oversight of operations and relations with the reference territory, the scope of responsibility
of the Areas under the Regional Governance Centres was redefined, creating new Territorial Areas, which increased to 27 at the
end of December 2011 from 22 at the end of December 2010.

At the beginning of 2012, as an important step in the strategy of reorganisation of the Banca dei Territori brands, which will
involve a single brand at local level and the simplification of operational units, the redefinition of the scope of the Territorial Areas
(increased to 28) and the Regional Governance Centres (decreased to 7) continued.
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Retail Marketing Department

Investment

Current accounts

Superflash

During 2011, the offering of investment products has been expanded with the launch of:

— a new sub-fund of the mutual fund “Eurizon Focus Capitale Protetto”, which enables modest
growth of invested capital over a time span of six years, with capital protection on maturity;
"Eurizon Strategia Flessibile — Obbligazioni 06/2016", a new sub-fund of the Luxembourg mutual
fund Eurizon Strategia Flessibile, which aims at obtaining an expected yield to maturity higher than
that of a basket of fixed-rate government bonds in the eurozone, thanks to the use of active
strategies to exploit market opportunities; “Eurizon Strategia Protetta Ill Trimestre 2011", an ltalian
registered fund created as a continuation of the “Eurizon Focus Garantito | semestre 2006 which,
through active selection of the weightings of the various components of the portfolio, aims to
provide capital protection at maturity and moderate growth in invested capital over a time span of
six years; a new class of income accumulation units for the “Eurizon Obbligazioni Euro Breve
Termine”, “Eurizon Obbligazioni Cedola” and “Eurizon Rendita” funds; three new sub-funds of the
Luxembourg fund Investment Solution By Epsilon. The first, called “Soluzione Attiva Protetta”, has a
twofold purpose of protecting capital at maturity, by investing in a basket of government bonds
with high creditworthiness, and participating in the potential growth of stock markets, through a
dynamic investment strategy in the Euro Stoxx 50 index, optimised through the use of a quantitative
model. The second, “Cedola x 4", aims at achieving an annual average return, over the
recommended investment horizon, higher than the six-year swap rate set at the beginning of the
investment period and distributing an annual coupon estimated at the beginning of the investment
period. Lastly, “Forex Coupon”, focused on investing in foreign currencies, mainly emerging
currencies, with the twofold objective of achieving an expected return, over a five-year investment
horizon, higher than the five-year swap rate and distributing an annual coupon estimated at the
beginning of the period of exposure to foreign currencies;

- two new portfolio management lines, “GP Strategia Valore Azioni Piu”, designed to create value
through a flexible approach in the selection of the weightings to be assigned to the various asset
classes according to the market scenarios, for affluent customers, whose main objective is to
increase their capital in the medium/long-term and who want to delegate the management of their
assets whilst still maintaining high levels of information and transparency and a close relationship
with their branch advisor, and "GP Linea Cedola 12/2015", offering diversified investment in bond
markets with the aim, at the end of the investment period, of achieving an average annual rate of
return at maturity higher than the "Barclays Euro Treasury Bond Dec 2015" index (a customised
index denominated in euro) made up of three government bonds in euro issued respectively by the
Italian, French and German governments, and also providing for the potential payment of an annual
coupon;

—  four new components of the GP Linea Dedicata: “Obbligazionario Euro Tasso Variabile” and
“Obbligazionario Governativo Italia”, distribution and accumulation components;

— a new unit-linked policy known as "Intesa Sanpaolo Life Prospettiva 07/2011" which, through a
wide range of investment profiles available to the investor, offers a flexible investment that can be
tailored to customer needs in terms of risk level and time horizon.

As regards the activities supporting the Progetto Risparmio (Savings Project), the communication
initiatives in collaboration with the newspaper “Il Sole 24 Ore”, aimed at strengthening the Group’s
position as the leader in asset management, continued during the year. Alongside the cooperation on the
dedicated portal “24 Ore di Risparmio”, conceived as a qualified, authoritative informational and
educational service on issues regarding saving, starting from February 2011 the monthly newsletter for
retail customers who signed up for the service on the Internet, also included contributions on issues
regarding the world of saving edited by the staff of Il Sole 24 Ore.

With regard to current accounts, “Conto Facile” was launched, the first “tailor-made” product which is
part of a new modular range of banking services for retail customers, which uses a single sales platform
to customise the offer based on the customer’s characteristics, specific needs and operations. With
“Conto Facile” customers can select the set of products and services most suitable to their needs, for a
total monthly charge which includes the fees for the individual products and services activated, taking
into account promotions and discounts which will be added to the offer.

One of the main initiatives during the year was the launch of “Superflash”, which has evolved from being
just a banking product into an “umbrella brand” focused on young people aged between 18 and 35 with
a new offer range, a new service model and a new language of communication.

The range has been restructured for each of the 6 “areas of need” identified (Card, Account, Loan,
Mortgage, Savings and Mobile Telephone) to meet the demands of the target market with specific
products at favourable conditions, designed to keep costs to the customer at a minimum.

In September the first branch with the “Superflash” brand was inaugurated in Milan, an Intesa Sanpaolo
flagship store with an environment specifically conceived and designed to meet the needs of young
people. In October branches were opened in Torino and Napoli, in December those in Firenze and
Bologna, and in the coming months branches are due to be opened in the other major Italian cities.
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Services

Mortgages

Loans

Protection

Environment

By virtue of an exclusive agreement with Alitalia, starting from February 2011, the “Intesa Sanpaolo
Alitalia” card is available to customers that are members of the MilleMiglia loyalty programme, to
facilitate the accumulation of miles and offer discounts and benefits on flight with the airline.

As a result of an agreement with Western Union Company, the world leader in money transfer services,
to offer Western Union® Money Transfer™ services, starting from June, customers holding an account or a
prepaid card can remit money abroad using the Group’s ATMs, 24-hours a day, at advantageous prices.
From autumn, 700 internet workstations will also be set up at branches, and the service will also be
extended to the web and mobile banking channels.

To simplify the administrative and operational management of inheritance matters, and improve relations
with heirs, the new “Inheritance Process” was launched, with the establishment of an Inheritance
Competence Centre for Banca dei Territori, in charge of managing several phases of cases forwarded by
the branches, and providing assistance on administrative aspects and basic legal and tax information.

At the end of the year, the first Italian Mobile Proximity Payment project was presented, aimed at
increasing the number of electronic transactions as opposed to using cash: associating a smartphone with
a payment card and a suitably enabled telephone SIM, customers can pay for their purchases at
merchants equipped with contactless POS, by using their mobile phones.

The new modular range of banking services for retail customers was expanded to mortgages, through
“Mutuo Domus”, a single fixed or floating-rate mortgage which can be customised thanks to the
multiple combinations of repayment plans, flexibility options and accessories.

As part of the “Prestito Multiplo”, the loan to finance personal and/or household expenses, the
“Prestito Auto” was launched. This is a loan for purchasing a car, for amounts from 2,000 euro to 30,000
euro, with a term of from 24 to 72 months, with no preliminary investigation of application fees, with the
possibility of repaying the amount in personalised instalments and an attractive interest rate compared to
standard rates.

Moreover, in December, the “Prestito Multiplo Garantito” was made available, with the same features as
the “Prestito Multiplo” and dedicated economic conditions, for customers who provide a pledge on their
Securities Deposit to support the assessment of their creditworthiness.

In favour of the households and economic operators in the Province of Messina damaged by the flood, a
credit line with a ceiling of 10 million euro has been allocated for medium/long-term loans at favourable
conditions, to restore flooded structures. Moreover, a 12-month moratorium was granted on mortgage
instalments for properties devastated by the flood, and current account credit lines were granted to
finance emergency expenses, with a maximum term of 12 months.

The insurance offer was enriched with the new “Polizza ProteggiSalute” policy, to cover medical expenses
for illness or accidents. This new, simple and innovative product is modular, offering the possibility to
select various levels of guarantees based on financial resources and propensity for insurance.

Confirming the Bank's commitment in terms of environmental sustainability and protection, as well as
innovation, the “Progetto Filiale Paperless” was launched, aimed at significantly reducing the use of
paper at the branches, simplifying transactions for customers and increasing security.

The new “Electronic signature on digital pads” service allows customers to view the banking
documentation and sign electronically on the screen of a tablet, eliminating the need to print out hard
copy receipts.

Small Business Marketing Department

Deposit products

For newly-acquired Small Business customers and those who contribute new financial assets, the
“Soluzione Business” has been set up. This is a time deposit on the customer’s current account which
meets the need to optimise corporate liquidity management, keeping temporary excess liquidity under
custody and increasing its value over a defined time span, to then allocate it, at preset maturities, to the
production cycle or to investment programmes, which are expected to last for several months.

The new product is marked by simplicity, accessibility and flexibility. It provides a gross return in line with
the best market offerings on the amounts deposited for 13 months, without deposit opening,
management or closure fees, an entrance threshold of 50,000 euro and a maximum subscription ceiling
of 5 million euro, with the security of a base interest rate of 1%, in the event of early withdrawal.

In December, the "Superflash Commercial" prepaid, rechargeable card was launched for professionals,
small enterprises, businesses and public entities, with a limit of up to 60,000 euro, to be assigned to
employees and contract workers, to manage expenses related to business and professional activities.
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Protection products

Agreements

The range of loan products was enriched with the introduction of “Tandem Impresa Pit” and
“Tandem Condominio Piu”, dedicated to Business and Small Business customers (short and medium-term
loans) and condominiums (medium-term loans).

“Tandem Impresa Pit” is a loan repaid in instalments, for companies purchasing goods or services with
suppliers that have an agreement with or are approved by the bank, which provides advantages for both
parties: customer companies may receive a loan of up to 100% of the invoice, with zero interest,
repaying only the principal in monthly instalments, as the interest portion is paid by the supplier that has
an agreement or is approved by the bank. The supplier receives support for its sales and collects the entire
amount of the supply in a lump sum, net of the interest paid in advance.

“Tandem Condominio Pit” is a fixed-rate, medium-term loan repaid in monthly instalments. The principal
is borne by the condominium, which can benefit from tax deductions provided by law on building
renovations, while the interest is charged to the company providing the services.

The range of products was also expanded with “Finanziamento Sostenibilita Business”, an ordinary
medium-term loan to favour investments in sustainable development of local areas, environmental
protection and improvements in safety in the workplace. The loan covers up to 100% of the investment,
for a maximum amount of 750,000 euro, cumulative within the limit of expenses documented through
public works, with a minimum duration of 2 years and a maximum duration of 5 years.

In the area of microcredit, “Prestito della Speranza Business” was launched. This is a new type of loan
with amounts of up to 25,000 euro, reserved for families which intend to launch a business or work as
freelance professionals, and have been accepted for the guarantees provided by the Italian Episcopal
Conference Fund.

In the area of farming credit, the “Progetto Radici” was launched, which involves the creation of
“Agribusiness Points” within branches, as an element of attention and confidence for customers in the
agrifood and agroenergy sectors. To support this project, the "A tutto Business! Agricoltura” initiative
was launched, providing advantageous conditions for operators in the primary sector.

With a view to launching specific initiatives in the area of environmental sustainability and energy savings,
Intesa Sanpaolo has entered into a partnership agreement with the Italian environmental organisation
Legambiente. In addition to awareness raising campaigns and training projects, the programme will
involve jointly identifying the main types of energy saving measures and related financial solutions to be
offered to individuals, businesses and public entities.

The agreement will be implemented through a series of operating protocols, the first of which is “Eternit
Free”, which governs the financial support from Intesa Sanpaolo within Legambiente’s project for the
replacement and disposal of constructions made from asbestos.

The financial products on offer include the following loans: “Finanziamento Sostenibilita Business”, for
the removal of Eternit, “Finanziamento Energia Business”, for the implementation and purchase of
photovoltaic installations, and “Finanziamento Gestione Business — Anticipo Imposte”, designed to
provide short-term funding to meet tax payment deadlines. The offer also includes “Prestito Ecologico”, a
loan for salaried and freelance workers who invest in the area of energy outside their work activities.

In support of the agricultural enterprises of the provinces of Como, Varese, Lecco and Sondrio affected by
the exceptional bad weather that struck North Lombardia in July, Intesa Sanpaolo made 15 million euro
available and designed a number of specific financing instruments.

A new catalogue of protection products for Small Business loans was launched. With a view to
rationalising and streamlining the range of products and services, previous coverage was replaced by two
new policies: "BusinessSempre" and "Business5". The former, with a duration equal to that of the loan,
can be combined with all categories of loans which entail repayment in instalments and with leasing; the
latter, with a duration of 5 years, to cover short-term credit lines.

The “BusinessFotovoltaico” policy offers small enterprises and professionals applying for loans for the
purchase and set up of a photovoltaic plant a set of guarantees to protect the plant and its capacity to
generate electricity.

The offer was also expanded with the “Business Gemma” policy, for women business owners and
freelance professionals, to support them with a wide range of insurance and welfare coverage concerning
maternity, welfare, healthcare, legal protection and assistance at difficult times.

For 2011, Intesa Sanpaolo renewed the national collaboration agreement with the ltalian trade
association Confcommercio, signed in 2009. The goal of this initiative is to continue guaranteeing
support to enterprises that operate in the commerce, tourism and service sectors by ensuring that they
have the liquidity they need to meet their cash flow needs and flexible financing, and also fostering the
creation of recapitalisation programmes and new projects.

The agreement confirms total loans up to 3 billion euro to member companies and offers the possibility
of customising the commercial proposal, implementing the framework agreement at local level by
entering into agreements with Confcommercio local associations and, possibly, Credit
Guarantee Consortia.
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Agreements

Intesa Sanpaolo entered into an agreement with Rete Imprese Italia, an association which coordinates the
leading Italian Business Confederations (Confcommercio, Confartigianato, CNA, Casartigiani and
Confesercenti), for the purpose of ensuring the utmost support to small businesses in a difficult economic
climate. The agreement, which involves 2.6 million companies operating in retail and wholesale, services
and crafts sectors, and provides 5 billion euro in loans, was modulated by the Area structures in the
various local areas, adjusting the terms and contents to specific local needs.

Intesa Sanpaolo has been involved in the creation of the R.I.S.E.E. network, which brings together
businesses in Lombardia operating in the area of energy efficiency and savings, particularly in the
renewable energy sector.

Two agreements have been signed in favour of the network’s businesses and customers that, with the aid
of Mediocredito Italiano’s specialist unit, have established financing products for the businesses and a
range of banking products and services for their customers to cover the costs of supply of goods and
services by the R.I.S.E.E. network or its member businesses. The R.I.S.E.E. network represents a model of
financial structure for the Group that can be repeated in similar situations for other enterprises.

Business Marketing Department

Loans

Internationalisation

Agreements

As regards short-term loans, the measures under the “SME Guarantee Fund”, set up by law 662/96 to
facilitate access to credit by small and medium enterprises through the granting of a public guarantee,
were extended to facilities for the purpose of divesting portfolios and advances on invoices. The pro-
tempore total amount guaranteed per individual company may not exceed 1.5 million euro, with
coverage varying from 60% to 85% of the loan.

“Filiera Pil”, an innovative instrument to support production chains, is also available. This instrument
aims at financing supplies of raw materials, semi-finished products, goods and services, and involves the
joint contribution of the supplier and the customer to paying interest. The loan, targeted to all businesses
with group turnover exceeding 2.5 million euro or Group credit limits exceeding 1 million euro, has a
term of 3 to 12 months, and can finance up to 100% of invoices of a minimum amount of 30,000 euro.

A new innovative product “Export Facile” has been launched in support of export companies, which
provides for the purchase without recourse of foreign receivables from invoices with due dates of up to
150 days, without any amount limits or minimum number of foreign debtors to be assigned, which offers
the companies a hedge against the risk of default on the receivables together with the possibility of
freeing the receivables up to meet their working capital needs.

In January 2011 Banca CR Firenze and Promofirenze entered into an agreement to provide local
companies interested in expanding abroad with operational, IT and financial support in the
internationalisation process.

The agreement with Compagnia delle Opere was renewed, based on which the over 34,000 profit and
non-profit member companies and their employees can receive banking products and services at
advantageous conditions: current accounts dedicated to private individuals, microbusinesses and SMEs
and loans set up based on varying needs, from “Presto Business” to loans for liquidity and investment
management, to recapitalisation products.

Confirming the partnership with Confindustria Piccola Industria launched in 2009, a new agreement was
signed for the purpose of supporting the re-launch and growth of SMEs, also by championing their
specific local characteristics, through operational instruments including a wide range of advisory services
and financial products, including non-traditional products for the segment.

The new agreement offers a ceiling of 10 billion euro, specifically targeted at strategic investments to
boost the competitiveness of Italian companies: growth in size, also by organising companies in business
networks, internationalisation, innovation and research, enhancement of human capital, energy efficiency
and ecosustainability.

The renewed agreement with the Consiglio Nazionale dei Dottori Commercialisti ed Esperti Contabili (the
Italian accounting profession council) envisages, alongside significant involvement of the Bank's local
structures in creating local synergies, the council's collaboration in creating the Intesa Sanpaolo Group's
new “Neo Impresa” portal, on-line since December. This portal is aimed at assisting those who intend to
develop an "entrepreneurial” idea, supporting them through all the necessary steps and identifying
available private and public loans.

To favour the aggregation and competitiveness of small and medium-sized enterprises, Intesa Sanpaolo,
through Mediocredito Italiano, has equipped its commercial structure with a complete range of financial
services and specialist advice in support of the launch of the business networks and participating
businesses. Specifically, the offer involves consulting during the pre-incorporation phase, the search for
business partners, oversight of institutional and association relations, advisory services and traditional
banking services for the management of collections and payments and company liquidity.
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In view of the positive outcome from the previous experience, Intesa Sanpaolo renewed the agreement it
entered into in June 2009, aimed at promoting the structural reinforcement and competitiveness of the
[talian tourism industry.

Through this initiative, which is part of the “Italia & Turismo” project implemented by the Italian Ministry
of Tourism together with the national tourism industry associations and the banks, Intesa Sanpaolo has
made a maximum amount of 1 billion euro available to small and medium enterprises in the tourism
segment to facilitate access to credit.

The funds available are aimed at financing investments to upgrade and develop enterprises in the tourism
sector, with a specific focus on business combinations, commercial enhancement, generational turnover
and energy savings. The financing, with a duration of between 2 and 20 years, will cover up to 80% of
the investment without any amount limits.

The offer has been built around the specific needs of tourist enterprises, taking into account the longer
periods of return on investment than other sectors and the seasonality of cash flows in the industry.

Agreements

Non-life policies At the start of 2011, distribution of the “Protezione Patrimonio Executive & Company” policy was
launched by the insurance company Arch Insurance Europe Ltd. This policy, which is targeted to all
corporations, cooperative companies, consortiums, associations and foundations, insures the company
and its directors, protecting company, personal and family assets. This offers directors, statutory auditors
and executives protection from losses deriving from illegal acts committed in carrying out their duties, and
covers the costs of legal assistance, expenses for participating in investigations, and damage to image.

Remote Banking Inbiz, the new portal for small and medium-sized enterprises, which allows customers to use a wide range
of on-line transactional services (cash management, electronic invoicing, trade services, factoring) through
a single point of access, is available to all Group customers in Italy and other nine European countries.

Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking

In 2011, Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking's activities continued according to the consolidated strategies: innovating commercial
offerings, developing customers and synergies with other markets, accurate management of resources, and brand
promotion communications.

The customer offering was enriched with the launch of the for-pay Private Advisory service (specifically dedicated to customers
with a high net worth) and Securities Lending service, which were significantly appreciated by customers. The product range was
also expanded, thanks to the strengthening of the partnership with Epsilon SGR and the launch of Franklin Templeton mutual
funds. During the year, the Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking Alitalia credit card was also launched. “Private Advisory”, which many
customers have already signed up for, consists of providing an analysis of the customer's portfolio (held at the Bank or, upon
specific request, at third party intermediaries) followed by the formulation of proposals for optimising the portfolio's allocation.
The service also provides customers with the opportunity to interact with the central assets management structure, through their private
banker. By subscribing to Securities Lending, customers authorise the bank to borrow securities owned by the customer without
any operating restrictions, as the customer may operate on their securities at any time, and retains the economic benefits related
to the securities lent. On maturity of the loan, which has a term of one day, the customer receives a consideration as
compensation for making the securities available. Less than one year from its launch, over 7,000 customers have already signed up
for this service.

Commercial operations featured the successful public offerings of Enel and GE Capital, in addition to the usual placement of
Group bonds and certificates in collaboration with Banca IMI. Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking asset management (funds and
portfolio management) recorded positive inflows, in a year in which the Italian asset management industry produced decisively
negative results in terms of net inflows.

In 2011 initiatives aimed at developing synergies with the Retail segment of Banca dei Territori and exploiting potential new
business opportunities for the Group, especially in the Business and Corporate segments, were expanded.

The commitment of Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking continued by way of the constant improvement of service levels through a
policy of promoting the value of human resources, who are subject to continuous training.

Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking is also investing in projects aimed at strengthening knowledge sharing processes. These initiatives
include “Remote Communications” and the company “Web Community”.

Lastly, brand promotion activities continued in 2011, through intense press activity, organisation of local events and
selected sponsorships.

In 2011 Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking earned income before tax from continuing operations of 164 million euro, up 15.8%
compared to the previous year, as a result of the growth in operating income (+4.7%) driven by the interest margin (+20.6%).

Non-divisionalised Banks and Product Companies

Banca Monte Parma, included in the scope of the Division following acquisition of control by Intesa Sanpaolo at the end of
July 2011, is not divisionalised, but represented in its legal nature within the scope of Banca dei Territori.

In 2011 the activities leading up to the IT migration of the company were implemented, leading to the adoption, on
20 February 2012, of the organisational, internal regulatory, operational and IT processes of Intesa Sanpaolo, as well as the
distribution and organisational model of the banks in the Banca dei Territori Division.

The economic results of Banca Monte Parma in 2011 were affected by significant adjustments to loans, made as a result of the
worsening of the economic trend and the deterioration of credit quality of leading economic groups in the real estate sector and
companies with purposes related to local authorities.
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In 2011 Mediocredito Italiano confirmed its role in providing support to the production system, granting 3.4 billion euro in loans,
marking an increase of 12% compared to 2010. The transactions channelled through Intesa Sanpaolo networks represented 98%
of the total amount disbursed. Operations of the Specialised Desks continued to be intense during the period with disbursements
of 1.3 billion euro, of which 65% in the renewable energy segment. With regard to support for Innovation and Research, a total
of 489 million euro for the dedicated product Nova+ were disbursed.

During the year, the trend of sharp growth in transactions backed by the Guarantee Fund continued, reaching 492 million euro,
an increase of 57% compared to 2010.

Commercial operations were initially highly intense, while the second half of the year recorded a slowdown in disbursements,
caused by tensions on the financial markets triggered by the sovereign debt crisis in August. In response to the unfavourable
economic scenario, an intensive programme of local business development was implemented, with events held at all the branches
of Mediocredito Italiano and at the Regional Governance Centres of the Banca dei Territori.

In 2011 Mediocredito Italiano reported an operating margin of 177 million euro, up compared to the previous year (+9.4%),
primarily owing to higher net interest income. Income before taxes from continuing operations was negative (-104 million euro),
mainly due to higher net adjustments to loans (+136 million euro). This increase occurred in a context of worsening general
economic conditions, which made it necessary to adjust expected losses to take into account the impairment of real estate
collateral lodged to protect said loans. Moreover, in relation to the negative economic trend, generic provisions on performing
loans were increased.

Consumer credit activities are carried out through Moneta and Neos Finance.

At the end of December 2011 the volume of disbursements by Moneta reached 1.8 billion euro, down 9% compared to the
previous year. Specifically, the personal loans segment recorded a decrease of 7.7% in volumes disbursed, while the loans against
assignment of one-fifth of salary fell 4.8%. The decrease in volumes disbursed for credit cards (-74.8%) is the result of the
decision taken during the year to interrupt the issue of these instruments.

Moneta’s operating margin amounted to 103 million euro, compared to 61 million euro in 2010 (excluding dividends received
from the former subsidiary Setefi in 2010, amounting to 70 million euro).

In 2011 a project was launched involving Moneta in a larger repositioning of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group as a leader in consumer
credit. The project, entitled “Con.cre.to”, aims at revising the personal loan management process, defining a new model for
customer profiling (risk/appetite) specific for consumer credit, boosting demand with innovative, modular products, developing
and integrating physical and remote channels to increase Moneta's brand awareness and maximise the effectiveness of customer
acquisition and management. In November, the project was launched in a pilot area comprising 77 branches in the Milano and
Province Area, to test process and product innovations with considerable interaction and collaboration with the Network, to be
subsequently extended to the entire country.

Neos Finance closed 2011 with a total amount financed of 1.8 billion euro, down 3.8% compared to the previous year. In the
various segments, car loans, leasing and credit cards reported decreases, while personal loans, special-purpose loans and
assignment of one-fifth of salary reported increases (+9.3%, +4.5% and +30.8%, respectively).

Neos Finance's operating margin came to 97 million euro, up 9.2% on 2010. The income before tax from continuing operations
was considerably negative (-164 million euro) due to the higher net adjustments to loans, attributable to the change in the
method of calculating the cost of risk, following specific due diligence conducted by the Parent Company.

Setefi specialises in managing electronic payment systems. On 22 February 2011 it was registered in the new Payment Institutes
Registry kept by the Bank of Italy. The resumption of direct control over the company by Intesa Sanpaolo was finalised on
27 June 2011. Strategic choices result in defining the company as an independent business unit for acquiring and a hub for
concentrating all activities relating to cards and POS.

In 2011 Setefi reported an increase in operating margin, which rose to 174 million euro (+18.7% compared to 2010).

Almost all the 10.6 million cards managed by Setefi as at 31 December 2011 were issued directly by the Parent Company and the
Group banks, and their number increased by 11.6% compared to the previous year. The number of POS at the end of 2011
amounted to approximately 283,000, growth of 16% on 31 December 2010. The total number of transactions handled
(transactions at Setefi POS and transactions on cards issued by Group banks on other POS) increased 20% (from 463 million
transactions as at 31 December 2010 to 556 million transactions as at 31 December 2011); the total amount transacted was up
around 17% (from 36.5 billion euro to 42.7 billion euro). In 2011, Setefi continued to concentrate on the process of efficiency
enhancement and improvement of its operations, maintaining a constant focus on costs. The initiatives during the year included
the launch, under the “Superflash” offering, of the “Move and Pay” platform (an innovative system enabling money transfer and
payment for goods and services by mobile telephone), developed with the contribution of Setefi. The “Move and Pay” was
successfully upgraded with the presentation, in partnership with MasterCard, of the first Italian “Mobile Proximity Payment”
project, which, by associating a smartphone with a payment card and a telephone SIM, allows users to pay for their purchases at
merchants equipped with contactless POS, using their mobile phones. The cross-border acquiring project was developed, with the
activation of sales points in France and Spain, after activation in Switzerland (the foreign language versions of the monetaonline
site have also been released). During the year, an important commercial agreement - the first of its kind in Italy - was finalised,
permitting the acceptance of payment using Diners and Discover cards via POS terminals installed with partner merchants of
Setefi, and an additional strategic agreement was signed with China Union Pay (CUP) to permit the use of CUP cards at ATMs
managed by Setefi and to expand the current acceptance network. Development continued of the project aimed at concentrating
the activities relating to the Bancomat/Pagobancomat card authorisation system (including ATM withdrawals) within Setefi. Lastly,
the implementation and upgrading of the channel and e-commerce services (internet portals of card holders, merchants and for
electronic commerce) continued.

SIREFID, which specialises in trust services for business leaders and private investors, held assets under administration of 8.8 billion
euro as at 31 December 2011, equal to approximately 25,500 mandates.
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Agriventure is the Intesa Sanpaolo Group company which provides advisory services in the agrifood, agroindustrial and agroenergy
sectors, and operates throughout the country to meet both technical needs of the Group bank network and the needs of
companies operating in the various stages of these production chains.

The company constitutes a new service model for agribusiness in Italy. At national level, it is positioned as a qualified, innovative
market leader for its sector, supporting strategic investments and promoting the most innovative business projects in the
agricultural chain.

Banca Prossima

Banca Prossima operates in the non-profit sector through 65 local branches and 140 specialists distributed throughout Italy.
During the year, in order to further reinforce its role as the bank of reference for the Non-Profit Sector, the Bank's commercial
action focused on acquiring new customers and developing existing customers. As at 31 December 2011 Banca Prossima had
16,700 customers. Customer financial assets amounted to 3.6 billion euro, of which almost 850 million euro in direct customer
deposits and approximately 200 million euro in Group bonds. As at the same date, lending operations had achieved an approved
amount of over 1.1 billion euro. In 2011, the company almost doubled its revenues (amounting to 29 million euro) compared to
2010, achieving operating income of 8.4 million euro and income before tax from continuing operations of 4.6 million euro.

In 2011 new products, services and initiatives aimed exclusively at non-profit firms were created. Specifically, the “Salvastipendi”
initiative stands out, targeted at socially-oriented enterprises and cooperatives to guarantee regular payment of salaries to
employees. This is a range of financial solutions (factoring receivables and/or cash credit lines) guaranteed by Cooperfidi Italia,
requiring the amounts made available to be used to pay salaries.

The "Terzo Valore” internet platform was also issued, which can be used by non-profit organisations to contact individuals and
legal persons to raise the funds necessary to implement their projects. During the year, the new current account “Conto Prossima
Menu” was launched, which offers non-profit organisations the opportunity to select, from a wide range of options, the account
conditions that best meet their needs. The completion of the insurance range continued, with three new policies (“Prossima Sicura
— Volontariato”, “Prossima Sicura — Mandato di prodotto” and “Prossima Sicura - Polizza Protezione Patrimonio Executive &
Company”). Moreover, new investment opportunities were offered through bonds targeted to legal persons and products aimed
at optimising organisations’ liquidity and equity (Liquidita Stars Cash Fund). Lastly, two new loans, one short-term and one
medium-/long-term, have been set up, targeted to socially-oriented enterprises, with direct guarantees from the SME Guarantee
Fund pursuant to Law 662/96 as well as the marketing of “Ricap per le ONP”, a loan to support the recapitalisation of
cooperatives and socially-oriented enterprises, which is disbursed in an amount linked to the capital increase effectively subscribed
by the shareholders. Under “Superflash”, Banca Prossima contributed to the development of the “Impegno Sociale”
(social commitment) area, and was responsible for the development of the sections dedicated to Terzo Set-ORE, a new initiative
enabling young people to offer their services as volunteers for the non-profit organisations involved in the project, and
Terzo Valore.

Insurance and Pension companies

In the first part of 2011 the reorganisation of the insurance segment of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group was relaunched as a result of
the decisions of the Italian Competition Authority, which revised the measures for the life business segment of the insurance
market as a result of the merger between Banca Intesa and Sanpaolo IMI. In particular, the Competition Authority revoked the
obligation to sell the insurance company Sud Polo Vita to third parties, and established that the distribution restrictions set for
EurizonVita and Intesa Vita no longer apply. Within this context, the authorisation process was completed in September 2011 and
shareholder approval was obtained, on 17 October, for the merger plan. On 31 December 2011, the plan led to the integration of
the four companies EurizonVita, Sud Polo Vita, Intesa Sanpaolo Vita and Centrovita Assicurazioni, effective for accounting and tax
purposes as of 1 January 2011, and the creation of the new company Intesa Sanpaolo Vita, operational from 1 January 2012.
In 2011 the companies operating in the insurance segment reported a total of 233 million euro in income before tax from
continuing operations, down 45.2% compared to 2010, mainly due to the poor performance of financial management,
attributable to the worsening of listings on the financial markets, which resulted in the accounting of losses and valuation effects
on investments. It should be recalled that the 2010 figure had benefited from capital gains on the sale of securities. At the end of
December 2011 the portfolio of policies came to 67,371 million euro, up 1.2% on an annual basis. In 2011, gross life premiums
underwritten for both insurance products and policies with investment content amounted to 11,493 million euro, down 23.6%
on 2010. New life business amounted to 10,713 million euro in premiums underwritten (-26.5% on the previous year).

It is noted that insurance activity within the Group is carried out also by Fideuram Vita (@ company belonging to the
Banca Fideuram business unit).

As at 31 December 2011 the assets managed by Intesa Sanpaolo Previdenza (formerly Intesa Previdenza) came to 1,380 million
euro, of which over 80% consisted of open-ended pension funds established by the company (+3.2% compared to the end of
December 2010) and the remainder of management mandates for closed-end funds (increasing by 14.2% on an annual basis).
Net inflows for 2011 were positive for both types of funds.

At the end of December 2011, Intesa Sanpaolo Previdenza Sim had almost 247,000 pension positions under management, of
which approximately 143,000 attributable to administration mandates granted by third parties.
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Corporate and Investment Banking
(millions of euro)

Net interest income 2,318 2,253 65 2.9
Dividends and profits (losses) on investments

carried at equity -4 -29 -25 -86.2
Net fee and commission income 1,053 1,029 24 2.3
Profits (Losses) on trading 534 548 -14 -2.6
Income from insurance business - - - -
Other operating income (expenses) 27 41 -14 -34.1
Operating income 3,928 3,842 86 2.2
Personnel expenses -403 -425 -22 -5.2
Other administrative expenses -559 -533 26 4.9
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -6 -7 -1 -14.3
Operating costs -968 -965 3 0.3
Operating margin 2,960 2,877 83 29
Net provisions for risks and charges -18 -15 3 20.0
Net adjustments to loans -943 -465 478

Net impairment losses on other assets =747 -19 728

Profits (Losses) on investments held to maturity and

on other investments -265 12 -277

Income (Loss) before tax from continuing operations 987 2,390 -1,403 -58.7
Taxes on income from continuing operations -435 -827 -392 -47.4
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -34 -7 27

Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) 3 -4 7

Goodwill impairment (net of tax) -2,318 - 2,318 -

Income (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations - - - -

Minority interests - - - -

Allocated capital 10,132 9,923 209 2.1
Profitability ratios (%)

Cost / Income ratio 24.6 25.1 -0.5 -2.0
ROE n.m. 15.6

EvA® adjusted @ (millions of euro) -437 590 -1,027

(millions of euro)

Loans to customers 150,701 151,287 -586 -0.4
Direct deposits from banking business © 87,591 102,783 -15,192 -14.8

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.

@ Net of charges for integration and exit incentives, effect of purchase price allocation, as per IFRS 3 and of goodwill impairment.

®) The item includes capital protected securitised derivatives (certificates) classified under financial liabilities held for trading.

The Corporate and Investment Banking Division (including Public Finance) operated 2011 with increased competencies and a
broad diversification of the related business portfolio and activities, and achieved 3,928 million euro in operating income
(representing 23% of the Group’s consolidated figure), up on 2010 (+2.2%).

In detail, net interest income amounted to 2,318 million euro, representing an increase of 2.9% on the previous year. This positive
performance was mainly attributable to the increase in average volumes of loans, driven in particular by the operations of the
factoring, leasing, structured finance and global banking & transaction product companies, in addition to the positive contribution
of the assets relating to Banca IMI's HFT & AFS portfolio, which benefited from higher interest and active management in the
finance and capital management segment, as well as the increase in the average spreads for Public Finance customers. Net fee
and commission income, amounting to 1,053 million euro, improved by 2.3%, due to higher income linked to commercial
banking services, particularly loans, guarantees and factoring, in relation to stable investment banking fees and commissions.
Profits on trading, amounting to 534 million euro, showed a decrease of 2.6% compared to 2010, attributable to the negative
valuation effects recorded by Public Finance in relation to interest rate risk hedging on impaired Greek securities and the credit risk




Report on operations — Breakdown of consolidated results by business area and geographical area

adjustment, which more than offset the higher revenues from the private equity operations of the Merchant Banking Division and,
significantly, the considerable capital gains generated by the securities and investments portfolio (particularly the sale of 4% of
Prada) as well as dividends from trading collected. Operating costs amounted to 968 million euro, essentially stable compared to
2010 (+0.3%), reflecting the careful control of costs. The cost/income ratio, equal to 24.6%, decreased by 0.5 percentage points,
benefiting from the expansion of revenues, and is consistent overall with the mix of transactions, lending/funding and investment
banking managed by the Division. As a result of the trend in revenues and costs described above, the operating margin,
amounting to 2,960 million euro, grew 2.9%. Conversely, income before tax from continuing operations, amounting to
987 million euro, reported a sharp decrease (-58.7 %), due to greater net adjustments to loans, mainly due to the strengthening of
hedging of restructured loans, and greater impairment of Greek government securities and financial assets and investments
(Telco). Lastly, net result, which was penalised by considerable goodwill impairment caused by the difficult macroeconomic
situation, came to -1,797 million euro.

In quarterly terms, the fourth quarter of 2011 showed a decrease in operating income (-9.4%) compared to the third quarter,
attributable to the decrease in profit/(loss) on trading due to the negative valuation effects of derivatives on Greek bonds, as well
as to the capital markets segment, which had generated significant revenues in the previous quarter. The decrease in revenues
was reflected in a drop in the operating margin (-17.5%). Income before tax from continuing operations was negative due to the
write-downs recorded in relation to the impairment of securities issued or guaranteed by the Greek government and higher net
adjustments to loans and financial assets and other investments.

The Division absorbed 41% of the Group’s capital, up compared to 2010. Capital allocated, amounting to 10,132 million euro,
grew (+2.1%) mainly due to greater risks related to structured finance and capital markets operations. EVA came to -437
million euro.

The Division’s intermediated volumes were down compared to the end of December 2010 (-6.2%). Specifically, direct deposits
from banking business fell by 14.8%, affected by the lower growth in transactions in securities, particularly in relation to the
placement of bonds by Banca IMI, and the decline in liquidity in short-term deposits of leading customers, as a result of the
recession. Loans to customers were substantially stable (-0.4%): the reduction in the use of cash by Large Corporate lItaly,
International Corporate and Financial Institutions counterparties and the decline in reverse repurchase transactions with
institutional operators and financial intermediaries by Banca IMI were almost fully absorbed by the increase in loans to the public
works and infrastructure sector, handled by BIIS in relation to new operations developed during the period and the accounting
valuation effects, as well as the growth in operations of factoring, leasing and structured finance product companies.
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Corporate, Investment Banking and Public Finance, in Italy and abroad

To act as a global partner in supporting companies and financial institutions in achieving balanced,
sustainable growth, including at the international level, through a specialised network of branches,
representation offices and subsidiaries that engage in corporate banking operations

To foster collaboration between the public and private sectors with the aim of supporting the creation of
infrastructure and the modernisation of the public administration by pursuing international growth
opportunities in countries of strategic interest to the Group

Large Corporate ltalia
(formerly Large &
International Corporate)

Mid Corporate

International

Global Banking & Transaction
(formerly Financial
Institutions)

Merchant Banking

Structured Finance

Proprietary Trading

Investment Banking,
Capital Market
and primary market

Factoring and Leasing

Public Finance

The Department is charged with managing relationships with lItalian large corporate customers through
identification, development and launch of wholesale products and services, commercial banking, cash
management, corporate banking, investment banking and capital markets

The Department is responsible for handling companies with turnover in excess of 150 million euro by
means of a global and integrated offer of products and services overseen by all Divisions and the Group
product companies

The Department is charged with managing relationships with international customers and international
large corporate customers with subsidiaries in ltaly and is responsible for international branches,
representation offices and corporate firms and provides specialist assistance in support of the
internationalisation of Italian firms and the development of exports, the management and development of
relations with financial institution counterparties on emerging markets, the promotion and development
of cash management instruments and trade services

The Department is responsible for relations with Financial Institutions, management of transactional
services related to payment systems, trade ed export finance products and services, custody and
settlement of Italian securities (local custody)

The Department operates in the private-equity segment, including through its subsidiaries by acquiring
investments in the venture capital, notably medium-/long-term investments (of an institutional and
development nature with a business logic), of privaty equity companies and specialist funds (restructuring,
mezzanine, venture capital)

Responsible for creating structured finance products through Banca IMI

The Service is responsible for management of the proprietary portfolio and/or risk through direct access to
markets or indirect access, via relevant internal functions, in order to carry out trading, arbitrage and
long/short positions on capital markets products, cash and derivatives

The scope of the Division also includes the M&A and advisory, capital markets and primary markets (equity
and debt capital market) performed by Banca IMI

Factoring is overseen by Mediofactoring and leasing by the companies Leasint and Centro Leasing

Public Finance serves central governments, public entities, local authorities, universities, public utilities,
general contractors, and public and private healthcare providers

In Italy it draws on 56 branches dedicated to corporate customers and 18 branches serving public
customers. At the international level, the Corporate and Investment Banking Division operates in 29
countries in support of the cross-border operations of its customers through a specialised network of
branches, representation offices and subsidiaries that engage in corporate banking activity; the Division
has 3 representative offices abroad (Istanbul, London and Paris) to support Public Finance operations
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(millions of euro)
Income statement/Alternative performance indicators Corporate and Public Finance
Investment Banking

2011 2010 2011 2010
Net interest income 2,018 1,973 300 280
Dividends and profits (losses) on investments
carried at equity -4 -29 - -
Net fee and commission income 998 960 55 69
Profits (Losses) on trading 626 557 -92 -9
Income from insurance business - - - -
Other operating income (expenses) 26 39 1 2
Operating income 3,664 3,500 264 342
Personnel expenses -369 -387 -34 -38
Other administrative expenses -517 -488 -42 -45
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -6 -7 - -
Operating costs -892 -882 -76 -83
Operating margin 2,772 2,618 188 259
Net provisions for risks and charges -18 -15 - -
Net adjustments to loans -886 -421 -57 -44
Net impairment losses on other assets -26 -19 -721 -
Profits (Losses) on investments held to maturity and
on other investments -265 12 - -
Income (Loss) before tax from continuing operations 1,577 2,175 -590 215
Taxes on income from continuing operations -574 -753 139 -74
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -33 -7 -1 -
Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) 3 -1 - -3
Goodwill impairment (net of tax) -2,290 - -28 -
Income (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations - - - -
Minority interests - - - -
Net income (loss) -1,317 1,414 -480 138
Allocated capital 8,879 8,730 1,253 1,193
Profitability ratios (%)
Cost / Income ratio 24.3 25.2 28.8 24.3
ROE n.m. 16.2 n.m. 11.6
EvA® adjusted @ (millions of euro) 132 563 -569 27

(millions of euro)
Corporate and Public Finance
Investment Banking

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Loans to customers 108,785 110,779 41,916 40,508
Direct deposits from banking business ® 82,094 97,026 5,497 5,757

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.

@ Net of charges for integration and exit incentives, effect of purchase price allocation, as per IFRS 3 and of goodwill impairment.

® The item includes capital protected securitised derivatives (certificates) classified under financial liabilities held for trading.

In detail, the Corporate and Investment Banking Division earned 3,664 million euro in operating income, up 4.7% on 2010.

Net interest income amounted to 2,018 million euro, representing an increase of 2.3% on the previous year. This positive
performance was mainly attributable to the increase in average volumes of loans, driven in particular by the operations of the
factoring, leasing and structured finance product companies and global banking & transaction, in addition to the positive
contribution of the assets relating to Banca IMI's HFT & AFS portfolio, which benefited from higher interest and active
management in the finance and capital management segment. Net fee and commission income, amounting to 998 million euro,
improved by 4%, due to higher income linked to commercial banking services, particularly loans, guarantees and factoring, in
relation to stable investment banking fees and commissions. Profits on trading, amounting to 626 million euro, showed an
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increase of 12.4% on 2010, attributable to higher revenues from the private equity operations of the Merchant Banking
Department and, significantly, to the considerable capital gains generated by the securities portfolio and investments (particularly
the sale of 4% of Prada), as well as dividends from trading collected. Operating costs amounted to 892 million euro, a slight
increase compared to 2010 (+1.1%), reflecting the careful control of costs. The cost/income ratio of 24.3%, was down almost
1 percentage point, benefiting from the improvement in revenues. As a result of the trend in revenues and costs described above,
the operating margin, amounting to 2,772 million euro, grew 5.9%. Conversely, income before tax from continuing operations,
amounting to 1,577 million euro, reported a decrease (-27.5%), due to greater net adjustments to loans and impairment of
financial assets and investments. Lastly, net result, which was penalised by significant goodwill impairment caused by the difficult
macroeconomic situation, came to -1,317 million euro.

Public Finance closed 2011 with a net loss of 480 million euro, resulting from the effects of impairment on Greek bonds.

In detail, net interest income, amounting to 300 million euro, grew 7.1% compared to the previous year, as a result of the
average spreads for customers and the substantial strength of operations in Italy and abroad. Net fee and commission income,
amounting to 55 million euro, was down 20.3% due to the continuation of the structuring of several operations beyond the end
of the year. Overall, interest, fee and commission income showed an increase of 1.7%, confirming the stability of ordinary
activities provided to customers. Result of trading, amounting to a loss of 92 million euro, were impacted by the negative
valuation effects recorded in relation to interest rate risk hedging on impaired Greek bonds (-73 million euro) and the credit risk
adjustment (-29 million euro). These effects resulted in operating income of 264 million euro, down 22.8% compared to 2010.
Average loans to customers decreased slightly (-0.8%, including securities), and include new disbursements of approximately
4 billion since the beginning of 2011. Operating costs amounted to 76 million euro, sharply decreasing (-8.4%) compared to
2010, reflecting effective cost containment measures. The cost/income ratio rose from 24.3% to 28.8%, penalised by the
downtrend in revenues. As a result of the above trends, operating margin was 188 million euro, down 27.4%.

Income before tax from continuing operations, amounting to -590 million euro, was impacted by the impairment on Greek
government bonds totalling 721 million euro in relation to a nominal exposure of 697 million euro, and by the write-downs of the
related hedges.

Large Corporate Italy (formerly Large & International Corporate) and Mid Corporate

At the end of December 2011, volumes used by corporate customers increased slightly, as a result of the positive contribution of
long-term loans and short-term export credit lines, also due to the implementation of the Division's project favouring
internationalisation, both in terms of operational support to customers and in terms of greater availability of credit. The level of
use of these credit lines was higher than the industry average, both for the Mid Corporate and Large Corporate Italy segments,
confirming the preference for the Group shown by corporate firms. Constant assessment of risk, as well as a balanced policy of
development in loans to customers, resulted in an increase in the total share of wallet to over 26% for the amounts used.

In 2011, 90 structured finance and investment banking transactions were undertaken in the Mid Corporate Department,
compared to 70 transactions undertaken in 2010, confirming the recovery of extraordinary corporate finance activity, specifically
concentrated on debt transactions (structured finance).

The initiatives launched during 2011 included: implementation of a new commercial approach to the Division's customers, by
segmenting customers of all Departments based on the historically generated EVA and the outlook on cross-selling; continuation
of the “Start-Up Initiative”, through which the Group intends to confirm its role in supporting the development of Italian and
international technology companies, as an impartial player able to coordinate energies and efforts to support micro-businesses
that create innovation, by encouraging investment and aggregation actions whilst reducing the costs and timing of research and
development processes. Since the launch of the initiative in September 2009, 26 editions have been held, in Italy, the United
Kingdom, Germany, France and the United States, involving thousands of business owners and investors operating in various areas
of technological innovation. Finalisation of the Technology Opportunity Proposal (T.O.P.) and Technology Transfer Advisory (T.T.A.)
projects, created and implemented during the previous year, continued. The development of customer relationship management
instruments was finalised, for use by the commercial units, aimed at encouraging synergies and generating cross-business
between the Division's various products, including a commercial monitoring system that promotes collaboration between the
various product areas and monitors the generation of cross-selling among products, together with a management dashboard
which, in addition to data on the Division's earnings and operating performance, also shows the results generated by the
interaction between various products. Lastly, in order to confirm Intesa Sanpaolo’s role as the partner of choice for companies, a
project was developed which involves the logistics concentration of all internal product skills and relations for all customer
segments into physical points within the current 7 Regional Governance Centres, which will be supported by the branches of the
Banca dei Territori and the pre-existing Mid and Large-Corporate branches. The pilot project was successfully concluded in
January 2012 in the Triveneto area, and the roll-out to the other Regional Governance Centres is currently being defined.

International

The International Unit directly covers 29 countries through 12 wholesale branches, 17 representative offices, 2 subsidiary banks
and one advisory firm. In 2011 the internationalisation strategy was strengthened by moving the Department's head office to
London, while international coverage was pursued by fostering the internationalisation of Italian firms and building relationships
with major multinationals through a model for managing international network customers that is consistent throughout the
Group's international network. During the period, two projects which were created and finalised during 2010 moved forward:
internationalisation strategy and international account management. The pilot project on financial institutions (emerging markets)
of Banca Intesa Russia was also launched. Lastly, a HUB branch for the Middle East & North Africa Area (MENA) was established in
Dubai, which will coordinate all offices of the Division currently located in the area. The Dubai branch thus becomes the fourth
HUB of the Department in addition to the HUB branches in London, Hong Kong and New York and is the first of the measures
planned during the year for opening new branches to strengthen the existing structures in countries of high strategic importance.
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The Department is responsible for:

— Société Européenne de Banque, which recorded income before tax from continuing operations of 105 million euro in 2011,
up (+7.1%) on 2010, thanks to growth in revenues (+14.2%), attributable to the positive trend in net interest income and
profits on trading, and the reduction in costs (-0.6%), which more than offset greater adjustments to loans (+10 million euro);

- Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Ireland, which showed income before tax from continuing operations of 102 million euro, down 19.5%
compared to 2010, due to the fall in operating income (-25%), penalised by lower net interest income, and the increase in
operating costs (+8.8%).

Global Banking & Transaction (formerly Financial Institutions)

In a scenario characterised by liquidity tensions which caused a sharp decrease in interbank trade, the Bank's lending activities
remained highly conservative and carefully focused on counterparties' risk profiles, and transactions were completed aimed at
promoting the cross-selling of high added value products. On the marketing front, a campaign was promoted to develop capital
market products, intensifying the creation of new relationships with target customers. In Trade Finance, actions were conducted
to increase foreign-on-foreign operations, benefiting from the Group's presence in strategic countries of the Far East, India and
South America. Cross-selling initiatives were also undertaken with Banca IMI, specifically in Eastern Europe, in the Retail Sales,
Market Hub and ECM (capital increases) sectors. In the Trade and Structured Export Finance segment, structured export finance
operations were strengthened and, specifically, the first transaction to finance Chinese exports backed by the Chinese Export
Credit Agency Sinosure was concluded. Support was also provided for Italian exports, including Nordstream Phase 1 and
Nordstream Phase 2 and, along with UniCredit, an export financing agreement was finalised for UTair Aviation for the purchase of
ATR regional aircraft with the support of Coface and Sace. In Transaction Banking, a package of new added value services was
promoted, targeted to insurance customers, which increases the level of security relating to policy liquidation and the
disbursement of loans, and provides a set of reporting information to supplement customers' accounting systems. In the second
half of the year, liquidity funding activities were developed through securitisation transactions promoted by third party Italian
banks, in particular two MPS transactions relating to mortgages and lease instalments. In terms of international banks,
cooperation agreements were signed with several global players to manage volumes of payments in Non-EU countries, and a
request for information was submitted to six major local players on the British market for GDP clearing management. Marketing
initiatives on securities services customers of the Local Custody Department concentrated on cross-selling with Banca IMI to
acquire integrated execution and custody mandates, on managing several one-off transactions such as Crediop, MPS and UBI, on
renewing the local custody mandate of Crédit Agricole CIB and ABN AMRO Global Custody Services N.V., on launching new
services and operations for several customers, such as State Street Bank Milano, Banca Mediolanum, ABN AMRO and KAS Bank.

Merchant Banking

As at 31 December 2011, the portfolio held by the Merchant Banking Department, directly and through subsidiaries, amounted to
2.8 billion euro, of which 2.5 billion euro invested in companies and 0.3 billion euro in private equity mutual funds.

With an approach marked by great selectivity and careful risk assessment, in 2011 the Department finalised significant investment
initiatives, such as the acquisition of an investment in GWM Renewable Energy Il, a company that controls the renewable energy
operations of the GWM Group, with an investment of 12.5% for over 20 million euro, and investment in the shareholding
structure of VEI Capital, an investment holding promoted by Palladio Finanziaria for the purpose of taking on and managing
corporate investments with a view to private equity investments, with a total commitment of 60 million euro. The Department also
signed a commitment for 27.2 million euro in the DGPA & TATO' mutual investment fund, specialised in investment in the venture
capital of enterprises, which are mainly unlisted, and are in situations of financial difficulty or crisis or need restructuring.

Through the subsidiary IMI Investimenti, the Department participated in the share capital increase of CISFI for a total of 10 million
euro and participated in the capital of F2i Reti TLC, with a commitment of 17 million euro. Moreover, with stake of 10%, equal to
an investment of over 8 million euro, it entered the shareholding structure of Pavan, and, lastly, invested in the capital of
Savio Macchine Tessili, with an investment of over 12 million euro. The subsidiary also continued its support to the Italian
cinematographic industry, through partnership agreements in four new films.

Relating to disinvestment of the equity investment portfolio, the Department sold 4% of the capital of Prada, acquired in 2006,
for an amount of approximately 360 million euro. Intesa Sanpaolo remains in the company's shareholding structure with a share
of 1% of the capital.

As regards private equity fund promotion and management activity, carried out by the subsidiary IMI Fondi Chiusi SGR, fund-
raising for the Atlante Private Equity fund was closed, as it reached 200 million euro of total commitment. In 2011 a new project
was launched to create a reserved fund named “Atlante Seed”, dedicated to direct or indirect investments in start ups, in order to
strengthen or expand the network of connection between companies and investors. The project is part of the initiatives
supporting the development of Italian business innovation and involves the contribution of new capital to invest in the seed capital
market, which is significantly undersized in relation to those of the leading European countries.

Structured Finance

In the syndicated loans segment, Banca IMI, as global coordinator, mandated lead arranger (MLA) and bookrunner, finalised
transactions for Prysmian, Ansaldo Energia, Assiteca, Aran World, Snai, Metroweb, Stroili, Coin, La Gardenia, Tirrenia, Savio
Macchine Tessili, Transitgas and Business Beauty Holding, and completed the syndication process for Fiat Auto. Internationally, as
MLA, it participated in the Compagnie Europeenne de Prevoyance transaction.

In 2011 Banca IMI confirmed its leadership in the structuring of loans in all market segments, by offering a comprehensive range
of financial products dedicated to real estate and providing specialist advisory services for the property segment. Acting as MLA,
Banca IMI granted credit facilities to NH Italia, in support of the corporate operations and the plan for increasing the value of its
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real estate assets, to the Borio Mangiarotti Group, for residential property development in the south-west suburbs of Milano, to
Immobiliare 20M, for the acquisition of a portfolio of 20 properties located in Italy, to the Conero fund, for the acquisition of bank
branches leased to Banca delle Marche and, lastly, to the RHO Fund, for the acquisition of a portfolio of former Enasarco
office buildings.

In terms of the structuring of acquisition finance loans, Banca IMI, acting as MLA, completed the structuring and disbursement of
credit facilities to fund: refinancing of the total debt of SNAI and Stroili Oro and the acquisitions of the Vesevo/Rosso Pomodoro
Group by the Change Capital private equity fund, Wall Street Systems Holding (USA) by ION Trading Ireland Limited (Ireland),
Gruppo COIN by BC Partners, Ansaldo Energia by Finmeccanica, GTS Group by the Beauty & Business Holding Group, and
Compagnie Europeenne de Prevoyance by J.C. Flowers. The bank also supported the refinancing of the debt of La Gardenia
Beauty and the acquisitions of DNCA Finance by T.A. Associates, SPIE (France) by the Clayton, Dubilier & Rice e AXA Private Equity
funds, Savio Macchine Tessili by Alfa Group, and Balconi Industria Dolciaria by Clessidra. In Project & Acquisition Finance, in 2011
Banca IMI continued using its selective approach in the assessment of transactions and finalised credit facilities: to support the
acquisition of 100% of the capital of E.On Rete by a consortium of private equity funds; to refinance a solar farm located in the
Campania Region; for the acquisition of Metroweb by F2i and IMI Investimenti; to refinance Enel Rete Gas and 2iGas Infrastruttura
ltaliana Gas (formerly E.On Rete) and the concurrent acquisition of G6 Rete Gas by the F2i infrastructural fund. Support was also
provided to finance the working capital of Gasplus and Aes Torino.

The following is also noted: the arrangement of staple financing to support ENI's sale of its investment in Transitgas; the issue of a
guarantee to the Municipality of Milano as part of the sale of SEA share capital; the subscription of a financial advisory mandate to
arrange as part of a loan transaction for Genshipping Corporation (Slovenia). Lastly, on the international market, as MLA,
Banca IMI finalised credit facilities in the Energy sector, for OJS Severneftgazprom (Russia), Acciona Saltos de Agua and
Corporacion Acciona Eolica (Spain) (Acciona SA Group) and Planta Termosolar de Extremadura 1&2 (Spain) and, in the
Infrastructures sector, for Atlandes SA (Project A63 — France), Ecomouv SAS (Project Ecotaxe - France) and SalikOne
SPC Limited (Dubai).

Proprietary Trading

In 2011 Proprietary Trading recorded a negative contribution in terms of the income statement, both for structured credit
products, which were penalised by the negative market conditions, though with a significantly reduced risk exposure (from 3,715
million euro as at 31 December 2010 to 2,772 million euro as at 31 December 2011), and for the hedge fund portfolio, which
amounted to 665 million euro at the end of December 2011, down by 149 million euro since the beginning of the year.

Investment Banking, Capital Market and Primary Markets

In the debt capital market, in 2011 Banca IMI confirmed both its leadership in Italy and its capacity for international penetration,
with 35 transactions closed for domestic issuers and 17 transactions structured for international issuers. With regard to Italian
corporate customers, the Bank acted as bookrunner for two of the three issues of Telecom Italia, for Pirelli's inaugural bond and
for both of Enel's dual tranche transactions. Following the spin-off of Fiat's industrial operations into Fiat Industrial, the Bank
assisted both companies on the public debt market, and assisted FGA Capital with an issue.

On the international market, the Bank acted as bookrunner for the issue by Gas Natural Fenosa, for RCI Banque, for CEZ
(a company operating in the generation, distribution and sale of electricity in the Czech Republic), for Anheuser-Busch Inbev, for
Banque PSA, Carrefour and for Eutelsat. It is worth noting the coordination of the placement syndicate for a bond offering by
General Electric European Funding, guaranteed by General Electric Capital Corporation and by ENI. Lastly, in the high yield
market, it is important to note the issues by Guala Closures Group and Heidelberg Cement.

With regard to financial institutions issuers, Banca IMI confirmed its leadership in the placement of bonds issued by Italian banks,
further improving its positioning with European customers. On the domestic market, it is worth noting the issues of Banca delle
Marche, Banca Popolare dell’'Emilia Romagna, Banca Popolare di Vicenza, Banca Sella, Cassa di Risparmio di Bolzano, Cassa di
Risparmio di Cesena, Credito Valtellinese, Iccrea Banca, Ubi Banca, Veneto Banca and Intesa Sanpaolo. For international financial
institution issuers, the bank acted as bookrunner for the first euro issue of the year by National Australia Bank, as joint lead
manager for Goldman Sachs and for the covered bond of Barclays. In the sovereign supranational & agencies segment, Banca IMI
organised a private placement of a 10-year inflation- linked security by Italy and participated in four issues of the European
Financial Stability Fund (EFSF). Lastly, it acted as sole placement agent for the placement of units of the blind pool real estate fund
named “Caesar”, sponsored by AXA REIM SGR and specialising in investment in office buildings located outside of Italy.

In the equity capital market, significant activities were conducted in share capital increases offered in option, such as those of
Intesa Sanpaolo, Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena and Commerzbank. In November Banca IMI participated in the UniCredit capital
increase, concluded at the beginning of 2012. It also managed the IPOs of Prada and Ferragamo and, at international level,
participated in the placement syndicates for Cemex and Celesio convertible bonds and Danaher shares. The bank also confirmed
its positioning in the takeover bid segment, overseeing the mandatory takeover bid on SNAI shares and the sell-out of Fastweb
and Socotherm shares, as the intermediary responsible for coordinating subscriptions. At the end of 2011, Banca IMI was specialist
or corporate broker for 39 companies listed on the Italian market, confirming its leadership in this market segment.

In its M&A Advisory activity, Banca IMI achieved highly positive results in 2011, completing 38 transactions for a total value of
approximately 37 billion euro, ranking first place in Italy and eighteenth in Europe in the Financial Advisor league table. The bank's
activities were especially intense in the Energy & Utilities sector, where it advised Eni, F2i, Axa and Api. In the Telecom, Media &
Technology sector, Banca IMI provided advisory services for Wind Telecomunicazioni, F2i, Mediaset, Il Sole 24 Ore, Cerved,
Buongiorno, Investindustrial, Palladio and Prysmian. In the Industrial sector, it provided services to Finmeccanica, Saceccav
Depurazioni, Came and Fondo Alpha; in the Consumer & Retail sector, to Carlyle, PAI, Finanziere Tintoretto, the shareholders of
Vesevo, the Tuo Group, Bridgepoint, ZeisExcelsa and Riso Gallo. In the Pharma sector, it provided services to Mandarin Fund and
Euticals in the acquisition of Archimica; and in the Financial Institution sector, to the J. Hirsch & Co fund in the sale of 31% of
Comifin and to the Parent Company in the acquisition of 52% of Banco Emiliano Romagnolo.
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Factoring and Leasing

In 2011 Mediofactoring reported a turnover of 49.6 billion euro, a 47.3% increase on 2010, allowing it to remain the number-
one domestic factoring provider by turnover, with a market share of 31.8%, significantly up on the end of 2010.
This performance may be attributed to its transactions without recourse, up by 57.3% on the previous year. Compared to
31 December 2010, the outstanding receivables, equal to 11.8 billion euro, increased by 13%, period-end loans came to 9.8
billion euro, up 17.3% and average loans grew to 6,6 billion euro (+20.8%). In terms of income statement figures, the operating
margin for 2011, amounting to 159 million euro, was up 23% compared to 2010 as a result of the increase in operating income
(+17.5%), driven by net interest income which benefited from the positive performance of volumes and net fee and
commission income.

Through Leasint and Centro Leasing, Intesa Sanpaolo is the second largest leasing provider in the Italian market with a share of
17.9%, stable compared to the end of December 2010.

In 2011 Leasint entered into 9,326 new contracts, for a total amount of 3,535 million euro, stable compared to 2010; with an
increase in the outstanding amount, equal to 18.4 billion euro (+6.4%). The composition of the portfolio was influenced by the
considerable growth of Leasenergy (+14.3%), the product devoted to power generation attributable to the Instrumental and
Property segments, which represent 39.1% of the total portfolio. The property segment also recorded an increase (+4.1%).
Conversely, there were declines in the automotive (-8%) and securities segments (-18.3%). Income before tax from continuing
operations came to 97 million euro, up 31.4% compared to 2010, thanks to slightly increased revenues (+0.6%) and the
reduction in net adjustments to loans (-18%).

In 2011 Centro Leasing achieved an operating margin of 60 million euro, down 14.7% due to the reduction in operating income
(-14.7%), penalised by lower net interest income. Income before tax from continuing operations amounted to -1 million euro,
compared to -50 million euro in 2010, due to lower net adjustments to loans (-49%).

Public Finance

With the aim of promoting and financing the development of large infrastructure projects in Italy, in 2011 Public Finance
continued supporting large motorway projects, such as the Milano East outer ringroad, the BreBeMi project (Brescia-Bergamo-
Milano motorway), with the structuring of the operation and the inauguration of worksites, and the Pedemontana Lombarda,
supported via a bridge loan for the start up of works. A loan was also granted to Strada dei Parchi for maintenance and upgrading
works on the A24/A25 motorway, as well as a bridge loan to Autostrada Brescia-Verona-Vicenza-Padova for the creation of the
South section of the “Valdastico” A31 motorway.

To finance public and private healthcare services, universities and scientific research, Public Finance continued the factoring
without recourse of receivables due to contracted healthcare facilities and suppliers by the Local Healthcare Authorities of the
Lazio and Campania Regions. As part of initiatives supporting education, the modernisation of the buildings of the Universita degli
Studi di Bologna was financed and, as part of a financial consultancy project, an agreement was signed for the purchase without
recourse of certified receivables from Universita Cattolica del Sacro Cuore.

Measures supporting investment in public services and utilities included loans supporting the water, waste management and
energy sectors, to various utilities including: AGSM Verona, the municipality-owned company AIMAG, operating in the provinces
of Modena and Mantova, and Emilian company Hera. Public Finance also promoted the development of a plant to manage the
integrated cycle in the province of Grosseto, through project financing. In the transport sector, the Bank granted a loan to Ferrovie
dello Stato to implement projects relating to the development of the high-speed line, and to the Municipality of Milano for
extraordinary maintenance on vehicles used for public transport. In relation to alternative low environmental impact energies,
Public Finance is participating in numerous wind and photovoltaic energy projects throughout Italy. Among these, it is worth
mentioning the project financing loans for the construction of wind farms in Puglia and Sicilia, the “David Project”, organised in
pool with other banks, involving six companies for the purchase of the same number of photovoltaic plants (four located in Sicilia,
one in Puglia and one in Campania), and financing through a financial lease of public property for a photovoltaic plant which will
allow the Consenergia Green Consortium, established by the province of Perugia and other associated local authorities, to benefit
from the economic returns on the sale of part of the energy generated. There were also multiple interventions for the creation of
photovoltaic plants on greenhouses to generate clean energy while preserving the local area's agricultural role.

Disbursements continued for the funding of the long-term investment expenses of various local entities (including the province of
Pesaro Urbino and the Municipalities of Genova, Monza and Como). Moreover, a loan was granted to the Commissioner’s Office
of the Municipality of Rome to support a repayment plan for the entity’s past debt. In order to alleviate the financial pressure on
local entities and make financial resources available to businesses, the support to the Public Administration and their suppliers was
confirmed through advances on considerations owed to local entities by these parties. Pursuant to the Anti-crisis Decree, 85
agreements were signed during the year to factor without recourse the receivables due to suppliers of goods and services to
municipalities, provinces and regions throughout Italy, including the Basilicata and Sardegna regions, the municipalities of Milano,
Brescia, Modena, Pescara, Imperia, Nuoro and the provinces of Torino, Varese, Alessandria, La Spezia, Milano, Treviso, Firenze
and Potenza.

As part of loans that benefit from State subsidies, short-term loans were granted to the special commissioners of Tirrenia and
Siremar and support continued to be provided to suppliers as part of priority investment programmes for national defence.

In the harbour and airport logistics sector, loans were granted to upgrade infrastructures to the Port Authorities of La Spezia,
Napoli and Livorno, to develop the new headquarters of the Ravenna freight terminal and to the Firenze Airport and the SEA
Group, which operates the Milanese airports, to expand the airport system. In the area of public urban development,
disbursements to projects of national scope continued, such as the EUR Congress Centre, and the finalisation of the loan for the
construction of an integrated shopping centre in Pompei was finalised, which will result in the redevelopment of a disused
industrial area, the loan for the construction of a home for senior citizens in the province of Padova, as well as the loans to
Azienda Lombarda per I'Edilizia Residenziale della Provincia di Bergamo (ALER), the Istituto Trentino per I'Edilizia Abitativa (ITEA)
and the Azienda Casa Emilia Romagna-Parma, for social housing projects.
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With regard to international activities, Public Finance continued structuring the Gebze-Orhangazi-lzmir motorway project, one of
the main works launched in Turkey with the contribution of Italian builders, with which Public Finance is coordinating the works
as part of the Turkish government's wider investment programme. Among financing operations, a bond loan was subscribed as
part of the inaugural issue for the “Spanish Electricity Deficit”, the first transaction in a five-year issue programme which allowed
Spain to begin paying the receivables owed to utilities companies in the electricity system (Enel is one of the main beneficiaries of
the programme, through its subsidiary Endesa), as well as the guarantee provided to Stadtwerke Frankfurt am Main Holding
GmbH, which operates in the water, energy and waste management sectors.
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International Subsidiary Banks
(millions of euro)

Income statement/Alternative performance indicators 2011 Changes

amount
Net interest income 1,736 1,665 71 4.3
Dividends and profits (losses) on investments
carried at equity 19 14 5 35.7
Net fee and commission income 572 576 -4 -0.7
Profits (Losses) on trading 101 97 4 4.1
Income from insurance business - - - -
Other operating income (expenses) -45 -50 -5 -10.0
Operating income 2,383 2,302 81 3.5
Personnel expenses -598 -584 14 2.4
Other administrative expenses -440 -447 -7 -1.6
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -133 -138 -5 -3.6
Operating costs -1,171 -1,169 2 0.2
Operating margin 1,212 1,133 79 7.0
Net provisions for risks and charges -1 2 -13
Net adjustments to loans -693 -589 104 17.7
Net impairment losses on other assets -19 -19 - -
Profits (Losses) on investments held to maturity and
on other investments 4 5 -1 -20.0
Income (Loss) before tax from continuing operations 493 532 -39 -7.3
Taxes on income from continuing operations -104 -153 -49 -32.0
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives - -1 -1

Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) - - - -
Goodwill impairment (net of tax) -1,152 - 1,152 -
Income (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations - - - -

Minority interests - - - R

Net income (loss) -763 378 -1,141

Allocated capital 2,319 2,436 -117 -4.8
Profitability ratios (%)

Cost / Income ratio 49.1 50.8 -1.7 -3.3
ROE n.m. 15.5

EVA® adjusted @ (millions of euro) 82 75 7 9.3

(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes
amount %
Loans to customers 30,881 30,926 -45 -0.1
Direct deposits from banking business 30,678 30,259 419 1.4

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.

@ Net of charges for integration and exit incentives, effect of purchase price allocation, as per IFRS 3 and of goodwill impairment.

The International Subsidiary Banks Division is responsible for the Group'’s activities in foreign markets through commercial banking
subsidiaries and associates, mainly active in retail banking.

In 2011, the Division’s operating income was up by 3.5% on 2010 to 2,383 million euro. A detailed analysis shows that net
interest income came to 1,736 million euro, an increase on the 1,665 million euro in 2010 (+4.3%), owing chiefly to the Privredna
Banka Zagreb Group (+47 million euro), the VUB Banka Group (+32 million euro), Banca Intesa Beograd (+23 million euro), Bank
of Alexandria (+13 million euro) and Pravex Bank (+10 million euro), only partly absorbed by the decrease of the CIB Bank Group
(-61 million euro). Net fee and commission income recorded a slight decrease (-0.7%), largely attributable to the CIB Bank Group
(-12 million euro) and Bank of Alexandria (-6 million euro). Conversely, profits on trading, amounting to 101 million euro,
reported growth compared to the previous year (+4.1%) due to greater contributions from the CIB Bank Group (+13 million euro)
and Banca Intesa Beograd (+4 million euro), which more than offset the decreases of the VUB Bank Group (-5 million euro), Banka
Koper (-4 million euro) and Bank of Alexandria (-2 million euro).
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Operating costs, amounting to 1,171 million euro, were substantially stable (+0.2%) compared to 2010. Due to the trends in
revenues and costs described above, the operating margin came to 1,212 million euro, up 7%. Conversely, income before tax
from continuing operations of 493 million euro was down 7.3%, due to higher net adjustments to loans, increasing from
589 million euro to 693 million euro. The latter were affected by the losses on mortgages in foreign currency in Hungary, relating
to measured issued by the local government which burdened the banking system with part of the foreign exchange risk.
The Division closed 2011 with a net loss of 763 million euro, affected by the considerable goodwill impairment caused by the
difficult macroeconomic scenario.

On a quarterly basis, the fourth quarter of 2011 reported an operating margin down 7.5% on the third quarter, due to higher
costs (+9.5%), while revenues were stable. The income before tax from continuing operations decreased sharply, penalised by the
posting of higher net adjustments to loans.

Capital allocated, which represents 9.5% of the Group’s total, fell compared to 2010, coming to 2,319 million euro.
Value creation, expressed in terms of EVA®, came to 82 million euro, up compared to 75 million euro in the previous year.

The Division’s intermediated volumes showed a slight increase compared to the end of December 2010 (+0.6%). This trend is the
result of the positive performance of direct deposits (+1.4%), thanks to the development of securities transactions and, to a lesser
extent, the increase in amounts due to customers and stable loans to customers.

It is responsible for the Group's operations on the international markets through commercial bank
subsidiaries and associates

Guidance, coordination and support for international subsidiaries, which engage primarily in retail banking
operations. The Division is responsible for setting the Group's strategic development guidelines in terms of
its direct presence on international markets, involving systematic exploration and analysis of new growth
opportunities on markets already served and new markets, the coordination of international subsidiary
banks’ operations and the management of the relationships between international subsidiary banks and
the Parent Company’s central units and the branches and other foreign offices of the Corporate and
Investment Banking Division.

Organisational structure

South-Eastern Europe Presence in Albania, Bosnia-Herzegovina, Croatia, Romania and Serbia

Central-Eastern Europe Presence in Slovakia, Slovenia and Hungary

Commonwealth of ) ) . )
Independent States & South | Presence in Egypt, the Russian Federation and Ukraine

Mediterranean

Distribution structure

1,646 branches in 12 countries

South-Eastern Europe

In 2011, the operating income of the Privredna Banka Zagreb Group, including ISP Card, amounted to 523 million euro (+11.5%
compared to the previous year) mainly due to the increase in net interest income and net fee and commission income. Operating
costs remained substantially stable at 239 million euro. This resulted in an operating margin which reached 284 million euro, up
22.7% on 2010. Income before tax from continuing operations totalled 215 million euro, up 24.4%.

Banca Intesa Beograd, including Intesa Leasing Beograd, recorded an operating margin of 154 million euro, a 16.5% increase on
2010. Operating income grew by 13.2%, mainly as a result of the performance of net interest income (+13.2%), which benefited
from the growth in average volumes and spread, in net fee and commission income (+6%) and in profits on trading (+39.2%).
Operating costs were up 8.6%, owing to the increase in personnel and administrative expenses, the latter associated with the
installation of the new data centre and advertising costs. Income before tax from continuing operations came to 106 million euro
compared to 84 million euro in the previous year (+26.7%).

Intesa Sanpaolo Banka Bosna i Hercegovina ended 2011 with an operating margin of 13 million euro, up 19.6% on 2010.
This trend is due to higher revenues (+9.8%) and, in particular, to net interest income (+10.7 %) due to the lower cost of funding,
the increase in average volumes and net fee and commission income (+13.2%). Operating costs rose by 4.2% in the personnel
expenses and amortisation and depreciation components. Income before tax from continuing operations rose to 11 million euro,
more than double compared to 2010, benefiting from lower net adjustments to loans.

Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Albania reported an operating margin of 26 million euro, up 13% on the previous year, benefiting from the
favourable development of revenues (+1.9%) and the decrease in operating costs (-13.8%) mainly attributable to savings on
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personnel and administrative expenses. Income before tax from continuing operations amounted to 18 million euro, up 15.3%
compared to 2010, despite higher net adjustments to loans (+3.9%).

The companies operating in Romania (Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Romania, Banca CR Firenze Romania and ISP Leasing Romania)
recorded a total operating margin of 12 million euro, up 48.2% on 2010. Specifically, operating income increased 1.2%, mainly
due to the growth in net fee and commission income (+8.4%) and the reduction in other operating expenses. The reduction in
operating costs (-7.8%) was mainly due to lower administrative expenses. The companies recorded a loss before tax from
continuing operations of 33 million euro, worse than 2010 due to greater net adjustments to loans (+28 million euro).

Central-Eastern Europe

Banka Koper, including Finor Leasing, reported operating income of 94 million euro, up 0.5% on 2010. The increase was mainly
due to the higher interest income and net fee and commission income, which more than absorbed the reduction in profits from
trading. Operating costs grew slightly due to the increase in other administrative expenses. Income before tax from continuing
operations came to 23 million euro, up 3.2% compared to the previous year.

The VUB Banka Group achieved an operating margin of 292 million euro, up 11.1% on the previous year, benefiting from an
increase in operating income (+7%), attributable to net interest income (+8.7%) and net fee and commission income (+0.7%),
which more than offset the growth in operating costs (+2%), particularly administrative and personnel expenses. Income before
tax from continuing operations, amounting to 223 million euro, increased 17.7% on 2010, benefiting from the reduction in net
adjustments to loans (-4.7%).

The CIB Bank Group showed operating income of 421 million euro, down 12.7% on 2010. This performance was attributable to
the decreases in net interest income (-18%) and net fee and commission income (-9.6%), which absorbed the growth in profits
on trading (+59.1%). Operating costs decreased by 8.1% as a result of savings on all expense items. The increase in net
adjustments to loans was affected by the write-downs to the mortgages portfolio after the Hungarian government issued
measures, which became effective in the fourth quarter, aimed at burdening the banking system with part of the foreign
exchange losses of customers holding mortgages in foreign currency. Income before tax from continuing operations showed a
negative balance of 146 million euro, compared with a loss of 26 million recorded in the previous year.

Commonwealth of Independent States & South Mediterranean Area

Banca Intesa Russia posted income before tax from continuing operations of 30 million euro, compared to 14 million euro in
2010. Operating income rose (+2.9%) due to the increases in net interest income (+1.6%) and in net fee and commission income
(+4.8%) and the containment of other operating expenses, partially offset by the losses on trading (-9.9%). Operating costs were
up 2.6%, mainly due to the amortisation charges relating to the launch of the new information technology system.
Net adjustments to loans of 27 million euro were down 36.6% compared to 2010, when the loan portfolio deteriorated severely
in connection with the Russian market crisis.

The operating margin of Pravex Bank in 2011 amounted to 11 million euro (3 million euro in 2010) thanks to growth in operating
income (+16.4%) and, in particular, in net interest income, up 36.4% due to growth in the total spread attributable to the lower
cost of funding. Operating costs increased 2.1% due to higher amortisation charges. Following lower net adjustments to loans
(-6.1 million euro), Pravex Bank achieved income before tax from continuing operations of 4 million euro (-9.6 million
euro in 2010).

Bank of Alexandria achieved an operating margin of 100 million euro, down 1.2% on 2010 (net of the exchange-rate effect, the
change would have been +9.2%). Operating income rose 1.7% mainly due to the increase in net interest income (+7.9%) which
more than offset the losses on trading (-21.2%) and net fee and commission income (-13.5%). Operating costs showed an
increase (+4.2%) attributable to the expansion of operations. Following net adjustments to loans of 40 million euro, up on the
previous year due to the country's political and financial crisis, income before tax from continuing operations amounted to 59
million euro compared to 95 million in 2010.
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Eurizon Capital

(millions of euro)

Income statement/Alternative performance indicators 2011 Changes

amount %
Net interest income 2 1 1
Dividends and profits (losses) on investments
carried at equity 14 15 -1 -6.7
Net fee and commission income 243 261 -18 -6.9
Profits (Losses) on trading 5 7 -2 -28.6
Income from insurance business - - - -
Other operating income (expenses) 2 4 -2 -50.0
Operating income 266 288 -22 -7.6
Personnel expenses -49 -53 -4 -7.5
Other administrative expenses -70 -78 -8 -10.3
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -1 -1 - -
Operating costs -120 -132 -12 -9.1
Operating margin 146 156 -10 -6.4
Net provisions for risks and charges -2 -4 -2 -50.0
Net adjustments to loans - - - -
Net impairment losses on other assets - - - -
Profits (Losses) on investments held to maturity and
on other investments - - - -
Income (Loss) before tax from continuing operations 144 152 -8 -5.3
Taxes on income from continuing operations -29 -35 -6 -17.1
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives - - - -
Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) -38 -38 - -
Goodwill impairment (net of tax) -373 - 373 -
Income (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations - - - -
Minority interests -1 -2 -1 -50
Net income (loss) -297 77 -374
Allocated capital 60 68 -8 -11.8
Profitability ratios (%)
Cost / Income ratio 45.1 45.8 -0.7 -1.5
ROE n.m. 113.2
Eva® adjusted @ (millions of euro) 106 108 2 1.9

(millions of euro)
31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes

amount

Assets under management 130,497 136,426 -5,929 -4.3

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

@ Net of charges for integration and exit incentives, effect of purchase price allocation, as per IFRS 3 and of goodwill impairment.

Overall, total assets managed by Eurizon Capital as at the end of December 2011 stood at 130.5 billion euro (net of duplications),
down 4.3% on an annual basis, mainly due to the poor performance of the financial markets, which eroded the value of assets
under management by over 4 billion euro. Net outflows for the twelve months came to -1.8 billion euro, due to outflows from
Italian mutual funds and retail portfolio management schemes, only partly offset by net inflows achieved by Luxembourg funds
and captive insurance products. Eurizon Capital’s share of assets under management was 17% as at 31 December 2011 (gross of
duplications and including individual asset management within Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking's portfolio) compared to 16.2% at
the end of December 2010, due to a volume effect and a performance effect that was less penalising than that for the
sector nationally.

Operating income for 2011, amounting to 266 million euro, recorded a decrease of 7.6% on the previous year. Specifically, net
fee and commission income decreased (-6.9%), due to a higher incidence of insurance products under management mandates
compared to retail funds and portfolio management, of average assets under management lower than 2010 and of lower over-
performance commissions. Declines were also posted by other operating expense which in 2010 had included income deriving
from the charge back to Intesa Sanpaolo of costs for the “Action Plan Fund” project, by profits (losses) on trading, in relation to
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lower capital gains posted as at 31 December 2011 on investments in funds, as well as the contribution of the subsidiary Penghua
Fund Management Company Limited, consolidated at equity. Operating costs fell (-9.1%) thanks to cost containment measures,
and the cost/income ratio decreased from 45.8% in 2010 to 45.1% in 2011. As a result of the above revenue and cost trends, the
operating margin came to 146 million euro, down 6.4% on 2010. Eurizon Capital closed 2011 with a net loss of 297 million euro,
affected by the high levels of goodwill impairment caused by the difficult macroeconomic scenario.

On a quarterly basis, the fourth quarter of 2011 showed an improvement in income before tax from continuing operations of
7.9% compared to the third quarter, mainly due to an increase in operating income (+4.5%) and, significantly, in profits (losses)
on trading, and a fall in operating costs (-7.8%).

Capital absorbed amounted to 60 million euro, down on the amount for 2010. EVA®, which measures value creation, amounted
to 106 million euro compared to 108 million euro in the previous year.

Asset management

To provide collective and individual asset management products to the Group's internal banking networks
and develop its presence on the open market through specific distribution agreements with other
networks and institutional investors

Organisational structure

Eurizon Capital SGR Specialised in asset management on behalf of both retail customers (mutual funds and portfolio
management schemes) and institutional customers, to which it offers a wide range of specific investment
products and services

Eurizon Capital SA

(Luxembourg) Specialised in managing Luxembourg mutual funds

Epsilon Associati SGR Specialised in managing structured credit products and mutual funds using quantitative methods and
51% owned by Eurizon Capital and the remaining 49% by Banca IMI

Penghua Fund Management

Company Limited Chinese fund manager 49% owned by Eurizon Capital SGR

In the framework of significant events, in December, the merger by incorporation of subsidiary Eurizon A.l. SGR into Eurizon
Capital SGR was finalised, with effect from 1 January 2011.

At the end of September, the “Asset Management HUB Estero” project was approved, as well as the corporate transactions
required for its implementation. The aim of the project is to develop asset management operations in the Eastern European
market by creating a regional hub, which will act as a centre of excellence for the handling of asset management products
targeted at retail and institutional customers.

As regards managed products, during the year several Italian mutual funds were restructured simplifying the offer through the
reduction of the number of funds with similar investment strategies or low levels of assets. Following the maturity of the
"Eurizon Focus Garantito | semestre 2006” sub-fund at the end of June, the fund's name was changed to “Eurizon Strategia
Protetta — Ill trimestre 2011", the investment policy and the classification of the fund were changed from “guaranteed” to
“protected”, and the functions of promoting and managing company were centralised within Eurizon Capital SGR.

For the “Eurizon Obbligazioni Euro Breve Termine”, “Eurizon Obbligazioni Cedola” and “Eurizon Rendita” funds, two classes of
units were created, one distribution class (Class D) and one income accumulation class (Class A).

With regard to international mutual funds, as part of the strengthening of the joint venture Epsilon SGR established between
Eurizon Capital and Banca IMI, a new range of capital protected products was created within the “Investment Solution by
Epsilon” fund to be managed by Epsilon SGR. The twelve sub-funds of this new line were marketed from May to December with
the objective of pursuing growth of invested capital while guaranteeing protection of the subscribed value. Since the beginning of
2011, an additional sub-fund in the range of capital protected products “Eurizon Focus Capitale Protetto” was marketed, entitled
"Protezione 3/2017":

by adopting sophisticated management techniques, these products aim at protecting the highest value between the highest unit
value reached in the subscription period and 95% of the highest unit value of the sub-fund recorded from the day following the
end of said period.

Moreover, the range of the fund “Eurizon Strategia Flessibile” was expanded through the launch of two new sub-funds
("Obbligazioni 03/2016" and "Obbligazioni 06/2016"), which are part of the new generation of flexible bonds.

Lastly, as regards the development of non-captive operations, Eurizon Capital S.A. was designated as the management company
of the umbrella fund "Rossini Lux Fund”.

The range of asset management products was also reorganised to simplify the offering based on only the lines currently marketed.
The operation involved 21 lines and 244 customers. The migration involved maintaining the same risk profile and the same service
level for all customers concerned. The range of asset management products offered by Banca dei Territori was enriched in 2011
with the launch of two new lines: “GP Strategia Valore Azioni Piu”, targeted to the personal segment, replicates the management
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methods developed on “GP Investimento Private” and completes the range composed of the "GP Strategia Valore" and “GP
Strategia Valore Pii” lines. This line features a growing exposure to stock markets and, as a result, a higher risk profile and
recommended term. "GP Linea Cedola 12/2015", targeted to retail customers, replicates the management methods developed on
bond funds at maturity and aims to distribute a coupon for each calendar year of the investment period and to achieve, on
maturity, an average annual return higher than that of a basket of European government securities. Lastly, the offering of “GP
Dedicata” was expanded with the launch of two new sub-funds, “Obbligazionario Euro Tasso Variabile” and “Obbligazionario
Governativo Italia”, which offer managers the opportunity to optimise bond placement in the current interest rate scenario.
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Banca Fideuram
(millions of euro)

Income statement/Alternative performance indicators 2011 Changes

amount %
Net interest income 141 124 17 13.7
Dividends and profits (losses) on investments
carried at equity - -2 -2
Net fee and commission income 556 543 13 24
Profits (Losses) on trading 26 22 4 18.2
Income from insurance business 44 76 -32 -42.1
Other operating income (expenses) 4 -6 10
Operating income 771 757 14 1.8
Personnel expenses -138 -145 -7 -4.8
Other administrative expenses -194 -201 -7 -3.5
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -15 -16 -1 -6.3
Operating costs -347 -362 -15 -4.1
Operating margin 424 395 29 7.3
Net provisions for risks and charges -38 -72 -34 -47.2
Net adjustments to loans - - - -
Net impairment losses on other assets -139 -1 128
Profits (Losses) on investments held to maturity and
on other investments 7 - 7 -
Income (Loss) before tax from continuing operations 254 312 -58 -18.6
Taxes on income from continuing operations -62 -82 -20 -24.4
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -10 -4 6
Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) -94 -103 -9 -8.7

Goodwill impairment (net of tax) - - - -
Income (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations - - - -

Minority interests 1 10 -9 -90
Net income (loss) 89 133 -44 -33.1
Allocated capital 460 549 -89 -16.2
Profitability ratios (%)

Cost / Income ratio 45.0 47.8 -2.8 -5.9
ROE 19.3 24.2 -4.9 -20.1
EvA® adjusted @ (millions of euro) 143 174 231 -17.8

(millions of euro)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 Changes
amount %
Assets under management 51,977 53,500 -1,523 -2.8
Direct deposits from banking business 6,367 6,586 -219 -3.3
Direct deposits from insurance business and technical reserves 9,661 10,299 -638 -6.2

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

@ Net of charges for integration and exit incentives, effect of purchase price allocation, as per IFRS 3 and of goodwill impairment.

The figures shown in the table and commented on below include the results of Fideuram Vita, the company dedicated to the
management of the portfolio of policies distributed by the financial advisors of the Fideuram Group, spun-off from EurizonVita
and acquired by Banca Fideuram (19.99% of the capital) on 29 July 2010. The restated figures also include the consolidation of
Banca Sara, which came under Banca Fideuram, following the acquisition of total control from Sara Assicurazioni, and the
deconsolidation of Fideuram Bank (Suisse), as a result of the sale of the investment to Banca Credinvest. Both transactions were
completed in June 2011.

Assets managed by Banca Fideuram Group at the end of December 2011 amounted to 70.9 billion euro (of which 52 billion euro
in assets under management and 18.9 billion euro in assets under administration), slightly down (-0.9%) on an annual basis.
This result was attributable to the poor performance of the markets and was only partially offset by the new assets obtained
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through the acquisition of Banca Sara (2.1 billion euro) and the net inflows for the period (1.7 billion euro). In detail, assets under
management, which represent almost three quarters of the aggregate, were down 2.8%, despite the growth in the mutual fund
segment. Conversely, assets under administration showed an increase on the volume as at 31 December 2010 (+4.9%). In 2011
net inflows of assets under management, amounting to 1.7 billion euro, decreased by 184 million euro compared to the flows in
the previous year which, however, included 356 million euro for the repatriation of financial assets held abroad under the “Third
Tax Amnesty”. A breakdown by aggregate shows that assets under management reported a negative balance of 31 million euro
compared to a positive balance of 4.2 billion euro in 2010, which had benefited from the repositioning of customer portfolios
towards assets under management. Assets under administration showed a positive balance of 1.7 billion euro, compared to a
negative balance of 2.3 billion euro in 2010.

Direct deposits from banking business amounted to 6,367 million euro, down 3.3% on an annual basis, due to the reduction in
amounts due to ordinary customers, connected to the repositioning of liquidity towards assets under administration in the last
part of the year.

Direct deposits from insurance business, amounting to 9,661 million euro, also decreased (-6.2%) attributable to the declining
trend in technical reserves and financial liabilities of the insurance segment designated at fair value.

The number of private bankers rose from 4,349 at the end of 2010 to 4,850 as at 31 December 2011 (including the 296
professionals acquired through the purchase of Banca Sara).

The operating margin for 2011 came to 424 million euro, up 7.3% compared to the previous year, driven by the growth in
operating income (+1.8%) and a fall in operating costs (-4.1%).

The revenue performance was essentially attributable to the increases in net fee and commission income (+2.4%) and net interest
income (+13.7%). In particular, recurring fee and commission income, i.e. fee and commission income correlated with assets
under management, which represents the most important component of fee and commission income, rose compared to 2010
owing to the growth in average assets under management. Front-end net fee and commission income, associated with the
placement of securities, funds and insurance policies and the receipt and transmission of orders, which represents 9% of net fee
and commission income, decreased, mainly due to the effect of lower volumes in receipt and transmission of orders and in the
placement of third-party financial and insurance products, as well as lower profitability of bonds. Fee and commission expense,
essentially related to incentives for the network for attracting new money, decreased compared to 2010 due to fewer incentives
paid and allocated to the network of private bankers during the period. Conversely, the positive performance of the interest
margin (+13.7%) is attributable to the growth in interest income generated by the rise in rates in the first half of the year,
specifically on the portfolio of securities index-linked to the floating rate, which resulted in an improvement in the yield spread on
the cost of funding. Net interest income maintained its positive trend, despite the decline in rates in the last part of 2011, through
rotation of the securities portfolio, which resulted in an increase in total profitability. This result was confirmed by the quarterly
analysis of the interest margin, which reached a peak in the fourth quarter compared to the last eight quarters, with an increase
of 11.7% on the third quarter. Among other income components, positive performance was also reported by other operating
income (+10 million euro) due to lower charges for legal disputes and compensation to customers and the benefits related to the
termination of loyalty plans for the private banker network, as well as by profits on trading (+4 million euro) in relation to capital
gains on sales of bonds in the portfolio. Conversely, income from insurance business, attributable to the insurance company
Fideuram Vita, showed a decline in 2011 (-42.1% compared to the previous year). Provisions for risks and charges almost halved
(-47.2%) mainly due to the closure of disputes with lower costs than estimated and the termination of a loyalty plan for the
networks at the end of 2010. Profits on investments held to maturity and on other investments included the capital gain of
7 million euro realised on the sale of the investment in Fideuram Bank (Suisse).

In view of the worsening of the Greek sovereign debt crisis, the adjustments to other assets included the recognition of the
impairment on four Greek government bonds classified in the available for sale portfolio, for a total of 134 million euro. As a
result, income before tax from continuing operations came to 254 million euro compared to 312 million euro in 2010 (-18.6%).
Banca Fideuram closed 2011 with net income of 89 million euro (-33.1%).

The capital absorbed by Banca Fideuram amounted to 460 million euro, down compared to 2010. ROE was 19.3%, a decrease
attributable to the performance of net income. EVA®, which measures value creation, was down at 143 million euro.

Asset-gathering activity through financial advisors networks at the service of customers with medium/high
savings potential

To aid customers with informed management of their assets, beginning with a thorough analysis of their
true needs and risk profile. To advice on financial and pension issues with the aid of highly qualified
professionals in a fully transparent manner and in full compliance with the rules

Distribution structure

97 branches in Italy with 4,850 private bankers

The development of new products and services by Banca Fideuram in 2011 was focused on consolidating its leadership on the
reference market, by exploiting the product companies and paying careful attention to increasing the level of service provided to
customers. These activities involved the entire range of products and services, from financial assets under management to
insurance assets, to assets under administration to banking. This resulted in an expansion of funding and increased loyalty
of customers.

With regard to the Bank's funds, the revision of the range of flexible funds with Fonditalia continued, with the launch of two new
sub-funds: “Fonditalia Flexible Strategy”, sub-delegated to PIMCO for management and featuring an active strategy based on the
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diversification of risk factors; “Fonditalia Flexible Bond”, sub-delegated to Franklin Templeton Investment Management for
management, to benefit from their well-known expertise in bond management and, in particular, in the currency asset class.
Several solutions in the SICAV Interfund were revised, including “Interfund Equity Global Emerging Markets”.

Within the scope of “Fideuram Multibrand” (third party funds), the existing range was revised, also in light of the acquisition of
Banca Sara, which took the form of investments in new sub-funds, new price classes within existing relationships and the new
SICAV Julius Baer Multipartner of Swiss & Global Asset Management.

In terms of portfolio management, the Symphonia offering was updated with the marketing of the new uniform management
contract “Symphonia Electa Plus” which offers a single investment solution providing choices differentiated by type of underlying,
exposure to the stock market and geographical breakdown, and builds sophisticated solutions for Private customers. Moreover, on
the Omnia uniform management contract by Fideuram Investimenti, the access thresholds for the investment lines were reduced
to facilitate the reallocation of customer portfolios.

In the insurance business, “Fideuram Vita Insieme”, the first unit-linked policy in Italy which combines internal insurance funds
with traditional investment funds, was created. In line with the search for value for customers, several optional automatic
reallocation services were introduced in Skandia unit-linked policies. Lastly, two versions of policies with entry bonuses were
offered, “Fideuram Vita Insieme Premium” from Fideuram Vita and “Fideuram In Persona Premium” from Skandia Vita.

With regard to initiatives relating to assets under administration, Banca Fideuram participated in over twenty placements on the
primary market implemented by the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, mainly on the 2-year fixed-rate segment, took part in a floating-rate
subordinated issue by Intesa Sanpaolo, with a term of seven years, exclusively created for the networks of the Banca Fideuram
Group and those of Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking, and requested five exclusive placements, mainly 2-year minimum floating
rate placements. Lastly, Banca Fideuram joined the consortiums for the public offerings of GE Capital European Funding six-year
fixed and floating rate senior bonds and Ferragamo ordinary shares.

As regards the offering of banking products, in 2011 the actions promoting the acquisition of new customers continued, in
particular through the implementation of three campaigns linked to the offering of “Fideuram Plus” new current accounts, which
match a competitive interest rate with low fees.

Over two years from the introduction of the new SEI advanced advisory service, which offers customised solutions to meet all
investment needs and evolve with them as they change over time, around 30,000 customers had subscribed to the service, with
assets under administration of over 11 billion euro.
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Corporate Centre
The Corporate Centre is responsible for direction, coordination and control of the whole Group, as well as for Treasury.

The Corporate Centre Departments (essentially the Treasury Department) generated an operating loss of 217 million euro in 2011,
compared to a loss of 589 million euro in the previous year. This improvement was mainly due to profits on trading, which
benefited from a marked capital gain from disposal of investments (Findomestic, Banco di Patagonia) and the acquisition of own
debt securities on the market. Income before tax from continuing operations amounted to -1,267 million euro (-1,289 million euro
in 2010) due to the significant increase in "collective” impairment to the “performing” portfolio, as a result of the worsening of
the economic situation. Net income amounted to 990 million euro, thanks to the recording of a tax benefit of 2,130 million euro
deriving from the realignment of goodwill included in the consolidated financial statements, as permitted by art. 23 of Law Decree
no. 98 of 6 July 2011. The figure for 2011 compares with a loss of 169 million euro for the previous year.

Treasury services

The Treasury Department includes treasury services in euro and foreign currencies, and the integrated management of liquidity
requirements/surpluses, financial risks and settlement risks. Intesa Sanpaolo is a direct member and provider of settlement services
for both Group banks and third-party banks: in 2011 it maintained a leading role within the euro wholesale payment systems,
stabilising its market share in Target2 at Italian and European levels. In particular, the ECB officially reconfirmed the Bank’s status
as a “critical participant” in the Target2 system also for the year 2012. This status entails a commitment to the annual self-
certification of the presence of security and business continuity measures adopted by the Bank and their compliance with
internationally recognised standards. This allowed us to close the year with improved volumes on 2010, evidence of our central
role in the world of payments, even in the current difficult economic scenario. The Treasury Department of the Parent Company
continued to devote considerable attention to various working groups within the ECB, Bank of Italy and Italian Banking
Association concerning the development of new international settlement systems. With the Target2-Securities and CCBM2
projects, the Eurosystem will establish a single European platform for securities settlement and centralised cross-border
management of collateral. Also as regards planning, Intesa Sanpaolo has signed up as a pilot bank to the new “X-COM" platform
of Triparty Repo, managed by Monte Titoli. The project aims at developing a Triparty Collateral Management service also in Italy,
along the lines of those already offered by international Custodians in other Eurozone countries. Lastly, the Parent Company
continued its commitment towards eliminating settlement risk in foreign exchange transactions through direct subscription to the
CLS (Continuous Linked Settlement) system.

The money market was characterized by uneven performance: the tensions on the markets of government securities of peripheral
countries in the Eurozone, which arose at the start of the year, were followed by a short phase of moderate stability near the end
of the first quarter. Conversely, from the start of the second quarter, Greece's difficulties worsened, and continued through the
entire month of June and ended up having a negative impact on various market segments, including the currency market, due to
concerns whether the Euro could concretely hold on. From August to September, the crisis worsened, causing contagion that
extended to Spain and Italy and took the form of an additional deterioration of the situation in Greece.

In this scenario, rating agencies repeatedly downgraded sovereign ratings and, as a result, those of banks, highlighting the
problems in the “Financial” segment. In the last part of the year, the tensions on government securities of peripheral countries in
the Eurozone deteriorated further, with a low point observed a few days from the establishment of the new technical Italian
government headed by Prof. Mario Monti. Thus, the market situation began to gradually improve, confirmed by the slow decrease
in the spread between Italian and German securities.

As part of its two-pillar strategy, the ECB clearly separated decisions regarding policy rates from those aimed at ensuring liquidity
to the European financial system. In this context, in April, in order to confirm the strict approach to expectations of medium/long-
term inflation, the European Central Bank opted to initially increase the official rates, from 1% to 1.25% (first rise since May
2009), which was followed by a second increase which raised the main refinancing rate to 1.5%. The worsening of the market
framework starting from August led the European Central Bank to intervene through two subsequent reductions in official rates,
in November and December, returning rates to the levels of the beginning of 2011 (1%). In the US, there continued to be an
excess of structural liquidity, caused by the quantitative easing policy implemented by the Federal Reserve. Recent statements by
the Fed suggest a focus on stability of the official US rates over the medium term.

In terms of system liquidity, the European Central Bank continuously undertook open market transactions with the full allotment
method, implementing weekly, monthly and quarterly auctions (all index-linked to the “main refinancing operations” rate).

At the end of August, an extraordinary 6-month liquidity injection operation was carried out. Additional extraordinary measures
were implemented at the end of the year, through refinancing operations of up to 3 years. These decisions, along with the
confirmation of the full allotment fixed rate auctions and the option of expanding collateral (immediately with the possibility of
issuing covered bonds guaranteed by the government and, in future, by expanding the criteria for eligibility of bank loans),
allowed banks to use considerable amounts of financing from the Central Bank. Of significant importance was the participation in
the first 3-year auction conducted in December, in which the banking system was awarded approximately 490 billion euro. As the
tensions on the USD money market renewed, the Federal Reserve decided to halve the cost of outstanding FX swap lines with the
leading global central banks, from 100 to 50 bps. During the year, the central bankers' decisions guaranteed liquidity to the
market. The constant excess of liquidity which emerged at industry level permitted banks to maintain very short-term rates at
levels significantly lower than the official rates.

During the year, money market operations remained fully concentrated on very short-term maturities, in line with the general
market trend. The situation of excess liquidity triggered by the full allotment auction mechanisms of the ECB did not provide the
interbank market with a boost. By virtue of the general risk aversion and lack of confidence among counterparties, this market
remained largely confined to very short-term maturities. Securities issues, traditionally the Group's main source of funding, were
negatively affected by the increased perception of “counterparty risk”, also by institutional investors in relation to short-term debt
instruments. There was a generalised reduction in the duration of this form of funding, both due to regulatory reasons
(which force increasingly prudential liquidity risk profiles on investors) and due to high risk aversion to issuers not included in the
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"core Europe” area. Thus, significant segmentation occurred in the pricing of these instruments, among banks from countries
outside the Eurozone and, starting from August, there was an almost complete freeze on purchases of short-term issues by US
investors. Intesa Sanpaolo dealt with these phenomena by refinancing with the Central Bank in the summer, through the partial
use of the Group's system of eligible collateral, in order to guar